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Financial Highlights
BB HE

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
EERMBERRA

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-ALFE

2020 2019

—ECERF —T—hF

YoY Chqnge RMB’000 RMB'000

REEH) ARMETF T ARETTT

Revenue g -10.8% 1,745,023 1,955,525

Gross profit EF -32.4% 263,155 389,419

Gross profit margin ERE -4.83b.p. 15.1% 19.9%

(Loss) profit before taxation MR (E518) i@ F -122.2% (26,089) 117,485

Adjusted EBITDA* 4% S FE EBITDAY -32.1% 196,493 289,180
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to RATEIHEE NEIS

owners of the Company FRN(HE) ®mF -134.2% (25,372) 74,264

Earnings per share - basic M & F — B AR -134.2% (7.6) 22.2

Total assets BEE -5.0% 2,453,901 2,583,161

Total liabilities meE 7.0% 1,046,399 1,125,603

Equity aftributable to owners of the ZN/NEIE RSN
Company iR -1.8% 1,332,530 1,356,425
Net gearing ratio FEERMEE +3.48b.p. 18.3% 14.8%

# Adjusted EBITDA is earnings before accounting for bank and other interest income, ~ # 4 FEEBITDA A BR R 1T R EAth A B UL A -

interest expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation, fair value gain and FEM> BIE EREHE DFEK
investment income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), @ KR A FER ARz (R A FER AR
net exchange gain/loss and impairment loss on goodwill. ZNHERMEERERA BRI B

BFELHEREBENNERN -

4 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020



PATIENT VISITS
AmAAR

Thousand Visits F A X

No. of inpatient

ERRAR

2020 S 56.6

2019 IS 5.6

2018 I (6.4

No. of outpatient

FIR2 AKX

2020 S 1,358.5
2019 S |,753.3

2018 I 1,650.6

No. of surgeries

FiWE

2020 S 39.

2019 N 46 .|

2018 I 4].0

Financial Highlights

I HE

REVENUE PROPORTION BY MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES *
ERMEWSIGEE

0&G related disciplines
FERBEMNE

Cardiovascular related
disciplines

HNEBBNE

General surgery

related disciplines

LEINEBERE

8.1%

N.6%

Internal medicine
related disciplines

REVENUE YoY OF MAJOR HEALTHCARE DISCIPLINES*

IENEERKSAL
RMB'000 A R T T
188,515
213,266

Internal medicine

related disciplines

AREENE

2020
2019

Nephrology related
disciplines
BHEANEENE
52,218

43,807

|

General surgery
related disciplines
LEIEENE
130,441

152,698

106,720
120,420
Emergency medicine

related disciplines
SREENE

|

RRIERERE 0,
7.0%
Neurology related
disciplines
BRESEERE
197,902
254,476
Cardiovascular related
disciplines
OIME 3| Z=
ek 256,581
312,596

15.8%

12.2%

6.6%

6.1%
32.6%

Other disciplines
HAERARRIE

33,702

65,279

Paediatrics related
disciplines
REBEEENE

0&G related disciplines

RENEENE

!
|

Neurology related

disciplines
WEBEEBEME  oncology related
112,929 disciplines
120,504 ERGANE
53,823
51,153

|

Medical aesthetic
related disciplines

Emergency medicine
related disciplines

SREBNE

Orthopaedics
related disciplines

BRERNE

236,067
256,257

Other disciplines
HAERARRE

|

BEXRFENE
38,268 Physical examination
41,706 R

113,697

102,561

*The amount does not include revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services, sale of pharmaceutical products and others.

*ZEETRERMREREMEERY - 555 Kb KRS -
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THRARRE

Chen Wangzhi
PR AR A

Chief Executive Officer 77 Br#8 #;

Looking forward, the Group will continue to enhance our healthcare service core competencies with a view fo
restructuring our healthcare management capabilities, strengthening departmental management concepts
and enhancing working efficiency. At the same time, we will focus on the development opportunity of the
Greater Bay Area to expand our businesses and healthcare network. With the year 2021 kicking off with
Kanghua Hospital's fourth five-year plan, our Group enters a period of stable operations, and has proven to
possess strong innovative capabilities and risk resilience. The Group is positioned grasp the opportunities
arising in the post COVID-19 pandemic era and we must formulate a sound operational plan to address the
rapidly changing policies and market environment, as well as improve technology application to upgrade and
transform our medical institutions.

EARK AEEREERABLMANEERBZOBE N AEARMNEREEE S - R1E
F'EJEEEEEA RETERE -RAE AASEIXNEENEREE TRAMDEEMERMEE -
021 FRFEBRENERLFREMB2F  AEEEARTELY  AARANEIFENFTHRE
BRAES - AEER LR NUERCOVID-19RIBERNKE  HETENLETE  BFHRSEZN
BERMTIGRIT - =S B P60 BB T+ AR DhuE e Bl e 7K -
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Company, | sincerely express my gratitude to all Shareholders
and other stakeholders from different parts of the community for your continuous
support to the Group.

In the beginning of year 2020, the unexpected and unprecedented pandemic
caused by the novel coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19") exerted downward
pressure on national economic development, and accordingly, the operations of
a wide range of industries and sectors in the PRC have been severely affected.
During the pandemic, the Group’s operations were affected, including temporary
restrictions and closures of rehabilitation centres, and the rescheduling of some
of our non-emergency services and surgencies at our hospitals to suppress the
spread of the virus. The restriction and control measures caused a decline in
the volume of outpatient visits, inpatient visits and surgical operations during the
first half of 2020. The implementation of various pandemic prevention policies
and preventive measures to control the COVID-19 pandemic have temporarily
suppressed the demand for our medical services. However, under the leadership
of the Chinese Central Government, the PRC has gained great success in battling
the virus. Starting from the second half of 2020, our operations quickly bounced
back with volume of patient visits gradually returning to normal levels before
the pandemic. In particular, the volume of our rehabilitation services increased
significantly during the second half of the year.

1 .

S\ s

il Bad .
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K FE PR
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TTHRE SRS

BURR -

AANEBERRARARLEHZBER R
HEeEsREMNEHEBEA LTS RNEENS
BXFs -

RZZE_ZFFY BFEERESER
(fcoviD-19])) Fral e M T E R BRIFT A A
MERBEHBRREEEREN T 1B
PRESTESENCEANMIBBRESE -
EISHE AEBENEEXITE  BER
BERR A BB RES L W ERMOERT
DIEBREIRIE R FMEH P o R KRz
EHDER T _TFLXEFEMPAR - F
R ARARINELF T 298 T - Be%E
1B TE BT Bk B 38 7 F8 e PAYE 5 COVID-19 7%
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THERRE

In view of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC, the authorities at the
national level have commensurately realigned the policy of the entire healthcare
industry. The pandemic and 5G technology have catalysed the rise of internet
medical treatments. The Chinese Government departments introduced a series
of policies to encourage the development of Internet healthcare. In November
2020, the National Healthcare Security Administration (NHSA) promulgated
the “Guidelines on Promoting Social Health Insurance Payment for “Internet
+" Healthcare Services”, to facilitate innovation in the “Internet +” healthcare
services model, and to further clarify the standards and guidelines for including
Internet healthcare in the Social Health Insurance (SHI) payment. The National
Medical Products Administration also released the “Measures for Oversight and
Management of Online Distribution of Drugs (draft for comments)” in the same
month, permitting online distribution and display of prescription drugs. As such,
the COVID-19 pandemic created further opportunities for the development of
Internet healthcare in the PRC. The Group will continue to promote the integration
of online and offline healthcare services, the development of different channels
and the expansion of healthcare professionals, as well as building up our
online capabilities, to further strengthen our position and accelerate business
development in the Guangdong region.

During the COVID-19 pandemic, given the environmental constraints, as well as
the improving application of medicine over the internet, the number of people
seeking online medical consultation significantly increased. Furthermore, medical
informatisation greatly improved the efficiency and workflow of medical services.
The emergence of medical kiosks in our hospitals accelerated the transformation
and upgrade in our medical institutions. The National Health Commission, the
State Food and Drug Administration and the NHSA successively issued the “Notice
for Further Improving Medical Consultation and Treatment Reservation System
and Enhancing the Construction of Smart Hospitals” and other related documents,
providing a route to upgrade and transform medical institutions. These initiatives
also lay down key guidelines for construction of internet hospitals. In response,
our hospitals expedited the construction work of internet hospitals.

8 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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The Chief Executive Officer’s Statement

Despite the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group continued fo restructure
the healthcare management departments, strengthen horizontal communication
and enhance working efficiency across all our medical facilities including
Kanghua Hospital (our approved Grade A Class Ill general hospital), Renkang
Hospital (our Grade A Class Il standard general hospital) and Kangxin Hospital
(our private hospital specializing in cardiovascular discipline), as well as our
rehabilitation healthcare services centres and hospitals. In particular, Kanghua
Hospital continued to pursue new management concepts, including the tools that
apply “data and performance management and multi-quality control”, in order to
enhance the monitoring and analysis of key medical quality process and outcome
indicators. In 2019, Kanghua Hospital established the “Internet + Medical
Healthcare Services” organisational structure. With the "Household Kanghua
Angel” project formally implemented, Kanghua Hospital also became the first
hospital in Dongguan City to develop and operate an online nurse appointment
platform. In 2020, Kanghua Hospital continued to optimise its online services
and further pushed forward with the trial operations as an internet hospital. Our
management is of the view that the new internet service is expected to reduce the
impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the operations in the future.

During the year, with respect to the Group’s hospital services segment,
our hospitals have achieved a number of developments, recognitions and
accreditations. At Kanghua Hospital, the Department of Respiratory and Critical
Medicine obtained the certification as a PCCM-certified class Ill hospital. Kanghua
Hospital received a 5-star expertise rating and a 3A creditworthiness rating from
the Chinese Non-governmental Medical Institute Association. Kanghua Hospital
was also honoured as one of the “brands that contributed to combatting against
COVID-19" at the second Private Medical Care Ceremony of the Guangdong
Province, and as an enterprise with outstanding charitable contribution at the 10th
anniversary of the Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day and Dongguan Charity
Day. In addition, Kanghua Hospital became a CDQI “National Standardised Atrial
Fibrillation Centre (Model Centre)”, a member of Chinese Heart Failure Centre,
and a designated collection hospital for the Chinese Hematopoietic Stem Cell
Donor Database. At Renkang Hospital, the Department of Emergency and Critical
Medicine was established, introducing high-calibre talents to provide strong
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THERRE

life support and protection to clinical departments. These efforts have raised
the emergency and first aid standards of the hospital. Renkang Hospital also
established the “Department of Respiratory and Critical Medicine”, which was
actively constructed in accordance with the specialty evaluation standards and
became the first Class 2 hospital in Dongguan that was awarded the “Class
2 Hospital with excellent performance in the national PCCM standardisation
construction project” title. In addition, Renkang Hospital established its
new Department of Oncology, which offered standardised chemotherapy,
immunotherapy, targeted therapy and endocrine therapy for cancer patients. At
Kangxin Hospital, the hospital was designated by National Health Commission’s
Capacity Building and Continuous Education Centre as the “Primary Hospital
Electrophysiology Specialty Training Project Base”, indicating that its capability
in electrophysiology interventional surgery is recognised by the government
and other peers in the industry. In October 2020, Kangxin Hospital successfully
developed its Department of Cardiology, which excelled in passing the inspection
and acceptance as one of the municipal-level key clinical discipline projects of
Chongging. In the future, our Group will continue to recruit and promote talents
according to its strategic development plan, and exploit its talent pool to continue
the development momentum of our hospital services.

With respect to our rehabilitation services segment, the Anhui Hualin Group
placed tremendous effort in expanding its business and operational presence
in the Anhui Province. In 2020, Anhui Hualin actively submitted tenders for new
projects, including the management of Hefei Compulsory Drug Rehabilitation
Centre and the operation of Hefei Daoxiang Village Home for the Disabled.
At the same time, Anhui Hualin actively expanded non-medical projects,
including Hefei Kangaiyun Pharmacy, and Hefei Xiaguang Primary School and
Children’s Disability Rehabilitation and Nursery Project. In 2020, Hefei Kanghua
Rehabilitation Hospital continued to step up its efforts to implement new projects
and new technologies such as llizarov surgery, early rehabilitation treatment
for critically ill patients, respiratory rehabilitation, neurogenic bladder function
rehabilitation, botulinum toxin injection technology and transcranial magnetic
stimulation treatment. Hefei Jingu Hospital established stable core clinical referral
business with the Burns Department of the first affiliated hospital of Anhui Medical
University, Hi-Tech Zone Campus. Kanghua Paediatric Rehabilitation was further
recognised by the disabled persons federations after the verification and audits
conducted by the Disabled Persons Federations in 2020. Hefei Jingu Hospital
became an influential brand in the field of rehabilitation of disabled children in
Anhui Province, and further improved its contributions to the overall society.

]O Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Beginning in 2018, the Group strategically established a comprehensive elderly
healthcare centre located in Renkang Hospital, namely Renkang Elderly Care
Centre, initially with 60 registered beds to explore the potential of providing
quality high-end elderly care services to local residents in Houjie Town,
Dongguan City. In view of the accelerating aging population problem in the PRC
that leads to the high development potential of the healthcare and elderly care
industry, the establishment of the Renkang Elderly Care Centre was the Group’s
first presence and extension of our big health concept business development. In
June 2020, the second phase of the nursing home project passed the inspection
of the Municipal Health Supervision Bureau and the Civil Affairs Bureau. In August
2020, the second phase of the elderly care centre commenced operation with
the addition of 48 registered beds and became a designated medical institution
covered by the social insurance system. Furthermore, during the year, the
Group has seized the opportunity to expand our business in elderly healthcare
services by successfully bidding for the land use rights of a land parcel to develop
comprehensive elderly healthcare medical facilities with a particular focus on
geriatric patients and rehabilitation. The Board expects that such development will
further enhance the Group’s capability in providing high-end integrated medical
care to meet the increasing demand for such services in Guangdong Province (and
in particular Dongguan City).

With respect to our financial performance in 2020, the Group recorded
consolidated revenue for the year of RMB1,745.0 million, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 10.8%. Revenue from our hospital services segment amounted
to RMB1,620.5 million, representing an overall year-on-year decrease of 12.3%,
mainly attributable to the decline in overall patient visits of our owned-hospitals
during the pandemic. The total number of inpatient visits declined to 56,589
(2019: 75,568), representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.1% and the total
number of outpatient visits declined to 1,358,516 (2019: 1,753,320), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 22.5%. However, our rehabilitation and other related
healthcare services segment recorded a revenue for the year of RMB100.4 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 15.3%. Even though our rehabilitation
centres were unable fo resume normal operation until the later half of the second
quarter of 2020 due to measures implemented to suppress COVID-19, the volume
of patient visits rebounded strong in the second half year of 2020. The increase in
revenue was driven by the positive business sentiment in the region, stimulating
the revenue growth of our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services
segment.
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement
THERRE

In 2020, the Group recorded consolidated loss for the year of RMB50.1 million
(2019: profit for the year of RMB48.7 million) and loss attributable to owners of
the Company for the year of RMB25.4 million (2019: profit attributable to owners
of the Company of RMB74.3 million). The loss incurred for the year is mainly
attributable to: (i) the significant decline in revenue and profit at Kanghua Hospital
and Renkang Hospital mainly as a result of the decline in the number of patient
visits across all their major service offerings during the COVID-19 pandemic; ii)
the continuing loss incurred at Kangxin Hospital for the current year; and {iii)
the Group recognised an impairment loss on goodwill in respect of the cash
generating units of Kangxin Hospital and Anhui Hualin in aggregate of RMB77.4
million. The Group’s Adjusted EBITDA recorded a year-on-year decrease of 32.1%
to RMB196.5 million (2019: RMB289.2 million), which indicates that the Group’s
core operation as a whole remained profitable, after eliminating the effects of
financing, investment-related income, effects of exchange rates changes, capital
expenditures and extraordinary non-cash related losses.

The year 2021is a year of global economic uncertainties in the post COVID-19 era,
kicking off Kanghua Hospital's fourth five-year plan. After 15 years of operation,
Kanghua Hospital, under the leadership of its board of directors, has built up
our own teams, strong disciplines, an extensive network of connections, and a
reputable brand, based on our five core disciplines. Kanghua Hospital entered a
period of stable operations, and has proved to have strong innovative capability
and risk resilience. On the other hand, we also saw the rapid development of
local public hospitals in 2020, which was supported by government policies,
especially from the emergence of public hospitals as the primary source of
healthcare under the background of prevention of control of COVID-19. The reform
of payment methods under the medical insurance system forced us to change
our business philosophy from extensive growth of income to optimising our
income structure. In terms of the overall market, the competition among hospitals
became more intense due to the impact of COVID-19 and the structure of the
industry on local population and demographics, the division of market as a result
of the development of integrated health care systems, and the improvement
of service capability of primary healthcare hospitals. We also need to promptly
address the historical issues accumulated within our hospitals during our rapid
development in the past decades. In particular, with the introduction of the new
standards for the assessment of classified hospitals, we must be well prepared
for the upcoming assessment in 2024. As such, we must formulate a sound
operational plan this year to address the rapidly changing policies and market
environment, considering the actual situation at our hospitals.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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The Chief Executive Officer's Statement

Looking ahead, the Group will position ourselves in the new era of accelerated
development of the Internet healthcare and smart hospitals. Beginning from
2021, the first year of the “14th Five-Year Plan” of development of the PRC, the
Group will focus on our core businesses, whilst continue to strengthen our
healthcare services network in the Greater Bay Area. The Group will seize the
significant opportunities brought by the reform of the “Healthy China 2030”
vision through strategical changes and development. With the Group’s solid
and constructive reputation background and network of patients, the Group
will capitalize on synergies from the patient channels, healthcare services,
government partnerships and technologies to enhance our core competitiveness,
strengthening our offline service capabilities as well as developing our online
service abilities. Our strategy will continue to improve specialties based on the
existing advantageous ones, further enhance the operation systems of our
hospitals and improve operation efficiency. The Group will further consolidate its
leading position in the private healthcare industry in China and strive to achieve
excellent results, maximise return and sustainable value for our shareholders.
Our Kanghua brand will continue to uphold the enterprise mission of “Empathic e
Virtuous Medical Practice” (& 4 % &  E 2 & ), and becoming a renowned
and diverse healthcare services operotor in China.

Chen Wangzhi
Chief Executive Officer

29 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Business Overview for 2020

In the beginning of year 2020, the unexpected and unprecedented pandemic
caused by the novel coronavirus disease 2019 ("COVID-19") exerted downward
pressure on national economic development, and accordingly, the operations of
a wide range of industries and sectors in the PRC have been severely affected.
During the pandemic, the Group’s operations were affected, including temporary
restrictions and closures of rehabilitation centres, and rescheduling of some of
our non-emergency services and surgencies at our hospitals to suppress the
spread of the virus. The restriction and control measures caused a decline in
the volume of outpatient visits, inpatient visits and surgical operations during the
first half of 2020. The implementation of various pandemic prevention policies
and preventive measures to control the COVID-19 pandemic have temporarily
suppressed in the demand for our medical services. However, as the condition
of the pandemic improved towards the third quarter of the year, our operations
quickly bounced back with volume of patient visits gradually returning to normal
levels before the pandemic. In particular, the volume of our rehabilitation services
increased significantly during the second half of the year.

In 2020, the Group’s consolidated revenue for the year amounted to RMB1,745.0
million (2019: RMB1,955.5 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
10.8%, mainly attributable to the decline in overall patient visits of our owned-
hospitals during the pandemic. The Group’s owned-hospitals (making up our
hospital services segment), namely Kanghua Hospital, Renkang Hospital and
Kangxin Hospital, all recorded a decline in revenue of 12.7%, 5.8% and 29.6%,
respectively. Revenue from our hospital services segment for the Reporting Period
amounted to RMB1,620.5 million (2019: RMB1,848.2 million), representing an
overall year-on-year decrease of 12.3%

]4 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

However, our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services segment,
through our ownership of 57% equity interest in Anhui Hualin, recorded a revenue
for the year of RMB100.4 million (2019: RMB87.1 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 15.3%. Even though our rehabilitation centres were unable to
resume normal operation until the later half of the second quarter of 2020 due
to measures implemented to suppress COVID-19, the volume of patient visits
rebounded strong in the second half year of 2020. The increase in revenue is
driven by the positive business sentiment in the region, and in particular, the
maturity in the operation of our Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital, which
commenced operations in November 2018 (a rehabilitation specialty hospital
aiming to become a class Il rehabilitation hospital in the long term), stimulating
the revenue growth of our rehabilitation and other related healthcare services
segment.
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The Group’s consolidated loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted
to RMB50.1 million (2019: profit for the year of RMB48.7 million). The loss incurred
for the Reporting Period is mainly attributable to: (i) the significant decline in
revenue and profit at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital mainly as a result
of the decline in the number of patient visits across all their major service offerings
during the COVID-19 pandemic; (i) the continuing loss incurred at Kangxin
Hospital for the current year; and (iii) the Group recognised an impairment
loss on goodwill in respect of the cash generating units of Kangxin Hospital
("Kangxin Hospital CGU*) and Anhui Hualin (“Anhui Hualin CGU”) in aggregate of
RMB77.4 million (2019: an impairment loss on goodwill in the Kangxin Hospital
CGU of RMB60.0 million). During the current year, Kangxin Hospital faced a
number of ongoing challenges, including the burden of retaining professional
headcounts, overhead expenditure and fixed costs, as well as the loss of certain
key professional healthcare talent during the year. This is due to the fierce
and intense competition for healthcare professionals and experts in the local
Chongging market. The Board considers that the estimated short to medium-term
future growth of Kangxin Hospital and Anhui Hualin were lower than previously
anticipated. Accordingly, the aggregate recoverable amount of Kangxin Hospital
CGU and Anhui Hualin CGU are below its aggregated own carrying amount,
which resulted in the recognition of an impairment loss in goodwill in a total of
RMB77.4 million during the Reporting Period.

The Group’s Adjusted EBITDA recorded a year-on-year decrease of 32.1% to
RMB196.5 million (2019: RMB289.2 million), which indicates that the Group’s core
operation as a whole remained stable and profitable, after eliminating the effects
of financing, investment-related income, effects of exchange rates changes,
capital expenditures and extraordinary non-cash related losses.

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively responded to the impact brought
by the COVID-19 pandemic, and strived to ensure stable and effective recovery of
our operations across all our operating segments. Meanwhile, the Group seized
the opportunity to expand our business in elderly healthcare services. In July
2020, the Group succeeded in bidding for the land use rights of a land parcel to
undertake an integrated healthcare project for developing comprehensive elderly
healthcare medical facilities, with a particular focus on geriatric patients and
rehabilitation in Dongguan City. The Board expects that such development will
further enhance the Group’s capability in providing high-end integrated medical
care to meet the increasing demand for such services in Guangdong Province
(and in particular Dongguan City). The consideration for the acquisition of the land
parcel amounted to RMB82.6 million. Details of the fransaction are disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 23 July 2020.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hospital Services

The Group’s owned hospitals, namely, Kanghua Hospital (our approved Grade A
Class lll general hospital), Renkang Hospital (our general hospital operated based
on Grade A Class Il standard general hospital) and Kangxin Hospital (our private
hospital specializing in cardiovascular discipline), represent the Group’s hospital
services segment. During the Reporting Period, COVID-19 caused a number of
temporary adverse impacts on our key operating performance indicators, in
particular (i) the total number of inpatient visits declined to 56,589 (2019: 75,568),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 25.1%; (ii) the overall average spending
per inpatient visit amounted to RMB17,281.3 (2019: RMB15,031.1), representing
a year-on-year increase of 15.0%; (iii) the overall bed utilisation rate dropped to
65.2% (2019: 85.6%), primarily caused by the decrease in bed utilisation during
the most intense period of the COVID-19 pandemic; (iv) the average length
of stay slightly increased to 7.6 days (2019: 7.3 days); (v) the total number of
outpatient visits declined to 1,358,516 (2019: 1,753,320), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 22.5%; (vi) the overall average spending per outpatient visit
amounted to RMB389.3 (2019: RMB347.8), representing a year-on-year increase
of 11.9%; and (vii) the total number of surgical operations declined to 39,082 (2019:
46,056), representing a year-on-year decrease of 15.1%.

The table below sets forth certain key operational data of the Group’s owned
hospitals of the hospital services segment for the years indicated:
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Change 2020 2019
& —E-EF —T-NEF
Inpatient healthcare services b B R RS
Inpatient visits FBT AR —251% 56,589 75,568
Average length of stay (days) TR A& (R) +0.3 7.6 73
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREZ(ARET) +15.0% 17,281.3 15,031.1
Outpatient healthcare services PR BB IR
Outpatient visits FI® AR -22.5% 1,358,516 1,753,320
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARTFHREZ(ARET) +11.9% 389.3 347.8
Physical examination services B RIS
Physical examination visits B AR -9.8% 167,388 185,634
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAREHREZ(ARET) +22.9% 679.2 552.5
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Kanghua Hospital

In 2020, Kanghua Hospital continued to restructure the healthcare management
departments, strengthen horizontal communication and enhance working
efficiency. Kanghua Hospital continued to pursue new management concepts,
including the tools that apply “data and performance management and multi-
quality control”, in order to enhance the monitoring and analysis of key medical
quality process and outcome indicators. As one of the six designated hospitals
for treatment of infectious diseases in Dongguan City under the pandemic,
Kanghua Hospital was instructed by the Board to “fight against the pandemic”
and safeguard the health of the public and our employees. The medical staff
of Kanghua Hospital rose to the challenge, with more than 400 medical staff
members volunteering to fight against the pandemic on the front line. The
pandemic affected the operations of Kanghua Hospital, resulting in a decrease in
the total number of patients during the current year.

During the Reporting Period, Kanghua Hospital recorded a revenue of RMB1,357.3
million (2019: RMB1,554.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.7%.
In 2020, Kanghua Hospital had outpatient visits of 1,039,428 (2019: 1,335,875),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 22.2% and inpatient visits of 44,013
(2019: 59,578, representing a year-on-year decrease of 26.1%.

In 2019, Kanghua Hospital established the “Internet + Medical Healthcare
Services” organisational structure. With the "Household Kanghua Angel” project
formally implemented, Kanghua Hospital also became the first hospital in
Dongguan City to develop and operate an online nurse appointment platform.
In 2020, Kanghua Hospital continued to optimise its online services and
further pushed forward with the trial operations as an internet hospital. Our
management is of the view that the new infernet service is expected to reduce the
impacts of pandemic on the operations in the future.

In January 2020, the Department of Respiratory and Critical Medicine of Kanghua
Hospital formally obtained the certification as a PCCM-certified class Il hospital.
The "PCCM Standardisation Construction Project”, which was initiated by various
medical associations and institutions, aims to promote standardised development
and improve the overall national standard of the Department of Respiratory and
Critical Medicine, and to comprehensively build a national team of respiratory
and critical medical physicians. The project will meet the increasingly strict clinical
requirements to address respiratory diseases.

]8 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

—ToTF REBRAEEAERBREER
FIMRAEZRIE - INRIRAVAE IR TIRREK -
FEBRFEETIENERER ZmY
BRI TANERSMNERES  NRYH
i% SEMmEBRIET  BRETETENR

D BERIE - REBRESRZM N

EHHAER 2 EFEERTFETER
7JHJ1FJ STEARME —EE THRE -
FEBERNBHEABRES ML - 08mE -
4002 HANEBFEFHRNE - - RBEYHE
EERNEEBNENTE  BUAFEE
BHEAEBMATRE -

PRSI - FREB RS WS AR %1,357.3
BERLT(ZZE—NF: ARBI549B 8
TT) RFEFRILHA127% R T T F -
FEEEBER P 2 AR A1,039,428 X (—Z— A
4 :1,335,875:%)  LFEFTRILL TFE22.2% &
FEBE AR E44,013)8 (ZZF — L4 : 59,578
K)o REF R TR 26.1% °

—NF - REERBEELT LB
+%ﬁ%ﬁd@% Efg - [REXRFEIR]E
BEX LR BREBROKATERETER
EIW% F-XHABRENELEATEN

CTHRIEZTF FEBERIFEELS
tm%&ﬁ S DB RABER N RETT -
EEERANLHMBRGIEEE LA RHIE
RREIBEEFTE o
—%—%i—ﬁ %%%%WW@%E?

AN FAIRME =ABRPCCMEZEE -
[PCCMIRFLERER | AZEEEHRT X
g e  SEHSTREFEFEERIR
BILBERE  ReERXYREFSEESERE
BEKUE » R RBIK TR B A B 2R
BERH A K 0 W E B R IR R
REBRAREX -



Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2020, Kanghua Hospital received a 5-star expertise rating and a 3A
creditworthiness rating from the Chinese Non-governmental Medical Institute
Association. Kanghua Hospital was also honoured as one of the “brands that
contributed to combatting against COVID-19” at the second Private Medical Care
Ceremony of the Guangdong Province, and as an enterprise with outstanding
charitable contribution at the 10th anniversary of the Guangdong Poverty
Alleviation Day and Dongguan Charity Day. In addition, Kanghua Hospital
became a CDQI “National Standardised Atrial Fibrillation Centre (Model Centre)”
(CDQI), a member of Chinese Heart Failure Centre, and a designated collection
hospital for the Chinese Hematopoietic Stem Cell Donor Database. Kanghua
Hospital quickly adapted its brand marketing to the prevailing circumstances by
firmly securing necessary resources and enhancing its efforts to discover and
write stories about combatting COVID-19 on cases specific to Kanghua Hospital,
which attracted external media to actively quote and report these stories to
increase Kanghua Hospital's positive social influence.

In 2020, Kanghua Hospital improved the scope, coverage and quality of its
nursing service, including:

(11 stepping up its effort to build its nursing team by improving its management
structure and the competency of the team members and improving the
benefits for nurses to reduce staff turnover in the team;

(2)  improving the quality of nursing service through the development of
specialist departments. Kanghua Hospital actively participated in the work
of specialist alliances and provincial and municipal nursing associations,
with an aim to expand the influence of its specialist work. Kanghua
Hospital also actively built and promoted professional nurse training
centres and actively carried out projects on the research and development
of nursing services and new nursing technologies, and managed the
access authorisation process for high-risk and highly sophisticated nursing
technologies;

(3)  using the “two evaluations” system as an opportunity to comprehensively
improve the quality of nursing services;

(4)  further improving its healthcare services by implementing a target
management system to promote good quality nursing service across
the hospital and promoting the goal of “the administration and logistics
departments serve the clinical departments, and the clinical departments
serve patients”; and
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(5)  expanding the coverage of nursing service fo maximise the value of the
nursing profession, supporting the development of the “good health”
concept and stepping up its efforts to enrich its talent pool by continuously
optimising and adijusting its team structure to ensure the dynamic
development of its talent base.

In 2020, Kanghua Hospital successfully recruited multiple talents with doctorate
or master degrees to further strengthen its professional team, and attended
many campus job fairs to enlarge its pool of junior talents. Kanghua Hospital also
encouraged its employees to improve their academic qualifications and actively
assisted its employees in securing professional fitles. In future, Kanghua Hospital
will contfinue to recruit and promote talents according to its strategic development
plan, and tap into its talent pool fo continue its development momentum.

Renkang Hospital

In the social security system evaluation in 2019, Renkang Hospital achieved a
better result. In 2020, Renkang Hospital continued its good work in medical
insurance management by adjusting charging standards and social security
reimbursement to increase the income per capita. Renkang Hospital also
established the Department of Emergency and Critical Medicine, and introduced
high-calibre talents to provide strong life support and protection to clinical
departments. These efforts have raised the emergency and first aid standards
of the hospital. In terms of equipment investments, according to the equipment
procurement plan at the beginning of the year, the radiology department
introduced and installed high-end CT and DR equipment, which was put into use
in December 2020.

During the Reporting Period, Renkang Hospital recorded a revenue of RMB224.6
million (2019: RMB238.4 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 5.8%.
In 2020, Renkang Hospital had outpatient visits of 304,127 (2019: 401,030,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 24.2% and inpatient visits of 11,243 (2019:
14,135), representing a year-on-year decrease of 20.5%.

In terms of academic development of the hospital, in order to strengthen the
management of medical technologies, Renkang Hospital organised the medical
technology files of the medical staff, and evaluated and summarised the scientific
research projects and new technologies launched by the hospital. In accordance
with the national management standards for medical technologies, restricted
medical technologies in the Department of Orthopaedics and Department of
Obstetrics and Gynaecology shall be registered with the Municipal Health Bureau,
and the hospital shall continue to improve its standard of medical technologies.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In strengthening the construction of key specialties of the hospital, Renkang
Hospital established the “Department of Respiratory and Critical Medicine”, which
was actively constructed in accordance with the specialty evaluation standards
and was awarded the “Class 2 Hospital with excellent performance in the
national PCCM standardisation construction project” title. We strive to improve
in the annual evaluation and inspection, and promoted the rescue treatment
for respiratory medicine and critical medicine cases. At the same time, Renkang
Hospital established the Department of Emergency and Critical Medicine by
introducing academic leaders and forming an ICU team fo improve emergency
and first aid standards. The Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology,
Department of Stomatology, Department of Chinese Medicine, and Department
of Anesthesiology actively developed new businesses and technologies, which
brought upon good economic and social benefits.

In the second half of 2020, Renkang Hospital established its new Department of
Oncology, which offered standardised chemotherapy, immunotherapy, targeted
therapy and endocrine therapy for cancer patients and completed PICC for 8
cases. Renkang Hospital reduced the per capita expenses of cancer inpatients for
their benefit. In addition, Renkang Hospital rebuilt the Department of Nephrology.
By building on the existing operations of the haemodialysis room, Renkang
Hospital fully utilised the operational capacity of the Department of Nephrology's
outpatient division, inpatient wards, haemodialysis room and peritoneal dialysis
room, bringing the total revenue and profitability of the department to a new
level. Shortly after its development, the department is already showing a positive
development momentum. At the same time, Renkang Hospital made early
preparations for its laboratory testing capability through the development of its
testing room and the addition of new testing equipment, and was designated as
one of the first PCR testing institutions in Dongguan. Renkang Hospital conducted
almost 40,000 COVID-19 PCR tests in 2020, significantly contributing to the
prevention and control of COVID-19.
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Kangxin Hospital

In the first half of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic severely impacted the operations
of Kangxin Hospital. Despite a decrease in the number of patients, the overall
construction level and medical treatment capability of the hospital have improved.
Since the pandemic, Kangxin Hospital adhered to scientific prevention and
control measures, and not a single infected or suspected case was reported in
the hospital during the year. Besides effectively maintaining our own prevention
and control, Kangxin Hospital also actively supported the prevention and control
work of the local government. It immediately established a critical medical
team consisting of 30 medical staff (being the first medical team from a private
hospital in Chongging), and simultaneously sent 11 groups consisting of a fotal
of 150 medical staff to provide medical protection for quarantine stations in
Jiangbei District. This engagement currently remains active. Since Chongging
initiated the first-level response to the pandemic prevention and control on 24
January, Kangxin Hospital has made every effort to ensure the normal admission
of patients by continuing with the services of outpatient consultations and
operations, as well as ensuring that patients, if deemed necessary, should be
admitted to minimise the casualties due to the pandemic.

During the Reporting Period, Kangxin Hospital has recorded a revenue of
RMB38.6 million (2019: RMB54.8 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 29.6%. In 2020, Kangxin Hospital had outpatient visits of 14,961 (2019: 16,415),
representing a year-on-year decrease of 8.9%; inpatient visits of 1,333 (2019:
1,855), representing a year-on-year decrease of 28.1%; and performed 486 (2019:
725) cardiovascular surgeries, representing a year-on-year decrease of 33.0%.

Although the admission of patients was affected, Kangxin Hospital strived to
seek breakthroughs in technology and continued to strengthen its business
development. In the first half of 2020, Kangxin Hospital completed a number
of extremely rare, complicated and challenging surgeries. The Department of
Ultrasound performed its first “stress myocardial contrast echocardiography” case
for a patient before surgery; the Department of Cardiology successfully performed
an inferventional surgery for a child with the rare “Noonan Syndrome”; and the
Department of Cardiovascular Surgery successfully performed the first TAVR
(Transcatheter Aortic Valve Replacement) surgery as the first case in a private
hospital in the Southwestern Region. On 12 December 2020, the Department of
Cardiology successfully carried out a transcatheter aortic valve implantation (TAVI).
In the same month, the Department of Cardiology carried out its first case using
the CRTD pacing technology.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, Kangxin Hospital was designated by National Health Commission’s
Capacity Building and Continuous Education Centre as the “Primary Hospital
Electrophysiology Specialty Training Project Base”, indicating that its capability
in electrophysiology interventional surgery is recognised by the government
and other peers in the industry. In October 2020, Kangxin Hospital successfully
developed its Department of Cardiology, which excelled in passing the inspection
and acceptance as one of the municipal-level key clinical discipline projects
of Chongging. During the two-year development period, the hospital attached
great importance to and mobilised all resources for the development of the
department. The Department of Cardiology made great efforts to standardise
its management, strengthen the training and cultivation of key talents, and
develop new fechnologies and new business operations, resulting in significant
improvements in the number of patient visits, the number of operations, the
difficulty of the operations and level of management of the department.

Despite its operational potential, Kangxin Hospital also faced many ongoing
challenges. The temporary loss of certain key medical experts has, a certain
extent, caused further decline in patient visits at Kangxin Hospital during the
year, and is expected to have an adverse impact on our short-term management
forecast in revenue growth. As a result, the Group has further recognised an
impairment loss on goodwill of RMB49.9 million in respect of the Kangxin Hospital
CGU during the current year, compared to an impairment loss on goodwill of
RMB60.0 million during the year ended 31 December 2019. However, the Group
will continue to step up in recruiting experienced medical experts and improving
of our medical capabilities to regain and attract local patients.

2021 will be a crucial year for Kangxin Hospital. Facing the challenges as a
result of COVID-19, the implementation of the new health care reform and new
medical insurance policies, and its own incomplete organisation structure,
Kangxin Hospital characterises 2021 as the “year of full operations”. By setting
the full occupation of beds as its overall objective, the hospital will closely adhere
to the motto of “striving to increase the admission of patients, consolidating its
leading technical expertise, adapting fo the current changes, and making up for
its shortcomings”. Kangxin Hospital aims to overcome the various difficulties and
to admit and treat more patients, further improve the level of medical technology,
perfect its organisation structure, strictly control potential risks, and strive to
promote the healthy and rapid development of the hospital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Kangxin Hospital will continue to consolidate its leading technical expertise.
In view of the substantial price cuts of coronary stents under the centralised
procurement system, the Department of Cardiology will continue to explore its
advantages as a municipal-level key clinical discipline. It will tap into its technical
expertise in atrial fibrillation to improve the department’s expertise in cardiac
electrophysiology therapy, and further improve its capability of diagnosing and
treating hypertension, heart failure, coronary artery and other diseases. Kangxin
Hospital will highlight its specialty in treating complex coronary artery diseases,
and step up its efforts to build a hypertension centre that aims to establish the
standardised treatment procedure for hypertension with “Kangxin” characteristics.
Kangxin Hospital will also enhance the penetration into other related disciplines
such as diabetes and lipid metabolic dysfunction. Kangxin Hospital will attempt
to seek a breakthrough in cardiac surgical operations in relation to paediatric
congenital heart defect, coronary artery bypass and valve replacement. In
respect of the outpatient and emergency disciplines, Kangxin Hospital will build
a comprehensive internal medicine discipline to admit and treat more patients,
optimise its structure and process, develop emergency systems and district-
level chest pain centres, with an aim to improve its emergency and critical care
capabilities.
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The table below sets forth the revenue contribution by
our hospital services segment for the years indicated:

Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEENRE DN

healthcare disciplines of ~ TERZFH IR IR FERE IR D LAY E
BERESHREER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t—HLFE

% of % of

revenue of revenue of

the Group’s the Group’s

owned owned

2020 hospitals 2019 hospitals

—E-EE SEEREE —T-HhF DHAEE
Change RMB'000 EHEERM RMB'000 # B BT

Healthcare disciplines E2Eg gy AR¥TR WEBEsH ARBTT WaaHk
0&G related disciplines GENABNE -17.9% 256,581 15.8 312,596 16.9
Cardiovascular related disciplines LDINERBAEE -22.2% 197,902 12.2 254,476 13.8
Internal medicine related disciplines ~ ARABR=E -11.6% 188,515 1.6 213,266 1.5
General surgery related disciplines LTRIMIABRE -14.6% 130,441 8.1 152,698 8.3
Neurology related disciplines BEBEERNE -6.3% 112,929 7.0 120,504 6.5
Emergency medicine related disciplines &2 B BRI = -11.4% 106,720 6.6 120,420 6.5
Orthopaedics related disciplines BREBRE -12.2% 99,589 6.1 113,445 6.1
Oncology related disciplines EERAENE +5.2% 53,823 33 51,153 2.8
Nephrology related disciplines BEEEHENE +19.2% 52,218 32 43,807 2.4
Medical aesthefic related disciplines ~ EE2XABERE -8.2% 38,268 2.4 41,706 2.3
Paediatrics related disciplines RERBSERNE -48.4% 33,702 2.1 65,279 3.5
Physical examination Biw +10.9% 113,697 7.0 102,561 55
Other disciplines HMBRARE -7.9% 236,067 14.6 256,257 13.9
Total @it 1,620,452 100.0 1,848,168 100.0

Note: The Group’s healthcare disciplines can generally be classified into clinical disciplines [ 5+ : A& B R 2 EER — & 0] D A& K 2R

and medical technology disciplines. Medical technology disciplines provide BRERINER -EBERMERBERRKSR
diagnostic and freatment support according fo the requirements of clinical disciplines B ERTREHDEFGEZE - Bl
from time to time. Revenue derived from services delivered through medical BERMENRERSEENRZBER
technology disciplines is generally recognised in the relevant clinical disciplines that 185 A 45 LE AR 7 B FE A B R E R R 1R o

utilised such services.
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In 2020, the Group performed a total of 39,170 surgeries (2019: 46,094), including
15,346 surgeries (2019: 17,457) with level 3 or level 4 complexities, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 15.0% and 12.1%, respectively. The decline is primarily
attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic which caused the rescheduling of some of
our non-emergency services and surgeries. However, the impact of the pandemic
on our hospital operations was temporary. The number of patient visits of our
hospitals rebounded since June 2020 and the business operations and medical
service revenue resumed normal during the second half of 2020.

Obstetrics and gynaecology (“O&G") disciplines, cardiovascular disciplines,
internal medicine disciplines, general surgery disciplines and neurology
disciplines (2019: O&G disciplines, cardiovascular disciplines, internal medicine
disciplines, general surgery disciplines and neurology disciplines) were the top
five revenue generating disciplines of the Group for the current year, accounting
for approximately 54.7% of the Group’s total revenue in hospital services segment
in the same period (2019: 57.0%).

During the Reporting Period, revenue from all our major disciplines of our
owned hospitals recorded a substantial decline, which are mainly caused by
the decrease in patient visits due to the COVID-19 pandemic. In particular, O&G-
related disciplines remained to be our largest medical discipline and recorded a
significant decrease in revenue with a year-on-year decline of 17.9%. Our O&G
related disciplines have been a stable revenue driver for the Group, and the
significant decrease in revenue is primarily aftributable to a decline in patient
visits as pregnant patients are generally reluctant to attend regular check-ups
and hospital visits during the pandemic. However, since March 2020, with the
implementation of the pandemic prevention and control measures, the COVID-19
pandemic has been under control. The Dongguan Municipal Government issued
the latest notice to speed up the resumption of work and production in Dongguan
City. In order to “fully support the resumption of work and production, and strictly
prevent and control the pandemic within the department”, the Department
of Gynecology of Kanghua Hospital, began to fully admit outpatients and
inpatients, under the pre-condition of further improving the relevant measures
for pandemic prevention and control. Also, revenue from cardiovascular related
disciplines recorded a year-on-year decrease of 22.2%, primarily attributable
to the decline in revenue from Kangxin Hospital and the rescheduling of non-
emergency surgeries. Revenue from paediatrics-related disciplines also recorded
a considerable year-on-year decrease of 48.4%, primarily attributable to the
stay-at-home policy implemented nation-wide and children were advised
not to attend hospitals during the time of the pandemic. Despite the drop in
revenue across all our medical disciplines, our oncology-related disciplines
and nephrology related disciplines recorded a year-on-year increase of 5.2%
and 19.2%, respectively, primarily because these disciplines are generally less
interrupted by the pandemic and their patients normally require regular and on-
going medical aftention.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

VIP Special Services

The Group’s special services are high-end healthcare services that extend beyond
basic medical services and are specifically catered for more affluent patients who
are willing to pay a premium for higher quality and customised services that are
not generally available in public hospitals. The Group’s special services consist
of VIP healthcare services, reproductive medicine, plastic and aesthetic surgery
and laser treatment. In 2020, the total revenue derived from special services
amounted to RMB157.2 million (2019: RMB181.5 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 13.4%. Although, during the year 2020, the number of both VIP
inpatient and outpatient visits have decreased significantly, the average spending
per inpatient visit of our VIP healthcare services amounted to RMB24,270.9 (2019:
RMB19,895.0), representing a year-on-year increase of 22.0%, primarily because
the demand of our service offerings from Huaxin Building (a complex in Kanghua
Hospital dedicated to VIP healthcare services), in particular, our O&G services to
VIP patients maintained strong. Our revenue from VIP inpatient services recorded
RMB65.2 million (2019: RMB72.4 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
9.9%, primarily caused by a decline in the number of inpatient visits. Furthermore,
our revenue from VIP outpatient service amounted to RMB26.9 million (2019:
RMB37.6 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 28.5%.

Our revenue from reproductive medicine has dropped to RMB43.6 million (2019:
RMB52.7 million) with a year-on-year decrease of 17.3%. The drop in revenue of
reproductive medicine is mainly caused by the reduction in the demand for the
services of our reproductive medicine centre during the time of the pandemic.
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The table below sets forth some key operating data and revenue for the Group’s
special services:

TRINE AR EB R IRIRE O E TR 28
g M e

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t=-RA=+—HLEE

Change 2020 2019
Special Services 45 Bk AR 7% g —E-EF —ZT-NEF
VIP healthcare services EEEERSE
Inpatient visits FBT AR -26.2% 2,687 3,639
Outpatient visits REFNVN -35.4% 37,562 58,182
Revenue (RMB'000) Wz (AREFT) -15.3% 93,392 110,247
Reproductive medicine TIHES
Number of outpatient visits FI% AR -18.6% 39,476 48,486
Revenue (RMB'000) W (AR®FIT) -17.2% 43,627 52,701
Plastic and aesthetic surgery B ERHHR
Revenue (RMB'000) Wiz (AREF ) -12.7% 4,515 5,174
Laser treatment B RE
Revenue (RMB'000) W (AR®FIT) +16.8% 15,654 13,397
Total revenue from special services R IR AR 75 RO AR K
(RMB’000) (AR®EFT) -13.4% 157,188 181,519

Rehabilitation and other Healthcare Services

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s rehabilitation and other related
healthcare services segment, through its ownership of 57% equity interest in
Anhui Hualin, recorded a revenue of RMB100.4 million (2019: RMB87.1 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of 15.3%. Anhui Hualin directly and
indirectly (through its wholly-owned subsidiary) holds sponsor interests in certain
private non-enterprise entities in Anhui Province, the PRC. It mainly operates
two rehabilitation hospitals, a general hospital, an outpatient centre, eleven
rehabilitation centres and one vocational training school (collectively referred
to as “Anhui Hualin Group”). The Anhui Hualin Group has generated significant
synergies to the Group and expanded our presence in the rehabilitation
healthcare sector in the PRC. Since its acquisition, Anhui Hualin Group has
developed steadily, with its network of medical institutions and rehabilitation
centres constantly expanding.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Anhui Hualin Group currently employs more than 800 staff and has a stable
cooperation with the Anhui Disabled Persons Federation and local governments
in the provision of training services for the disabled. The Anhui Hualin Group
is also a major organisation offering children rehabilitation services in Anhui
Province, the PRC. As at 31 December 2020, the three hospitals operated by Anhui
Hualin Group have a total of 360 registered beds. During the Reporting Period,
Anhui Hualin Group has 32,046 (2019: 45,646) outpatient visits, 2,941(2019: 4,561)
inpatient visits and served 2,436 (2019: 1,973) rehabilitation patient visits.

At the beginning of 2020, due to the pandemic, substantially all offline business
activities were prohibited according to the requirements of the authorities
including Hefei Municipal Health Commission, Anhui Disabled Persons’
Federation and Hefei Human Resources and Social Security Bureau. This caused
a sharp decrease in Anhui Hualin’s business revenue during the first half of
the year. The operation of the hospitals faced tremendous pressure. In the
face of unprecedented difficulties and pressures, Anhui Hualin has adopted a
series of effective measures to “increase revenue and cut expenditure”, while
ensuring the stability of key business backbone personnel. These efforts have
laid the foundation for facilitating the resumption of work and production in the
“post-pandemic period”. Gradually until mid- 2020, the three major business
operations resumed work and service, which has successfully safeguarded the
sustainable development of the Anhui Hualin Group.

As to academic progress, Anhui Hualin hired a number of experts and
consultants, laying the foundation for future development. In contrast to the
closure of most institutions due to the pandemic in earlier half of the year, the
new rehabilitation institutions in Feixi and Beicheng took the initiative to admit
children that required rehabilitation, which overfulfilled their designated quota.
During the pandemic, our rehabilitation centres continued their operations with
online rehabilitation service. After resumption of work, Anhui Hualin convinced
the Anhui Provincial Disabled Persons’ Federation to issue an official document to
include online rehabilitation service in the financial fund payment, which directly
increased the income of the rehabilitation centres during the pandemic period
and mitigated the adverse impacts to a certain extent. In 2020, Anhui Hualin
actively submitted tenders for new projects, including the management of Hefei
Compulsory Drug Rehabilitation Centre and the operation of Hefei Daoxiang
Village Home for the Disabled. At the same time, Anhui Hualin actively expanded
non-medical projects, including Hefei Kangaiyun Pharmacy, and Hefei Xiaguang
Primary School and Children’s Disability Rehabilitation and Nursery Project.
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Anhui Hualin placed tremendous effort in expanding its business and operational
presence in the Anhui Province. However, ever since the opening of Hefei
Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital in November 2018 (a rehabilitation specialty
hospital aiming to become a class Il rehabilitation hospital in the long term),
Anhui Hualin Group’s revenue growth was lower than previously anticipated. With
the rapid expansion in its business operations, Anhui Hualin Group also incurred
significantly fixed costs and capital expenditure. As a result, the management
anticipates that the rise in operating cost and expenditure will suppress its
revenue growth potential in the short to medium-term, which is expected to have
an adverse impact on the short-term management forecast in its profitability.
Therefore, in this regard, the Group recognised an impairment loss on goodwill of
RMB27.5 million in respect of the Anhui Hualin CGU during the current year.

In 2020, Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital continued to step up the effort
to implement new projects and new technologies such as Ilizarov surgery,
early rehabilitation treatment for critically ill patients, respiratory rehabilitation,
neurogenic bladder function rehabilitation, botulinum toxin injection technology
and transcranial magnetic stimulation treatment. As its specialised care
generates more impressive construction and treatment results, the hospital has
gradually built the specialty disciplines of Kanghua Hospital (i.e. the Department
of Paediatric Rehabilitation and the Department of Neurological Rehabilitation).

Hefei Jingu Hospital has established a team of in-house and external experts
with years of experience in burns rehabilitation, and built its own distinctive brand
in Anhui Province. Hefei Jingu Hospital established stable core clinical referral
business with the Burns Department of the first affiliated hospital of Anhui Medical
University, Hi-Tech Zone Campus. Kanghua Paediatric Rehabilitation was further
recognised by the disabled persons federations after the verification and audits
conducted by the Disabled Persons Federations in 2020. Hefei Jingu Hospital
became an influential brand in the field of rehabilitation of disabled children in
Anhui Province, and further increased its benefits to the overall society.

In the future, Anhui Hualin Group will continue to recruit and nurture talent
through various channels, constantly enhance its medical software and hardware
configuration, comprehensively improve the level of its medical services, further
increase its business revenue and implement strict control on costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Hospital Management Services

In August 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 60% equity interest of
Kangxin Hospital and it had become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. The Board considers that full infegration and consolidation of Kangxin
Hospital into the Group’s operations will enable the Group to benefit from the
operating prospects of Kangxin Hospital to a greater extent in the long term.
Since the acquisition of Kangxin Hospital, throughout the years 2019 and 2020,
up to the date of this annual report, the Group has no other management
arrangement with third party hospitals and the Company will continue to search
for appropriate opportunities to undertake hospital management operations to
the extent commercially desirable to the Group.

Sale of Pharmaceutical Products

The Group’s sale of pharmaceutical products segment includes a
pharmaceuticals and medical consumables trading company, established for
the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and medical consumables sales
directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and walk-in customers who
may not be the patients of the Group’s hospitals. In general, the operation of
this pharmaceutical company has lowered our overall cost of revenue through
centralising the purchase function and thereby increasing the overall margin
of the Group. Revenue from sales of pharmaceutical products for the Reporting
Period amounted to RMB17.54 million (2019: RMB18.58 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of 5.6%, primarily due to the downsizing of the Group’s
overall operations during the pandemic earlier in the year.

Elderly Healthcare Services

The Group’s other segment represents the provision of elderly healthcare services,
which commenced in 2018, with the strategy to establish a comprehensive elderly
healthcare centre located in Renkang Hospital, namely, Renkang Elderly Care
Centre initially with 60 registered beds to explore the potential of providing quality
high-end elderly care services to local residents in Houjie Town, Dongguan City.
In view of the accelerating aging population problem in the PRC that leads fo
the high development potential of the healthcare and elderly care industry, the
establishment of the Renkang Elderly Care Centre was the Group’s first presence
and extension of our big health concept business development. In April 2020, the
first phase of Renkang Elderly Care Centre formally started the medical insurance
settlement work and was awarded by the Provincial Department of Civil Affairs
as a four-star elderly care centre in the same month. In June 2020, the second
phase of the nursing home project passed the inspection of the Municipal Health
Supervision Bureau and the Civil Affairs Bureau. In August 2020, the second
phase of the elderly care centre commenced operation with the addition of 48
registered beds and became a designated medical institution covered by the
social insurance system.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Revenue from provision of elderly healthcare services for the Reporting Period
amounted to RMB6.62 million (2019: RMB1.67 million), representing a year-on-
year increase of 296.4% as a result of the increase in intake of patients during
the current year. Since Renkang Elderly Care Centre is still in its early stages
of operation, this segment is currently operating under loss. However, the
management expects that as the number of intakes increases with Renkang
Elderly Care Centre gradually gaining reputation in the local areq, the operating
performance will improve in the future.

In 2020, the Group has seized the opportunity to expand our business in elderly
healthcare services by successfully bidding for the land use rights of a land
parcel to develop comprehensive elderly healthcare medical facilities with a
particular focus on geriatric patients and rehabilitation. The Board expects that
such development will further enhance the Group’s capability in providing high-
end integrated medical care to meet the increasing demand for such services
in Guangdong Province (and in particular Dongguan City). The consideration for
the acquisition of the land parcel amounted to RMB82.6 million. Details of the
transaction are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 23 July 2020.

Industry Outlook and Strategy

In view of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC during year 2020,
the authorities at the national level have commensurately realigned the policy of
the entire healthcare industry. The pandemic and 5G technology have catalysed
the rise of internet medical treatments. During the COVID-19 pandemic, given
the environmental constraints, as well as the improving internet applications,
the number of people seeking online medical consultation has significantly
increased. Furthermore, medical informatisation has greatly improved the
efficiency and workflow of medical services. The emergence of medical kiosks in
our hospitals provides the conditions required for the transformation and upgrade
in medical institutions. The National Health Commission, the State Food and Drug
Administration and the National Health Security Administration have successively
issued the “Notice for Further Improving Medical Consultation and Treatment
Reservation System and Enhancing the Construction of Smart Hospitals” and
other related documents, providing a route to upgrade and transform medical
institutions. These initiatives also lay down key guidelines for construction of
internet hospitals. In response, our hospitals expedited the construction work of
internet hospitals.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The government promotes centralised procurement and use of pharmaceutical
products, and constantly introduces relevant policies aimed at lowering
purchase prices of pharmaceutical products and regulating the procurement
process. In April 2020, five government departments, including the National
Health Security Administration, issued the “Notice on Launching National Work
on Centralised Procurement and Use of the Second Batch of Pharmaceutical
Products”, pursuant to which it is stated that the standardised and normalised
method for centralised procurement of pharmaceutical products is established
to carry out the comprehensive reform of strengthening centralised procurement
and use of pharmaceutical products. Although such policy is only applicable to
public hospitals, the Group makes reference to and assesses the centralized
procurement model and its effectiveness, as such model may play a meaningful
role in further reducing procurement costs and regulating procurement
processes.

The use of medical insurance funds has improved. The Dongguan Municipal
Health Security Administration Bureau, the Dongguan Municipal Health Bureau
and the Dongguan Municipal Finance Bureau simultaneously issued the “Notice
on Printing and Distributing the Dongguan Municipal Efficiency Improvement
Programme of the Use of Medical Insurance Funds” in accordance with the
State Council's recommended guidance. The notice emphasises that medical
insurance funds must be utilised under the principle of “determining expenditure
based on income, while maintaining a balance between income and expenditure
with a surplus”. In this regard, the income and expenditure budget for medical
insurance funds shall be prepared scientifically and implemented strictly. For
the purposes of graded medical consultation and treatment based on the city
healthcare scheme driven by the medical insurance funds, such funds will
strategically purchase basic medical services, which will encourage designated
hospitals to actively regulate the medical consultation and treatment practices, as
well as to improve the momentum to pursue medical quality. This notice strives
for the transformation of designated hospitals from scale expansion to internal
development, for the purposes of controlling the unreasonable growth in medical
expenses and alleviating the financial burden on the insured. Furthermore,
this notice aims to improve the efficient use of medical insurance funds and to
advance the stable and sustainable development of the social medical security
system. By implementing the abovementioned policies, we can further regulate
medical consultation and treatment practices, and improve the quality of medical
services. In the meantime, we can make use of this opportunity to develop the
clinical trial advantages for various diseases, enhancing our competitiveness.
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2021 is a year of global economic uncertainties in the post COVID-19 eraq, kicking
off Kanghua Hospital's fourth five-year plan. After 15 years of operation, Kanghua
Hospital, under the leadership of its board of directors, has built up our own
teams, strong disciplines, an extensive network of connections, and a reputable
brand, based on our five core disciplines. Kanghua Hospital entered a period of
stable operations, and has proven to have strong innovative capability and risk
resilience. On the other hand, we also saw the rapid development of local public
hospitals in 2020, which was supported by government policies, especially from
the emergence of public hospitals as the primary source of healthcare under the
background of prevention of control of COVID-19. The reform of payment methods
under the medical insurance system forced us to change our business philosophy
from extensive growth of income to optimising our income structure. In terms of
the overall market, the competition among hospitals became more intense due
to the impact of COVID-19 and the structure of the industry on local population
and demographics, the division of market as a result of the development of
integrated health care systems, and the improvement of service capability of
primary healthcare hospitals. We also need to promptly address the historical
issues accumulated within our hospitals during our rapid development in the
past decades. In particular, with the infroduction of the new standards for the
assessment of hospital classification, we must be well prepared for the upcoming
assessment in 2024. As such, we must formulate a sound operational plan this
year to address the rapidly changing policies and market environment, based on
the actual situation at our hospitals.

The impact of COVID-19

In the beginning of 2020, an unexpected and unprecedented pandemic caused
by the COVID-19 has affected a wide range of industries and sectors in the PRC.
In response to the threats of COVID-19, the Group, as a hospital operator, has put
in place numerous precautionary measures to ensure the health and safety of
our employees and the stable operations of our hospitals to provide responsive
service to our patients.

At present, the pandemic in the PRC is considered well under control, however,
the Group will continuously monitor the latest developments and coordinates
actively with local healthcare authorities and organisations, as well as our
stakeholders, to continuously refine our policies, measures and best practices in
minimizing cross and secondary infections. As far as the Group’s businesses are
concerned, the Group’s hospitals remain operational as usual.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

With the continuous support of the PRC government to the healthcare system and
industry in recent years, favourable policies may inspire progressive changes in
the healthcare system and industry in respect to the COVID-19 situation, such as
accelerated development and application of internet medical services, integration
of the Chinese and Western Medicine, and promotion in vaccinations and medical
insurance. The Group intends to position itself o capture such opportunities, while
maintaining fast-paced expansion and delivery of high-quality services.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

In July 2020, the Group has succeeded in bidding for the land use rights of
a land parcel to undertake an integrated healthcare project developing a
comprehensive medical facility with a particular focus on geriatric patients and
rehabilitation to offer first-class geriatric and rehabilitation services in Dongguan
City. The Board expects that such development will further enhance the Group’s
capability in providing high-end integrated medical care to meet the increasing
demand for quality geriatric and rehabilitation services in Guangdong Province
(and in particular Dongguan City). The consideration for the acquisition of the land
parcel amounted to RMB82.6 million. Details of the transaction are disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 23 July 2020.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have other plans for
material investments or capital assets as of the date of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Segment Revenue

The Group generates revenue primarily from: (i) hospital services — providing
healthcare services through its owned hospitals, namely Kanghua Hospital,
Renkang Hospital and Kangxin Hospital, comprising inpatient healthcare services,
outpatient healthcare services and physical examination services; (i) rehabilitation
and other healthcare services — providing rehabilitation services to patients with
physical or mental disabilities and other healthcare related services including
elderly care and training service for the disabled; (iii) sale of pharmaceutical
products and medical consumables fo patients of the Group’s hospitals and walk-
in customers who may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals; and (iv) others
representing provision of elderly healthcare services.

The following tables below set forth the revenue, cost of revenue, gross profit (loss)
and gross profit (loss) margin of the Group by segment for the years indicated:

AREBETERATZABRIKE - (i)’&ﬁ?zﬁ&
B BREARGHEMER (A EES
CEREREELER) ZHERERS - ’7%
EF BB IR - P12 BB IR M AR ARTS ¢ (i)
FEREMBRRSE - /I BIBHERKRRB
ARHEEREEEMERBBRE 24
%¢ &I o Bk A AR AR 75 i) 17 A S [

BRAOBARKBSNEEERRANS
AREPHEER LB Miv EM (55
RHtE ARERTS) -

T%%%kﬁ”ﬁ%ﬁmif‘ziiil%ﬁ%a‘Bi\J"E’M&
@ WEARAR B (B18) REH (F18) =

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE_ZE_ZTF+_A=1+—HLEE
Rehabilitation
and other Sale of
Hospital healthcare  pharmaceutical
services services products Others Total
RENHAM
Bk BERY HEER Hity Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTR ARBTR ARBTT ARBTR
Revenue Yok 1,620,452 100,411 17,538 6,622 1,745,023
Cost of revenue WA A (1,391,229) (69,770) (14,015) (6,854) (1,481,868)
Gross profit (loss) EH(ER) 229,223 30,641 3,523 (232) 263,155
Gross profit (lossjmargin EN(ER) X 14.1% 30.5% 20.1% -3.5% 15.1%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 H=E —NF+ZA=1+—RHIEFE
Rehabilitation
and other Sale of
Hospital healthcare  pharmaceutical
services services products Others Total
FRIEREAM
Bl R BERY% HEER Hity wst
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARBTTT
Revenue Yz 1,848,168 8715 18,577 1,665 1,955,525
Cost of revenue [T (1,483,481) 67,566) (14,413) (646) 1,566,106)
Gross profit EH 364,687 19,549 4,164 1,019 389,419
Gross profit margin EFE 19.7% 22.4% 22.4% 61.1% 19.9%

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue from the Group’s hospital services amounted to RMB1,620.5 million
(2019: RMB1,848.2 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 12.3% and
accounting for 92.9% (2019: 94.5%) of the fotal revenue of the Group.

Revenue from hospital services comprised (i) revenue from inpatient healthcare
services amounted to RMB977.9 million (2019: RMB1,135.9 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of 13.9%, accounting for 56.0% (2019: 58.1%) of the
total revenue of the Group; (i) revenue from outpatient healthcare services
amounted fo RMB528.8 million (2019: RMB609.7 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 13.3%, accounting for 30.3% (2019: 31.2%) of the total revenue
of the Group; and (iii) revenue from physical examination services amounted to
RMBT113.7 million (2019: RMB102.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase
of 10.8%, accounting for 6.5% (2019: 5.2%) of the total revenue of the Group.
The decrease in revenue from hospital services is mainly due fo (i) decrease in
the number of inpatient, outpatient and physical examination visits due to the
COVID-19 pandemic in the first half of year 2020, and to certain extent, offset by
an increase in overall average spending; (i) the decline in revenue across all of
our major medical disciplines and our VIP special services. During the Reporting
Period, the revenue from our VIP special services accounted for approximately
9.0% (2019: 9.3%) of the Group’s total revenue and 9.7% (2019: 9.8%) of the
Group's revenue from our hospital services segment. The decline in revenue from
our hospital services is primarily caused by the decrease in the total number
of patient visits which led to the decrease in healthcare services income during
the period of the pandemic in the first half of year 2020. Although the number
of physical examination visits has declined, revenue from physical examination
services has increased as compared to year 2019. During the year, the Kanghua
Hospital has entered a number of new physical examination service contracts
with local corporates in Dongguan, and these service contracts are largely relates
to the provision of higher valued services. The management is of the view that
local corporates had raised health awareness for staff and employees after the
pandemic, and increased willingness in spending on regular check ups and
COVID-19 testing for employees. The Board is of the view that the decrease in
total number of patient visits in year 2020 is largely temporary and the number of
patient visits of our hospital has rebounded soon after the ease of the pandemic.
Business operations and medical services revenue have substantially returned to
normal level as compared with the corresponding period last year. The Board is
of the view that the fundamental demand for our services remained strong and
stable.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Revenue from rehabilitation and other healthcare services amounted to RMB100.4
million (2019: RMB87.1 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 15.3%,
accounting for 5.8% (2019: 4.5%) of the total revenue of the Group. Despite the
operational disturbance, including temporary closures of our rehabilitation
centres during the period of the COVID-19 pandemic, patient visits had
substantially rebounded since mid-2020. In addition, the increase in revenue is
largely contributed from Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital (a rehabilitation
specialty hospital aiming to be rated as a class lil rehabilitation hospital) as its
business operations began to mature and gain acceptance as well as reputation
from the local community and the government.

Revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables
amounted to RMB17.54 million (2019: RMB18.58 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 5.6%, accounting for 1.0% (2019: 0.9%) of the total revenue of
the Group. The pharmaceuticals and medical consumables trading operation
was set up for the purpose of streamlining pharmaceuticals and medical
consumables sales directly to the patients at the Group’s hospitals and walk-
in customers who may not be patients of the Group’s hospitals. The decrease in
revenue from the sale of pharmaceutical products and medical consumables is
primarily due to the decrease in the number of outpatient visits in both Kanghua
Hospital and Renkang Hospital during the period of the pandemic in year 2020.

Revenue from the others segment represents income from provision of elderly
healthcare services at Renkang Elderly Care Centre, which amounted to RMB6.62
million (2019: RMB1.67 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 296.4%,
accounting for 0.4% (2019: 0.1%) of the total revenue of the Group. In June 2020,
the second phase of the nursing home project passed the inspection of the
Municipal Health Supervision Bureau and the Civil Affairs Bureau. In August
2020, the second phase of the elderly care centre commenced operation with
the addition of 48 registered beds and became a designated medical institution
covered by the social insurance system. The increase in revenue is mainly
attributable to the increase in our operating capacity and intake of patients during
the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services (consisting of inpatient healthcare
services, outpatient healthcare services and physical examination services)
primarily consisted of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables, staff cost,
depreciation, service expenses, utilities expenses, rental expenses and other
costs. Cost of revenue of the Group’s hospital services segment decreased to
RMB1,391.2 million (2019: RMB1,483.5 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 6.2%. The decrease in cost of revenue for hospital services segment
is mainly attributable to the decline in hospital service operations during the year
due to the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, which caused the reduction in certain
variable costs including cost of pharmaceuticals and medical consumables as
well as certain utilities expenses and staff related costs.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s rehabilitation and other healthcare services
segment amounted to RMB69.8 million (2019: RMB67.6 million) representing a
year-on-year increase of 3.3%, and primarily consisted of staff costs, medical
consumables, depreciation, utilities and rental expenses. The increase in cost
of revenue is in line with the increase in revenue for the year, mainly as a result
of increase in direct staff headcounts and departmental costs including direct
consumables and office expenses.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s sale of pharmaceutical products segment
amounted to RMB14.0 million (2019: RMB14.4 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of 2.8%, mainly represent cost of purchase of pharmaceutical
products, which was in line with the decrease of revenue.

Cost of revenue of the Group’s others segment (provision of elderly healthcare
services at Renkang Elderly Care Centre) amounted to RMB6.9 million (2019:
RMBO.6 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 960.8%, which mainly
represent the cost of services including direct staff cost and consumables
incurred at the elderly care centre. The significant increase is due to the official
commencement in operation of the centre in late-2019 with substantial increase
in staff headcounts and full deployment of its services in 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and staff cost accounted for approximately 27.6% (2019: 30.8%), 26.7% (2019:
27.9%) and 31.8% (2019: 30.1%), respectively, of the total cost of revenue of the
Group. Our total staff related costs including salary, bonus and other benefits
had increased slightly by 0.2% as compared with the prior year. Although the
pandemic during the first half of 2020 had caused temporary closures in certain
operations or substantial drop in our business, however, our frontline headcount
remains relatively stable, as we believe the pandemic was temporary and it is
more important to maintain high level of staff morale through a stable workforce.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Total gross profit of the Group amounted to RMB263.2 million (2019: RMB389.4
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 32.4%. The overall gross profit
margin decreased to 15.1% (2019: 19.9%), primarily due fo:

1. the decrease in overall patient visits and revenue of our major medical
healthcare disciplines form our hospital service operations due to the
COVID-19 pandemic during the first half of 2020, while our major cost of
revenue, such as direct staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, rental
and utilities expenses remains relatively fixed;

2. the unexpected and unprecedented pandemic causing a sudden pause
and slowdown in the Group’s business operations across all segments.
However, the total number of our staff headcounts have not been reduced
during the time of the pandemic with a view that the effects of the outbreak
was temporary and short. Although, the local government has granted a
concession in staff social security contribution during the year, our overall
staff costs remain relatively the same compared with prior year;

3. although there is an overall increase in the average spending of patients
from our inpatient and outpatient business for the current year, such
increase was caused by the fall in patient visits with lower average
spending that required non-emergency medical services during the time of
the pandemic. Such effect did not fully compensate the loss in revenue; and

4. Kangxin Hospital and Renkang Elderly Healthcare Centre both continued
running at negative gross margin as there are still in their early stage of
ramping up their operations and reputation, while they incurred a large
amount of fixed medical staff headcounts and staff costs, overhead
expenditure and other direct fixed costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Key Operational Information of our Owned Hospitals

The follow table sets forth certain key operational information of each of the
hospitals owned by the Group for the years indicated:

SRR EC) S il
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TRIRFREEREBEENEMNE
ROETIBUEER -

For the year ended 31 December

BE+=A=t+-ALEE

Change 2020 2019
) —EZEF —E-NEF
Inpatient healthcare services {Ehr E R AR
Inpatient visits: EASYN/NE
Kanghua Hospital FREE R -26.1% 44,013 59,578
Renkang Hospital CEER -20.5% 11,243 14,135
Kangxin Hospital RO EE BT -28.1% 1,333 1,855
Total inpatient visits BT AR -25.1% 56,589 75,568
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFEHRZ (AR T)
Kanghua Hospital FREE B +15.6% 18,570.5 16,061.0
Renkang Hospital CEER +22.7% 11,382.2 9,277.5
Kangxin Hospital BB -5.2% 24,456.9 25,794.6
Outpatient healthcare services P2 B R R 7%
Outpatient visits: F'EJ 2 NIR
Kanghua Hospital FREEEE -22.2% 1,039,428 1,335,875
Renkang Hospital CEER -24.2% 304,127 401,030
Kangxin Hospital K/L\EB‘ -8.9% 14,961 16,415
Total outpatient visits SEZ-YNUN -22.5% 1,358,516 1,753,320
Average spending per visit (RMB) BAXRFHRZ (ARET)
Kanghua Hospital EREEERT +11.2% 418.7 376.6
Renkang Hospital CEER +15.8% 288.1 248.7
Kangxin Hospital }i/uﬁﬂ‘ -5.9% 400.2 4253
Physical examination services S 1 AR 7%
Physical examination visits: BER AR
Kanghua Hospital BT -24.5% 87,005 115,170
Renkang Hospital CEER +14.0% 80,324 70,464
Total physical examination visits BimE AR -9.9% 167,329 185,634
Average spending per visit (RMB) BARFHREZ(ARET)
Kanghua Hospital FREEE +45.9% 1,203.7 825.1
Renkang Hospital ZEER +4.5% m.7 106.9
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

Other Income

The other income of the Group primarily consisted of bank and other interest
income, investment income from financial assets at FVTPL, government subsidies,
fixed operating lease income (rental income), clinical trial and related income
and others. In 2020, other income amounted to RMB41.2 million (2019: RMB29.6
million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 39.2%, primarily
due to (i) an increase in investment income from financial assets at FVTPL of 13.3%
to RMB16.4 million (2019: RMB14.5 million), which represents realised investment
returns from our portfolio investment account and interest income from our
principal-protected structured deposits with banks in the PRC; (i) a decrease
in rental income to RMB5.4 million (2019: RMB6.2 million), mainly represents
rental income from our staff quarter (temporary rental concession was granted
to our staff during the pandemic); (iii) an increase in government subsidies to
RMB6.3 million (2019: RMBO.7 million), primarily due to subsidies received from
government bodies during the pandemic and other subsidies from operation of
our rehabilitation centres and hospitals as well as research and development
projects; (iv) an increase in clinical trail and related income to RMB3.1 million (2019:
RMBO0.8 million); and (v) an increase in bank and other interest income fo RMB4.0
million (2019: RMB2.8 million) mainly due to more idle bank balances being
placed as fixed bank deposits during the year.

As part of the Group’s cash management to maximise return on idle cash, the
Group invested in certain principal-protected structured deposit products issued
by a PRC commercial bank and portfolio investment fund (all classified as financial
assets at FVTPL) to achieve higher interest income and capital gain return without
interfering with business operations or capital expenditures to earn better return
on our excess cash balance, which is consistent with our cash management

policy.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Other Expenses, Gains and Losses

The other expenses, gains and losses of the Group primarily consisted of fair
value gain on financial assets at FVTPL, loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, donations and net exchange gain/loss. In 2020, other expenses,
gains and losses amounted to a net loss of RMB5.1 million (2019: net gain of
RMB8.6 million), primarily due to (i) a decrease in fair value gain on financial
assets at FVTPL to RMBA4.1 million (2019: RMB8.7 million); (i) an increase in loss
on disposal of property, plant and equipment to RMB1.5 million (2019: RMBO.2
million); (iii) donations made during the year of RMB2.8 million (2019: RMB2.0
million); and (iv) a recorded net exchange loss for the year of RMB4.9 million (2019:
net exchange gain of RMB2.2 million) mainly arising from our Hong Kong dollar
denominated financial assets.

Net Reversal (Net Provision) of Impairment Losses under Expected Credit
Loss Model (ECL)

During the Reporting Period, impairment losses under expected credit loss
model recorded a net reversal of provision of RMB1.8 million (2019: net provision
of RMBO0.6 million). Over the past few years, the Group has increased efforts
to recover overdue debts including recovering receivables from patients
through legal actions, as well as tightening credit reviews given to corporate
customers. The net reversal of provision is mainly attributable to (i) the decrease
on overall balance of accounts receivables at the end of the reporting period;
(i) an improved aging of the Group’s accounts receivables; and {iii) certain long
outstanding debts has been recovered by the Group during the year.

The Group collectively assesses ECL for the accounts receivables, except for
accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance scheme and
certain credit-impaired debtors which are assessed for ECL individually. The
provision rates are based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various
receivables that have similar loss patterns. The collective assessment is based
on the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable available without undue costs or
effort. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking information are considered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR D

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of accounts
receivables and considers the debts that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality. Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to the customers for whom there was no history of default. As part of
the Group’s credit risk management, the Group uses accounts receivables’
aging to assess the impairment for its accounts receivables except for accounts
receivables from the PRC government's social insurance schemes and certain
credit-impaired debtors of which ECL are assessed individually. These receivables
consist of a large number of small patients with common risk characteristics that
are representative of the patients” abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms.

Impairment of Goodwill

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recognised (i) goodwill
of RMB56.6 million arising from the acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group, which
has been allocated to the CGU of rehabilitation and other healthcare services
business (the Anhui Hualin CGU); and (i) goodwill of RMB125.4 million arising
from the acquisition of Kangxin Hospital, which has been allocated to the CGU of
hospital services business (the Kangxin Hospital CGU). As at 30 June 2020 (the
Group’s interim reporting date] and 31 December 2020, the Board conducted a
review of the carrying values of the aforementioned CGUs.

The recoverable amounts of the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU
have been determined based on a value in use calculation by references
to valuation reports prepared by an independent professional valuer. The
calculations use the respective cash flow projections of Anhui Hualin Group and
Kangxin Hospital based on their financial budgets approved by the management
of the Group. The key assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount rates,
which are estimated based on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market. As at 30 June 2020, after taking into consideration of the historical
performances and most recent actual performances of the Anhui Hualin CGU
and Kangxin Hospital CGU, the Board considers that the estimated medium-term
future growth in revenue and results of Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital
will be lower than previously anticipated. Accordingly, the respective aggregate
recoverable amount of Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU are below
their aggregate carrying amount. During the six months ended 30 June 2020, the
Group recognised impairment losses of RMB27.5 million (for the year ended 31
December 2019: nil) and RMB48.5 million (impairment loss of RMB60.0 million is
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2019) related to goodwill allocated to
the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2020, the Board conducted a further review of
the carrying values of the aforementioned CGUs. With respect to Anhui Hualin
CGU, as actual performance of the Anhui Hualin Group for the full year ended
31 December 2020 achieved better results due to its significant rebound in its
revenue, the Board considered no further impairment is required in respect
of the goodwill allocated to the Anhui Hualin CGU. However, with respect to
Kangxin Hospital CGU, after taken into consideration of the most recent actual
performances of the Kangxin Hospital CGU, the Board considers that the
estimated medium-term future growth in revenue and results of Kangxin Hospital
will be further lowered. Hence, additional impairment loss of RMB1.4 million has
been made for the second half of year 2020, and the total impairment loss for
the Reporting Period amounted to RMB49.9 million has been charged to profit or
loss.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the Anhui
Hualin CGU is approximately RMB29.1 million (2019: RMB56.6 million) and the
Kangxin Hospital CGU is approximately RMB15.5 million (2019: RMB65.4 million).

Anhui Hualin Group was acquired by the Group in March 2018, and since then
it is under rapid operational and business expansion. As at 30 June 2020, the
Board is of the view that the primary factors resulting in the change in future cash
flow projections and the impairment of goodwill relating to the Anhui Hualin CGU
are as follows:

(il the actual revenue performance of Anhui Hualin Group during the year
2019 and in particular, the first half of 2020 was lower than previously
anticipated. Anhui Hualin Group has undergone rapid business diversion
and expansion over the past year, however, the number of patient visits
and revenue growth have not reached our initial management forecast.
Despite the fact that the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic were only
temporary, the management have reduced the expected growth rates in
revenue of its hospitals and rehabilitation centres operations;

il  ever since the opening of Hefei Kanghua Rehabilitation Hospital in
November 2018, the stimulation of revenue growth for Anhui Hualin
Group, particularly in the first half of year 2020 was lower than previously
forecasted. At the same time, such rapid expansion has incurred significant
burden on various fixed costs and capital expenditure; and
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i) the local competition has been intense in the Anhui region, in particular, the
competition for healthcare workers, which may have further pressure on
staff costs in the short-term.

Kangxin Hospital commenced operations in March 2017, and 2020 was its
fourth year of operation. As at 30 June 2020 and 31 December 2020, the Board
is of the view that the primary factors resulting in the change in future cash flow
projections and the impairment of goodwill relating to the Kangxin Hospital CGU
are as follows:

() despite the COVID-19 pandemic was only temporary, the actual revenue
performance of Kangxin Hospital during the year 2019, and in particular
during the first half of 2020, was lower than previously anticipated. The
number of inpatient and outpatient visits as well as the number of surgeries
operated in 2020 had not reached our initial forecast numbers;

il competition for quality healthcare professionals in the Chongging region is
very keen and as Kangxin Hospital is still at an early stage of operation and
developing its brand and reputation, it remains a challenge for Kangxin
Hospital to recruit well-known and reputable doctors that are conducive to
aftracting patient visits. During the Reporting Period, Kangxin Hospital has
lost certain key medical experts and talent, which to a certain extent have
caused further decline in patient visits at Kangxin Hospital. It is expected
that there will be an adverse impact on our short-term management
forecast in revenue growth. As a result, we have reduced the expected
growth in number of patient visits in Kangxin Hospital in the short-term; and

(il  Kangxin Hospital has incurred fixed costs at a rate that is faster than its
revenue growth as originally anticipated. In particular, certain fixed costs,
including wages, repairs and maintenance and other fixed administrative
expenses have increased at a higher rate than expected due to market
conditions and the competitive landscape in Chongging.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In view of the slow-down in revenue growth and the higher rate of costs increase
for both Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin Hospital, the management considers
probable that there will be a decrease in the future cash flow projections in the
short-to medium-term at time of the respective assessment dates. Impairment
of goodwill in relation to the acquisitions of Anhui Hualin Group and Kangxin
Hospital is assessed by comparing the recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs
to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the higher of the value in use or
fair value less costs of disposal, to its carrying values at the end of the Reporting
Period. The value in use of the CGUs is determined by the Board based on the
present value of estimated future cashflows to be generated from the CGUs and
with reference to the valuation reports prepared by an independent professional
valuer, which was approved by the Board. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances resulting in downward
revision of future cash flows, an impairment loss may arise. The management
of the Group adopts significant judgement and assumptions in the value in
use calculation for estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGUs. Such key
assumptions include growth rates and pre-tax discount rates. The management
and the Board will closely monitor the situation, and make adjustments as
appropriate should future market activities and conditions indicate that such
adjustments are required.

As disclosed in this annual report, the COVID-19 pandemic has affected almost
all industries and sectors. The situation has resulted in some businesses fo
temporarily cease operations for a significant amount of time during the first half
of year 2020. At present, our hospitals and rehabilitation centres have resumed
normal operation and are largely operating as usual with stringent and restrictive
policies and controls being implemented. The Board is of the view the operations
and adverse financial conditions of the Group as a whole for the year are largely
temporary. The effects of the COVID-19 pandemic is less likely to be permanent,
primarily because the bulk of our revenue from healthcare services are not
directly correlated to the economic cycles and the overall demand of the Group’s
healthcare services (particularly those that are essential to health and well-being)
is likely to remain strong in the medium to long term.
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Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group primarily consist of staff costs, repairs
and maintenance expenses, office expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
rental expenses, utilities expenses, entertainment and travelling expenses and
other expenses. In 2020, administrative expenses amounted to RMB227.8
million (2019: RMB232.3 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 1.9%, primarily due to (i) a decrease in administrative staff related
costs to RMB79.6 million (2019: RMB89.0 million) as a result of decrease in bonus
payment and social security insurance contribution during the year, however,
our number of administrative staff headcounts remains relatively the same; {ii)
an increase in depreciation and amortisation fo RMB36.2 million (2019: RM32.4
million); and (i) a decrease in overall office and administration costs as well as
other utilities expenses as a result of costs savings as well as temporary closures
and reduction of our operations during the time of the pandemic.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year amounted to RMB22.0 million (2019: RMB17.2 million).
Finance costs for the current year represents (i) interest on bank loans raised
during the year of RMB15.3 million (2019: RMB5.4 million); (ii) the interest element
relating to lease liabilities charged to profit or loss during the current year due to
application of IFRS 16 relating fo leases of RMB12.5 million (2019: RMB13.3 million);
and (i) adjustment by amount of interest capitalised in the cost of qualifying
assets of RMB5.8 million (2019: RMB1.5 million). The increase was finance costs is
primarily due fo the increase in the Group’s bank borrowings during the year.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group primarily consisted of PRC enterprise
income tax and Hong Kong Profits Tax. In 2020, income tax expenses amounted
to RMB24.0 million (2019: RMB68.8 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 65.2%. The subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC are generally
subject to income tax rate of 25% on their respective taxable income. Our
effective tax rate for the Reporting Period was -91.9% (2019: 58.6%). The decrease
in income tax expenses was primarily due the decrease in profits generated
at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital during the year, as well as, the tax
effect of tax losses not recognised for losses incurred of Kangxin Hospital, as well
as, the tax effect of impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(Loss) Profit for the Year

The Group recorded loss for the Reporting Period amounting to RMB50.1 million
(2019: profit of RMB48.7 million), and loss attributable to shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB25.4 million (2019: profit attributable to shareholders
of RMB74.3 million). The loss is primarily due to the continuing losses incurred
by Kangxin Hospital, the decrease in profits generated at Kanghua Hospital and
Renkang Hospital, and impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill of
RMB77.4 million (2019: RMB60.0 million) for the current year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Property, Plant and Equipment, Rights-of-Use Assets and Deposits Paid
for Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment

During the Reporting Period, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
and incurred expenditure on construction in progress of RMB82.9 million (2019:
RMB76.6 million) and RMB86.9 million (2019: RMB118.3 million), respectively,
mainly for the purpose of upgrading and expanding the service capacity of the
Group’s hospital and rehabilitation services operations and construction cost
incurred of Phase Il medical facility at our Kangxin Hospital.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had right-of-use assets of RMB382.8 million
(2019: RMB323.1 million) which includes leasehold lands of RMB231.5 million
(2019: RMB150.4 million) and leasehold land and buildings relating to leases of
RMB151.3 million (2019: RMB172.7 million) recognised in accordance with IFRS 16.
During the year, the Group acquired land use rights of a land parcel to undertake
an integrated healthcare project to develop comprehensive elderly healthcare
medical facilities in Dongguan City for the total consideration of RMB85.1 million.
In addition, during the year, the Group entered into new lease agreements for the
use of properties in the PRC ranging from 3 to 7 years. The Group is required to
make fixed monthly payments. On lease commencement, the Group recognised
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB8.3 million (2019: RMB8.4 million)
each relating o those new leases.
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At 31 December 2020, the Group had deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment amounting to RMB91.2 million (2019: RMB109.6 million). The
deposits mainly represent deposits paid for construction cost of Phase Il medical
facility at our Kangxin Hospital and amount paid for acquisition of new medical
equipment and other new facilities as the Group continues to upgrade its medical
facilities and expand its operation capacity.

Accounts and Other Receivables

The account receivables of the Group primarily consisted of balances due from
social insurance funds, certain corporate customers and individual patients.
As at 31 December 2020, accounts receivables decreased to RMB204.7 million
(2019: RMB264.2 million), of which 76.9% (2019: 74.0%) were aged within 90 days.
Average accounts receivables turnover days for the current year is 49.0 days
(2019: 41.1 days). The decrease in accounts receivables and increase in accounts
receivable turnover days is primarily due fo (i) decline in revenue of our hospitals
operations; and (ii) delays in settlement from Dongguan social insurance
funds and certain corporate customers. The management is of the view that
the increase in average accounts receivables turnover days is temporary and
primarily due to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year.

The other receivables of the Group primarily consisted of prepayments to
suppliers, interest receivables and others. As at 31 December 2020, other
receivables increased to RMB44.0 million (2019: RMB36.4 million) primarily due
to (i) an increase in prepayments to suppliers to RMB16.4 million (2019: RMB9.9
million); and (i) an increase in other receivables mainly due to expansion of the
Group's operations of our rehabilitation and other healthcare services segment
and others segment (elderly healthcare services).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Accounts and Other Payables and Provision

The accounts and other payables and provision of the Group primarily consisted
of accounts payables, accrued expenses, receipts in advance, payables for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, provision for medical dispute
claims, other tax payables and others. As at 31 December 2020, accounts and
other payables and provisions increased to RMB516.9 million (2019: RMB488.5
million) primarily due to: (i) slight decrease in accounts payable to RMB256.8
million (2019: RMB262.0 million) as a result of decreases in our hospital services
operations and purchases of supplies during the year; (i) increase of accrued
expenses to RMB94.0 million (2019: RMB83.1 million) mainly because of increases
in operational and administrative charges; (i) an increase in receipt in advance
to RMB100.7 million (2019: RMB61.0 million) by reason of an increase in temporary
funds received from social security insurance fund; (iv) a decrease in payables for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment to RMB41.7 million (2019: RMB57.4
million) owing to reduction in medical equipment purchases and improvement
works made to our owned-hospitals during the year; and (v) an increase in
provision for medical dispute claims to RMB3.0 million (2019: RMBO0.4 million).

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded net current assets of RMB294.4
million (2019: RMB378.2 million) and net assets position of RMB1,407.5 million
(2019: RMB1,457.6 million).
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position with cash and cash
equivalents of RMB179.7 million (2019: RMB223.9 million) and fixed bank deposits
of RMB5.0 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB37.0 million). The Group
continues to generate steady cash inflow from operations and coupled with
sufficient cash and bank balances, in the opinion of the Directors, the Group will
have adequate and sufficient liquidity and financial resources to meet the working
capital requirement of the Group for at least the next twelve months following the
end of the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2020, as part of the Group’s cash management activities,
the Group had investments (classified as financial assets at FVTPL) in aggregate
of RMB467.7 million (2019: RMB477.2 million), primarily consisting of, (i) portfolio
investment fund of RMB67.7 million (2019: RMB77.2 million), representing a
portfolio investment fund, the underlying portfolio of which included a mixture of
cash and shares that are primarily listed in Hong Kong; and (i) structured short-
term bank deposits of RMB400.0 million (2019: RMB400.0 million), representing
principal-protected products issued by a PRC commercial bank.

As part of the Group’s cash management policy to manage excess cash, the
Group purchases investment products from financial institutions to achieve
higher interest income without interfering with business operations or capital
expenditures. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in scrutinizing any decision of
the Group to purchase investment products. The investment products should
generally satisfy the following criteriq, (i) its term should generally not exceed one
year; (ii) it should not interfere with the Group’s business operations or capital
expenditures; liii] it should be issued by a reputable bank which the Group has
a long-term relationship, preferably exceeding five years; and (iv) the underlying
investment portfolio should generally be low risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cash Flow Analysis

The table below sets forth the information as extracted from the consolidated
statement of cash flow of the Group for the years indicated:
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RMB’000 RMB'000
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Net cash generated from operating activities KEERBFBHR e FE 275,292 98,178
Net cash used in investing activities WEEESMAE (182,152) (212,882)
Net cash (used in) from financing activities MEER (FTA) AR (138,215) 135,105
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents IR & MR & S B W O ) & I1F 58 (45,075) 20,401

Net cash generated from operating activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash generated from operating activities
amounted to RMB275.3 million (2019: RMB98.2 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of 180.4%. Although, there is a deterioration of performance in
Adjusted EBITDA for the Reporting Period, however, changes in working capital
including decreases in inventories, accounts and other receivables and accounts
and other payables as well as decrease in income tax paid have caused a
substantial an increase in net generated from operating activities.

Net cash used in investing activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash used in investing activities amounted to
RMB182.2 million (2019: RMB212.9 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of 14.4%. The decrease is primarily aftributable fo (i) a decrease in cash used in
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment to RMB33.8 million
(2019: RMB76.6 million); (i) net withdrawal of fixed bank deposits during the year;
(iii) a net decrease in purchase of financial assets at FVTPL; and (iv) partly offset
by payments made for acquisition of land use rights (rights-of-use assets) in the
current year of RMB85.1 million (2019: nil).
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Net cash (used in) from financing activities

During the Reporting Period, the net cash used in financing activities amounted
to RMB138.2 million (2019: net cash generated from financing activities of
RMB135.1 million) and primarily consists of (i net repayments to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries of RMB120.0 million (2019: net advances of RMB7.7
million); (i) no dividends was paid in the current year (2019: dividend payment of
RMB53.4 million); (i) raised less new bank loans in the current year of RMB50.0
million (2019: new bank loans raised of RMB235.4 million); and (iv) increase in
interest paid and repayment of bank loans during the current year.

Significant Investment, Acquisition and Disposal

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant investment,
acquisition or disposal during the Reporting Period.

Cash Management Activities

As part of the Group’s cash management, the Group has from time to time
purchased investment products issued by a reputable PRC commercial bank
with terms ranging from 61 days to 117 days and portfolio investment funds to
achieve higher interest income without interfering with business operations or
capital expenditures. The investment products are not rated by any credit rating
agency but is classified as low-risk by the issuing bank and may involve liquid
listed securities. The Group carefully balances the risks and returns associated
with the investment products when making the investment decisions. The senior
management of the Group is closely involved in scrutinizing any decision of the
Group to purchase investment products.

Capital Expenditures

The Group regularly makes capital expenditures to expand its operations,
maintain its medical facilities and improve its operating efficiency. Capital
expenditures primarily consist of purchases of property, plant and equipment.
The capital expenditures of the Group during the year were RMB169.8 million
(2019: RMB194.9 million). The Group has financed its capital expenditures mainly
through cash flows generated from operating activities and bank loans.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

USE OF PROCEED FROM THE INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s H shares were listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 8
November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the initial public offering
of its H shares amounts to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and
all related expenses. The net proceeds from the initial public offering have been
and will be utilised in accordance with the purposes set out in the Prospectus.

Up to 31 December 2020, of the net proceeds from the initial public offering, (i)
RMB71.6 million, representing approximately 9.2% of the net proceeds, has been
utilised and used as general working capital; (i) RMB134.7 million, representing
approximately 17.2% of the net proceeds, has been utilised and used on
expansion of our current operations and upgrading our hospital’s facilities; and
(iii) RMB158.8 million, representing approximately 20.3% of the net proceeds, has
been utilised and used for acquisition and potential acquisition of businesses.
As at 31 December 2020, out of the balance of the unutilised net proceeds of
RMB417.5 million, part of such proceeds has been used to purchase certain
financial products (classified as financial assets at FVTPL) to achieve higher interest
income and capital return without interfering with our business operations or
capital expenditures to earn better return on our excess cash balance, and the
remaining balance has been kept at the bank accounts of the Group (included in
bank balances and cash). As at the date of this annual report, the Company does
not anticipate any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in
the Prospectus.
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The following table sets forth the intended purposes for the net proceeds from the
initial public offering, the utilisation of such proceeds and the timeline of utilisation

estimated by the management:

Net proceeds
from the initial public
offering intended

fAETHE) B HIRR -

TREIERFAREMBRBFENHE
ERZ REMBREANSRBEANEEE

for the purpose Expected timeline
as disclosed Utilisation up to for the utilisation
in the Prospectus 31 December 2020 Unutilised amount  of the unutilised
Purpose (RMB million) (RMB million] (RMB million] ~ amount "
BRERFRERE Bz-Z-ZF
BENERDRRE TZA=+-8f
FBRERE ARR ABAEE FERAHA
Jiiked (AR¥BETRT) (AR¥BER) (ARMEER) SENEHHRNE
Expansion of the Group’s current operations and 70.4 8.5 619 By the end of
upgrading of hospital facilifies 31 December 2021
BAXKERBER LA RBRRE RZZB-—F+_R
=t+—H#
Expansion of operating capacity and capability 2817 126.2 155.5 By the end of
in multi-disciplinary specialised freatment and 31 December 2021
diagnosis and upgrade of medical facilities R-ZE-—%+-R
BREEENRZEMDRENAR =t+—Ra
FRBRE R
Expansion of hospital management operations 78.3 - 78.3 By the end of
BABRERZE 31 December 2021
RZE_—%+_R
=t+—BA
Expansion of healthcare operations in the PRC 2739 158.8 151 By the end of
through selective mergers and acquisifions 31 December 2021
BRERMOBEARTENBREEY RZE-—F+-A
=t—RBA
Working capital and other general corporate 78.3 76 6.7  Bytheend of
purposes 31 December 2021
LEES RHEM—MRARRE RZFE-—F+=A
=t+—HA
Total 782.6 365.1 475
@5t

Note: Such timeline is an estimation of the management only and is subject to change on

account of the Group’s operating conditions and market conditions from time to time.
In particular, it should not be taken as an indication that any potential transaction is

under negotiation and/or will materialise.

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

M AEBREAEEENMGARART AL

B e @R R TR T AR AL
HE HEABWERA/EMEER ZERE
R REMEER S EEENLR -



Management Discussion and Analysis

INDEBTEDNESS

Bank Loans

In 2019, the Group obtained new bank loan facilities in the aggregate amount
of RMB620.0 million for the purpose of funding the development of the Phase I
medical facility and financing the operations of Kangxin Hospital, in which, up to
31 December 2020, RMB285.4 million has been drawn down. As at 31 December
2020, the Group had secured bank loans of carrying amount of RMB257.8 million
(2019: RMB216.3 million). The principal agreements underlying such bank loan
facilities include the following:

(i)

a RMB420.0 million fixed asset facility agreement (&l & & E & 3 & &)
with Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, Chongging Jiangbei
Branch, pursuant fo which RMB169.4 million has been drawn down in 2019
and RMB50.0 million has been drawn down in 2020. The bank loan carried
an interest rate at the benchmark lending rate offered by the People’s Bank
of China (adjusted annually from the drawn down date) and is secured
by shares pledged over the entire equity in Kangxin Hospital held by the
Company and its non-controlling shareholder. As at 31 December 2020,
the effective interest rate of the secured bank loan is 5.84% (2019: 5.9%) per
annum. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the borrowing
in respect of such arrangement amounted to RMB204.6 million (2019:
RMBI155.6 million); and
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(i) o RMB200.0 million financial leasing agreement (g & 1 & & [[) with
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co., Ltd., pursuant to
which RMB66.0 million has been drawn down in 2019 (2020: nil). The
loan carried an interest rate at the benchmark lending rate offered by the
People’s Bank of China plus 5%, which was fixed at the drawn down date.
This agreement involves a sale and lease back arrangement over certain
medical equipment assets of Kangxin Hospital, pursuant to which such
assets have been transferred to the lender and leased back to Kangxin
Hospital, with an option exercisable by Kangxin Hospital to purchase the
assets at a nominal consideration upon the maturity of the lease. Despite
that such arrangement assumes the legal form of a lease, the Group
retains effective control over such assets; thus, the Group accounted for
such arrangement as a secured loan at amortised cost at an effective
interest rate of 6.74% (2019: 6.74%) per annum and repayable in quarterly
variable instalments until September 2027. In addition, such assets have
been pledged to the lender as security throughout the loan period. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amount of the borrowing in respect of such
arrangement amounted to RMB53.2 million (2019: RMB60.7 million). As at
31 December 2020, the property, plant and equipment with net book value
of RMB45.5 million (2019: RMB58.8 million) had been pledged to secure the
banking facility granted.

In connection with the bank loan facilities above, certain of our controlling
shareholders, a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and a related
company controlled by certain of our controlling shareholders provided
guarantees and undertakings in favour of the relevant lender. The financial
assistance provided by certain of our controlling shareholders is exempted from
the connected transaction requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by
virtue of Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

The Group is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary of business
primarily arising from medical disputes brought on by patients. Provision for
medical disputes is made based on the status of potential and active claims
outstanding as at the end of the relevant period, and primarily taking into
account any judicial appraisal or court determination against the Group. As at 31
December 2020, the total stated claim amount of the Group’s on-going medical
disputes was approximately RMB6.8 million (2019: RMB5.8 million) and there
were certain medical disputes without claim amount stated. Based on the Group’s
assessment, during the year ended 31 December 2020, approximately RMB3.0
million (2019: RMBO0.4 million) had been provided and included in accounts and
other payables of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no contingent liabilities or guarantees
that would have a material impact on the financial position or operation of the
Group.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with
net book value of RMB45.5 million (2019: RMB58.8 million) had been pledged fo
secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

Capital commitments

The capital commitments of the Group were primarily attributable fo construction
costs relating to the expansion and renovation of the Group’s medical facilities.
As at 31 December 2020, the capital commitments in respect of property, plant
and equipment contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements were RMB255.5 million (2019: RMB332.0 million).

Financial Instruments

The Group's financial instruments primarily consisted of accounts and other
receivables, financial assets at FVTPL, fixed bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, restricted bank balances, accounts and other payables, amounts due to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank loans and lease liabilities. The
management of the Company manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Exposure to fluctuation in Exchange rates P =% & 5 e

The proceeds of raised by the Company in its initial public offering of its H Shares ~ ANAGHRKR B X AFREEMEERN B HIE
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The Group deposits cerfain of its financial A ITETE » KEB B TERIBHERME
assefs in Hong Kong dollars, and is mainly exposed to fluctuation in exchange & @ TE2F BT H ARBEER BN L -
rates of Hong Kong dollars against RMB. The Group is therefore exposed fo [ It AN B g N E &L -

foreign exchange risk.

The Group has not used any derivatives financial instruments to hedge againstits ~ ANEBE W K ERTRHITES R T A mE
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency risk by closely & ¥R o B 12 [E BB V) BB HNE I8
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will consider hedging EHEFRELEEKRAR Y5 EEEE T

significant foreign currency exposure should such need arise. TR E RINE A EITE I -
Gearing Ratio EERERRLX

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio (fotal interest-bearing bank RZE_TF+-_F=+—H &~EEE
loans divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%) was 18.3% (2019: 14.8%). EABELXR GIERTEREER N EER
I LA 100%) £18.3% (ZZ— N4 1 14.8%) °
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the operation of private hospitals, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, sales of pharmaceutical products
and provision of other services (including elderly healthcare services) in the PRC.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are
sef out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing,
a fair review of the Group’s business during the year, and the probable future
business development of the Group are provided in the Corporate Governance
Report and the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 82 to 99
and on pages 14 to 60 respectively of this annual report. Also, the financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in Note 35(b) to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on pages 4 to 5 and Financial Summary on page 274 of this
annual report respectively. In addition, discussions on the relationships with its
staff, customers and suppliers is also contained in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report section on pages 100 to 147 of this annual report. Discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are contained in this
annual report on page 62.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is subject to national and local environmental laws and regulations in
the PRC, including with respect to hospital sanitation, diseases control, medical
wastes management, and discharge of wastewater, pollutants and radioactive
substances. The Group is conscious of its environmental protection obligations
and is committed to the sustainable development of the environment and society.
The Group has established internal rules regarding environmental protection and
actively seeks to implement ecofriendly technologies and clinical environment
where feasible. The Group believes that it has maintained good relationship with
the communities. With respect to medical wastes management, the Group has
engaged qualified third parties to arrange proper disposal for all of its hospitals
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group had complied with the applicable environment laws and regulations in
the PRC in all material respects.

Please refer to pages from 100 to 147 of this annual report for the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company prepared in compliance with the
provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There was no incident of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
had a significant impact on the Group during the Reporting Period.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group’s financial results for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 168 of this annual report.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The H Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 8 November 2016. The Company’s net proceeds from the
initial public offering amounted to approximately RMB782.6 million (equivalent
to HK$874.9 million) after deducting underwriting commissions and all related
expenses. As of the date of this annual report, the Company did not anticipate
any material change to its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in the
Prospectus.

For a description of the utilisation of the proceeds from the initial public offering,
please refer to pages 55 to 56 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Reporting Period are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group has a highly diversified customer portfolio, including individual patients
as well as business corporations and government administrations who purchase
healthcare services for their employees. For the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group’s largest customer or the five largest customers in aggregate
contributed to less than 1% of the Group’s total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers in aggregate confributed to approximately 28.1% and
71.0%, respectively, of the Group’s total purchases, including pharmaceuticals,
medical consumables, medical equipment, construction and renovation
services, electricity supply and non-healthcare related ancillary management
services (“Total Purchases”). The Group’s largest supplier, Dongguan Yuheng
Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (3 5¢ 71 #4 18 8 %% 5 BR 2 &) ("Yuheng”), accounted
for approximately 28.1% of the Group’s Total Purchases. Yuheng has been an
Independent Third Party during the Reporting Period. Yuheng is a wholesaler of
pharmaceuticals and medical equipment primarily to hospitals in the PRC. The
Group's relationship with Yuheng began in 2010. The Group has a long term
agreement that does not impose any minimum purchasing commitment on the
Group and the Group may place orders with Yuheng at its own discretion. The
pricing of the relevant products is determined at the time the relevant order is
placed with reference to market price. The agreement sets out the framework of
delivery, seftlement, inspection and quality control, product defects, compensation
arrangements for delivery failure, medical equipment training, packaging and
warranty. The agreement is for an indefinite period but the Group may terminate
it if Yuheng commits a material breach or fails to deliver the relevant products
within a prescribed period. The Group has a 90-days credit period with Yuheng.
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None of the Directors, the Supervisors or any of their respective close associates
(as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules), or any Shareholders, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, direct or indirect own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital has any interests in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2020.

DONATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the charitable contributions and other
donations made by the Group amounted to approximately RMB2.8 million in
aggregate.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December 2020 are set
out in Note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period up to the date of this annual report are:
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Mr. Chen Shaoming (Chairman of the Supervisory Committee)
Mr. Wang Shaofeng
Mr. Yue Chunyang
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance to which the Company or
any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, was a party and
in which a Director or a Supervisor, or any entity connected with any Director or
Supervisor, had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as of
31 December 2020 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements, none of the
Controlling Shareholders has or had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance, whether for the provision of services or otherwise,
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party during the Reporting Period.

NON-COMPETITION AGREEMENT

Pursuant to the Non-Competition Agreement, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken that they will not, and will also procure their respective close
associate(s) (as appropriate) (other than the Group) not to, either directly or
indirectly, compete with the Group’s principal business (which is primarily to
provide hospital services) and granted to the Group the option for new business
opportunities, option for acquisitions and pre-emptive rights. During the Reporting
Period, the Company did not receive any Offer Notice (as defined under the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus)
from the Controlling Shareholders.

The Company has received confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders
confirming their compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2020 for disclosure in this annual report. The independent
non-executive Directors have also reviewed the Controlling Shareholders’
compliance with the Non-Competition Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive Director.
No other Director has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as
defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules) had engaged in or had any interest
in nay business which competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company has purchased appropriate liability insurance for its Directors,
Supervisors and senior management. The permitted indemnity provisions are set
out in such liability insurance.

Saved as disclosed above, no permitted indemnity provision was made by the
Company during the Reporting Period and no permitted indemnity provision was
in force as at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As of 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she is keen to taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO), or as recorded in the registered
maintained by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were

as follows: MR SRBFEETHNAMG ARG RES
Bt PR FORB AT -
(a)  The Company @ &AF
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate  the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital®
same class® NG|
Number HEER  BBITRAE
Name of Director Class of Shares  Nature of inferest of Shares B9 FR A wmem
EEpE PR 40 38 Bl RS ROEBE BMOBIEY HBHHOBESELY
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TEGRE NE IR agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company; interest in a (17 8)
controlled corporation®?
BANARRERNGZ
ERBERN—H": R
THDERE AR
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
PREEAR 5L W& agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company; interest in a (#F8)
controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse®
BANARRIERNGZ
fERIREM—70 : NEEH
EE MR BRI
é_ (4
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Inferest of a party to an 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
ITEHLLT NE IR agreement regarding inferest  (Long position)
in the Company; interest in a (17 8)
controlled corporation®; family
interest of spouse®
BANALRIERNHZE
ERERN—T": NI IES
EEMEREY BEERGE
J/;T;\_ (4
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Domestic Shares  Interestin a controlled 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
FEEEE NE corporation® (Long position)
REEHEE RS (47 %)
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68 Guangdong

Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2020, Kanghua Group (held as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang
Junyang) held 197,500,000 Domestic Shares and Xingye Group (held as to
50% by Mr. Wang Junyang) held 25,000,000 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Wang
Junyang controls more than one third of the voting power at the general
meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang
is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which each of
Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As of 31 December 2020, Xingda Property (held as to 50% each by Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin) held 27,500,000 Domestic Shares. As each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of Mr. Chen
Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in the same number
of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International (as defined below),
which in turns holds 100% in Weishun Property (as defined below), which in
turns holds 100% in Kangwei Industrial (as defined below), which in turns holds
37.5% in Xingye Group. Xingye Group held 25,000,000 Domestic Shares.
As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than one third of the voting power at
the general meeting of Xingye Group, Mr. Wong Wai Hung is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Xingye Group is interested
by virtue of the SFO.

The shareholding percentages are calculated on the basis of 250,000,000
Domestic Shares and 84,394,000 H Shares issued by the Company as of 31
December 2020.
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(b)  Associated corporations of the Company
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(b) AN EIEEEEE

Approximate
percentage inferest
in the associated

corporation
Name of Director Associated corporation Nature of interest 1 AR B
EENE TR % E EmtE BN E D
Mr. Wang Junyang Kanghua Group Beneficial owner 97.46%
FEHEE RESH EnEEA
Mr. Wang Junyang Xingye Group Beneficial owner 50%
EFEHRE L L] EREAA
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Xingye Group Interest in a controlled corporation® 37.50%
TEERE KR MEEHEE R
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Xingda Property Beneficial owner; family interest of spouse 100%
BREE X e 4 YR ERaEAA  EEOREER
Ms. Wang Aigin Xingda Property Beneficial owner, family interest of spouse 100%
ITEHRL S=2yES ERBEAAN BEBNRKEER
Note: BzE -

1 Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International (as defined below),
which in turns holds 100% in Weishun Property (as defined below), which in
turns holds 100% in Kangwei Industrial (as defined below), which in turns
holds 37.5% in Xingye Group. As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than one
third of the voting power at the general meeting of Kangwei Industrial, Mr.
Wong Wai Hung is deemed to be interested in the same amount of inferest in
Xingye Group in which Kangwei Industrial is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of the Board,
none of the Directors, the Supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required fo be (i) notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executives of the Company were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFOJ; (ii) recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO; or {iii) nofified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

N ITERECEFEEZER(ERRLT
X)34.0% MEZFEEBEFEEIEY
% (E % R T30 100% - 1 & JE¥) 3
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2020, according to the register kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO and so far is known to, or can be ascertained after
reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following person/entity had an inferest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or be directly and indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote
on all circumstances at general meetings of the Company:

TERRVES

HEZZ-ZTF+-_A=+—8" ERBRARQ

BIIREESFRAEEMEBEFEENERL
i REBATALEMRAILRAERERS
BERERETE A TAL BEBUBM X
AR PHEEREEARREFSRPE
1EBIEXVERE 2 R 350 28 2 & X /BB A A &)
LMEBBREE NEEKMEEEERA
AR RAG FETMIBR TERIRER

EARIER B AR AR T B 5% SA E R -

(a) Interests in the Shares of the Company () RARRABRMD B
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital
same class (¥ NG
Number MEER BBITREK
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares & £ 4t wmE
wE A % £ 48 5 s RO#E #BOESE BYEIHL
Mr. Wang Junyang Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
TELEE ME R regarding inferest in the Company”™,  (Long position)
inferest in a controlled corporation® (177)
BRRARREGNREERAER
B—F" REEEEE R
Ms. Wang Aici Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
FTEELL ME % regarding interest in the Company" (Long position)
BURAARESNREERAER (177)
E"] E n
Kanghua Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner? 197,500,000 79% 59.06%
RESE ME R EmEAEAY (Long position)
(178)
Mr. Chen Wangzhi Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
REREE ME % regarding interest in the Company"; (Long position)
inferest in a controlled corporation®: (177)

family interest of spouse""

BHRAD RSN RS
ERERI—H": RREGIEER
BaY: RENRGEERY
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Approximate
percentage of

Approximate the Company’s

percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital
same class EARAT
Number HEER BBRITREK
Name Class of Shares  Nature of interest of Shares B 12 B i Hse
mE/EH % 1 48 5 BamitE BROHBE #MOBESE #HHEI
Ms. Wang Aigin Domestic Shares  Interest of a party to an agreement 250,000,000 100% 74.76%
ITEYRL NE & regarding inferest in the Company; (Long position]
interest in a controlled corporation®; (1F8)
family interest of spouse
BRRAD RSN RS
BRI — 7" : RE LB )
% BB RN
Xingda Property Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner 27,500,000 1% 8.22%
BEY % NE & EREEA (Long position)
(#FE)
Xingye Group Domestic Shares  Beneficial owner® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
FEEE NE & EREAAY (Long position]
(FR)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
TEELEE W& Kk RG] EE R RS (Long position)
(FE)
HH International Investment  Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Limited ("HH NE R REEHEE N EZRY (Long position)
Infernational’) (177)
EEERRERRA
(DEZEIER D)
Dongguan Weishun Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation®) 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Property Investment Co., A& & REEGEE R EZRS (Long position)
Ltd. ["Weishun Property”) (177)
%**‘1 BRI ERR
Al ([EIEmE])
Dongguan Kangwei Domestic Shares  Interest in a controlled corporation® 25,000,000 10% 7.48%
Industrial Investment NE R REEHEE N ERY (Long position)
Co., ltd. ('Kangwei (177)
Industrial’)
RETREEXERERR
RAREEE]D
New China Asset H Shares Investment manager 8,689,000 10.30% 2.60%
Management (Hong HAR RELIE (Long posifion)
Kong) Limited (177)

MEEEEE (BB)
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Approximate

percentage of

Approximate the Company’s
percentage in total issued
Shares of the  share capital

same class NN
Number HEER BERITRAE
Name Class of Shares Nature of interest of Shares Bz 12 BT 4t Hzg
mE/ LR R 10 48 Rl EatE BROHE #OBIHE BAEIL
Lin Lijun ("Mr. Lin") H Shares Interest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
MRE (TMEAE]) HA% corporation® (Long position)
REZEHEBRERY (177)
LVC Assefs Management  H Shares Inferest in a controlled 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
Limited H A& corporation® (Long position)
REZEHEBE R ERY (11 2)
LVC KH Investment L.P. H Shares Beneficial owner 11,146,200 13.21% 3.33%
H& ExEEA (Long position)
(11%)
Haitian (HK) Holdings H Shares Beneficial owner 5,052,600 5.98% 1.51%
Limited (formerly named ~ H % EnEAEA (Long position)
as “Haitian (HK) Financial (17%)
Development Limited”)
BR(EB)ERERAR
(RIBIEXR(BR) &/
BEREBRAFD
Zhan Yongxiang H Shares Beneficial owner 5,021,966 5.95% 1.50%
EXTE HAR EmEEA (Long position)
(1F%&)
Mr. Wang Mingsong H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
THRMEE HA& corporation” (Long position)
REEHEE R R (177)
Bo An Investments Pte, Ltd.  H Shares Interest in a controlled 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
("Bo An Investments”) HR corporation” (Long position)
BLRERAERAA REEHEE R R (11 2)
([EZRE])
Huaxia International H Shares Beneficial owner” 4,880,000 5.78% 1.46%
Company Limited HAR ERFEBAD (Long position)
(‘Huaxia International’) (177)

EZEERARAT
(TEERHER])
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Pursuant to a concert party agreement, each of Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang
Aici, Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin has agreed to jointly control their
respective inferests in the Company and the decisions as to the business and
operations of the Group shall be in accordance with the unanimous consent
of all of them. Therefore, each of them is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by them in aggregate by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wang Junyang holds 97.46% and 50% in Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, respectively. As Mr. Wang Junyang controls more than one third of the
voting power at the general meeting of each of Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which each of Kanghua Group and Xingye Group is interested by
virtue of the SFO.

Each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin holds 50% in Xingda Property.
As each of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin controls more than one
third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingda Property, each of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Xingda Property is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

As Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin are husband and wife, each of
them is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by them in aggregate
by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Wong Wai Hung holds 34.0% in HH International, which in turns holds
100% in Weishun Property, which in turns holds 100% interest in Kangwei
Industrial, which in turns holds 37.5% in Xingye Group. Xingye Group held
25,000,000 Domestic Shares. As Mr. Wong Wai Hung controls more than
one third of the voting power at the general meeting of Xingye Group, each
of Kangwei Industrial, Weishun Property, HH International and Mr. Wong Wai
Hung is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
Xingye Group is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Lin holds 100% in LVC Assets Management Limited, which in turns holds
100% in LVC KH Investment L.P. Each of Mr. Lin and LVC Assets Management
Limited is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which
LVC KH Investment L.P. is interested by virtue of SFO.

Mr. Wang Mingsong holds 100% in Bo An Investments, which in turns holds
100% in Huaxia International. Each of Mr. Wang Mingsong and Bo An
Investments is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Huaxia International is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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(b)  Substantial shareholders of other members of the Group b) AEBEEMKEARNEZRRE
Approximate
percentage
interest held
by the substantial
Name of member shareholder
Name of shareholder of the Group Nature of interest FERREF
BREREEHB REBHRENFEB EmtE EmBlABED
Kangdi Enferprise? Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
el (a0 EREAA
Ms. Zhang Dandan™® Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 15%
SR P 2 0 CERER EnlEAA
Ms. Wang Aier Renkang Hospital Beneficial owner 13%
TERL LM (a0 EREAA
Notes: BRE -
i Pursuant to an entrusted management agreement, each of Kangdi Enterprise, m BIEEIEERS  EoEY R

Ms. Zhang Dandan and Ms. Wang Aier irrevocably vested their entire voting
power at any general meeting of Renkang Hospital to the Company.

(2)  Kangdi Enterprise is held as to 50% by Mr. Wang Zhengren and as to 50% by
Ms. Wang Keying, all of whom are members of the Wang Family and cousins
of Mr. Wang Junyang.

(3)  Ms. Zhang Dandan is a member of the Wang Family and aunt-in-law of Mr.
Wang Junyang.

(40 Ms. Wang Aier is a member of the Wang Family and aunt of Mr. Wang
Junyang.

Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2020, to the knowledge of the
Directors, no other person had, or were deemed or taken to have interest or short
position in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the registry kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered info or existed
during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS'’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Reporting Period was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party fo any arrangement to enable the Directors, the Supervisors or chief
executives of the Company (including their spouses or children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had complied with the
applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with
respect fo connected transactions and continuing connected transactions. Details
of the Group’s non-exempt connected transactions are set out below:

Continuing Connected Transactions

Report of the Board
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EENESWERNIERTESH
R

TA ¥R & HA ] A fa] B ) R 2 B) 3 AR ] FfY VB8
REEERS—T REF  EERARQF]
ERTBRAR (BREEFSE ZEBIAKM
82 FER) R LB Al REREAR
A EMEAB BB HEFMER -

BERXS

BE_ T TF+_A=+—HILEFE K
REAEMARBELMRANEVAETREET
RERFEEENRGZERER - A5&H
MIFRMRRBES X ZHIBUOT

Actual
transaction value

Annual cap
for the year ended

31 December 2020

for the year ended

(Note) 31 December 2020
(RMB million) (RMB million)
Nature of the connected BE-_Z-ZHF BE-_Z_-ZF
Continuing connected person’s interest in the +=ZA=+—8 +ZHA=+—H
transaction under transaction LEENFELR LEENER
UT&FEITH Connected person #EX 5 FHIBIE S (BFEE) REEE
SERER S BE 7 RS (AR¥EET) (AREBEERT)
The Kanghua Hospital Lease  Kanghua Group  The land and buildings under the 36.0 357
Agreement RES lease are owned by Kanghua
REEREERZ Group and leased to Kanghua
Hospital
MERESBEUHERAEE R
THTRESR A T AZEEY)
The Renkang Hospital Lease  Tongli Enterprise  The land and buildings under 6.0 6.0

Agreement
CRERESH®

Note: The renewal of annual caps under each of the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement
and the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement for the three years ending 31 December
2021is set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 December 2018.

RANEZE

the lease are owned by Tongli
Enterprise and leased to Renkang
Hospital
HRANEXUHAERAEE X
TR SR8 T A )

M SEFEEREERRERCREREER
FEAETEHE_ZE-_—F+=_A=+—
ALE=FMFELRENARFBHL=

Z-N\EFET+ZATNEHRSE -

BEREEBERNARQRF F3H 2020

75



Report of the Board
EEERE

The Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Kanghua Hospital (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement with Kanghua Group in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Kanghua Hospital from
Kanghua Group for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference fo (i) the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 254,896.1 sq.m.J; and (i) the monthly rental per sq.m.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the actual GFA used by Kanghua Hospital
was 311,284.0 sq.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB9.63.

The Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement

On 10 April 2016, Renkang Hospital (a 57%-owned subsidiary of the Company),
entered into the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement with Tongli Enterprise in
relation to the lease of land and buildings underlying Renkang Hospital from
Tongli Enterprise for a term of 10 years commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2025.

Rent

The rent payable under the Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement is determined
with reference to (i) the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital during the year
(which shall not be less than 73,265.6 sq.m.); and (i) the monthly rental per sq.m.
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the actual GFA used by Renkang Hospital
was 77,449.7 sq.m. and the monthly rental per sq.m. was RMB6.42.
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Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive Directors of the
Company

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions, and after due and careful enquiry with the management
of the Group, confirmed that such transactions were:

(il carried outin the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(il  made on normal commercial terms or better; and

[iii)  carried out according to the terms in the relevant fransaction agreements,
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive Directors are satisfied that they have received
and reviewed sufficient information to give the confirmations above.

Confirmation of the auditor

As to the requirement set forth in Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
auditor of the Company has written to the Board to confirm that it has not been
aware of any matter which leads it fo believe the aforesaid continued connected
fransactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Board;

(il arenot carried out in accordance with the related transaction agreement in
any material respects; and

[iil  exceed the annual cap.

Details of the related party transactions of the Group are set out in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Apart from disclosed in this annual report, none of the related party transactions
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which are subject to announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

The Company had not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period, nor did any equity-linked agreement subsist at the end of the
Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the PRC
Company Law which oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing Shareholders.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020 are set out
in Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

CASH MANAGEMENT

As part of the cash management policy fo manage excess cash, the Group had
purchased investment products from financial institutions and invested in certain
financial product issued by a PRC commercial bank to achieve higher interest
income without interfering with its business operations or capital expenditures
during the Reporting Period.

The Group carefully balances its needs for interest income and the risks
associated with financial products by investing in simple financial products issued
by reputable financial institutions. The Company’s senior management, including
its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, is involved in these investment
decisions. The Company’s senior management periodically reviews investment
strategies and investment portfolios to ensure they achieve the Group’s cash
management objectives. Before making a proposal to invest in financial products,
the head of the finance department of the relevant hospital or Group company
must assess the cash flow and operational needs and capital expenditures of
such hospital or company. If the cash flow exceeds its operational needs and an
appropriate low-risk investment opportunity is available, the head of the relevant
finance department will submit the investment proposal to the Company’s
senior management for approval. Regardless of investment size, a proposal
to invest in any investment products must first be reviewed and approved by
the Company’s chief financial officer, who is also responsible for reviewing the
relevant documentation and negotiation with the counterparty. After the chief
financial officer approves the proposal, it must also be approved by (i) the chief
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executive officer, if the investment amount exceeds RMB10 million; or (i) the
executive Directors and the independent non-executive Director with appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise as required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, if the investment
amount exceeds RMB100 million.

In assessing a proposal o invest in a financial product, a number of criteria must
be met, including:

o the term of the financial product should generally not exceed one year;

o the proposed investment must not interfere with our business operations or
capital expenditures;

o the financial product must be issued by a reputable bank with which we
have a long-term relationship, preferably exceed five years; and

o the investment portfolio of the financial product should generally bear low
risk.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has complied
with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the Reporting
Period. Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 82 to 99
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report, the Company
had maintained the public float of the issued Shares as required under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE HONG
KONG LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20,
13.21 and 13.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 24 May 2021 to 23
June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
effected. In order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the AGM, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later
than 4:30pm on 21 May 2021.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no important events after the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The Company has appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as its auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A resolution will be proposed for approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor
of the Company. The Company has not changed its auditor during any of the past
three years.

For and on behalf of the Board

Wang Junyang
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
29 March 2021
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Report of the Supervisory Committee

To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee, in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
and the Articles, has conducted its work in accordance with the fiduciary principle,
and has taken up an active role to work seriously and with diligence to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed cautiously
the operation and development plans of the Company and provided reasonable
suggestions and opinions to the Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored
and supervised the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws and regulations of
the PRC and the Articles, and in the interests of the Shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the Report of the Board and audited
consolidated financial statements proposed by the Board for presentation at the
AGM. We are of the opinion that the Directors and the chief executives and other
senior management of the Company are able to strictly observe their fiduciary
duties, to act diligently, to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests
of the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles. We are witnessing
better operations and internal controls.

Up to the date of approval of this report, none of the Directors and chief executives
and senior management members of the Company had been found to have
abused their authority, damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon
the interests of the Shareholders. None of them was found to be in breach of any
laws and regulations or the Articles. The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with
the achievement and cost effectiveness of the Company during the Reporting
Period and has great confidence in the future prospects of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee

Chen Shaoming
Chairman

Dongguan, the PRC
29 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERME

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Board is of the opinion that the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions under the CG Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2020.

The Board is committed to promote good corporate governance to safeguard
the interests of the Shareholders and believes that maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance is essential to the success of the Company and would
provide a practice enhancing greater accountability and transparency and
meeting the expectations of the Group’s stakeholders. The Company will continue
to review and enhance its corporate governance to ensure that it will continue to
meet the applicable requirements of the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, including four executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon (Vice Chairman)
Ms. Wang Aigin

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lv Yubo

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yeung Ming Lai
Dr. Chen Keji
Mr. Chan Sing Nun

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” on pages 148 to 160 of this
annual report. The overall management and supervision of the Company’s
operation and the function of formulating overall business strategies were vested
in the Board.
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Corporate Governance Report

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
has met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
with at least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise and the requirement that the independent non-executive Directors
represent at least one-third of the Board.

The Company has received annual confirmation on independence from each
independent non-executive Director pursuant to the requirements under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. The Company considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge and professionalism to
the Board for its efficient and effective functioning. Independent non-executive
Directors are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee.

The CG Code requires the Directors to disclose to the Company the number and
nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other significant
commitments as well as their identities and the time involved. The Directors have
agreed to disclose to the Company their other commitments in a timely manner.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. Wang Junyang is an executive Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr.
Chen Wangzhi is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky is a senior management member and the
chief financial officer of the Company. The three of them have separate roles.

Relationship between Directors and Chief Executives

Certain Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company are members of
the Wang Family. Please refer to the section headed "Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” on pages 148 to 160 of this annual report for details.
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ROLE AND FUNCTION OF AND DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for and has general powers for the management and
conduct of the business of the Company. It delegates day-to-day management
of the Company to the executive Directors and the senior management of the
Company within the control and the authority framework set by the Board. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters of the Company, including:
approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information, recommendation
for appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational
matters. For details, please refer to the Articles.

In addition, the Board has also delegated to the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. Further details of these committees are set out
in this corporate governance report.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors in respect of legal actions against them.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules
since the date of the 2020 interim report of the Company.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director shall receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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Directors will be continuously updated on the statutory and regulatory regime
and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The joint
company secretaries of the Company update the Directors on the latest
developments regarding the Hong Kong Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

During the Reporting Period, all Directors, namely Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon, Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Lv Yubo, Mr. Yeung
Mina Lai, Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun, had participated in continuous
professional training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation
to their contribution to the Board.

Directors’ knowledge and skills are continuously developed and refreshed by,
inter alia, the following means:

° participation in continuous professional training seminars and/or
conferences and/or courses and/or workshops on subjects relating to,
inter alia, corporate governance, directors’ duties and legal and regulatory
changes organised and/or arranged by the Company and/or professional
bodies and/or lawyers;

o reading materials provided from time to time by the Company to Directors
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties; and

J reading news, journals, magazines and/or other reading materials
regarding legal and regulatory changes and matters of relevance to the
Directors in the discharge of their duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as a code of conduct of the
Company for Directors” and Supervisors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors and Supervisors, the Directors and the Supervisors
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the Reporting Period. Employees who are, or likely to be, in possession of
unpublished inside information in relation to the Company or the Shares are
prohibited from dealing in the Shares during the black-out period.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of three years. According to these service contracts, each Director’s
term of office (a) three years commencing from the date when their respective
appointments were approved by the Shareholders; and (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with the Articles and applicable laws, rules or regulations.

None of the Directors or the Supervisors has entered or is proposed to enter
info any service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board meetings for at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals pursuant to code provision
A.1.1 of the CG Code. Notice of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings fo provide all Directors with an opportunity to aftend and include
matters in the agenda for a regular meeting pursuant to code provision A.1.3 of
the CG Code.

All Directors are provided with agenda and relevant information in advance
before a Board meeting. They have access to the senior management and the
joint company secretaries of the Company at all times and, upon reasonable
request, may seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.

Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the secretary to the Board with copies
circulated to all Directors for information and records. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record sufficient detail of the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including any concerns
raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of Board Meetings and committee meetings
are sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which a meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.
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During the Reporting Period, the Board convened four meetings. A summary of
the attendance record of the Directors is set out in the table below:

Corporate Governance Report

SEEREE

RBEHRE EXSERNAEH -EF D

PR EHN TX

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2020

REZE-Z-ZF+-A=+t-HLEEDRH Attendance rate
Name of Directors EEpg R/ AHEERAY =
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wang Junyang (Chairman) TEBEE(LE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Chen Wangzhi (Chief Executive Officer/ R 58 A (77483 4/4 100%
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon /Vice Chairman) TEEREFEE) 4/4 100%
Ms. Wang Aigin FEHLT 4/4 100%
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. Lv Yubo AEREE 4/4 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BH#gEE 4/4 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BRRESE 4/4 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE 4/4 100%

During the Reporting Period, the Company convened one annual general meeting
on 23 June 2020. All Directors attended the annual general meeting, apart
from Mr. Lv Yubo and Dr. Chen Keji, who could not attend due to pre-arranged
business commitments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee, to handle particular
responsibilities of the Board and the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of
the Company are established with defined written terms of reference that have
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the Company, and are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules with written terms of reference in
compliance with the CG Code and the roles and responsibilities delegated to
the Audit Committee by the Board. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible
for considering issues relating to the appointment of external auditor and their
independence; reviewing the Group’s financial information and overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures; supervising the Company’s internal audit system and its
implementation; reviewing connected transactions and their compliance with the
relevant terms and rules; reviewing the interim and annual results of the Group
prior to recommending them to the Board for approval; and other matters that the
Board has authorised it o deal with.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr.
Chen Keji.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held three meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual results announcement and
annual report of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim
results announcement and interim report of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020, considering issues relating to the external auditor and their
independence and appointment, as well as the risk management and internal
control procedures, reviewed connected transactions and the arrangements that
allow employees to raise concerns about the possible misconduct and made
suggestions to the Board. A summary of the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2020

REZE-E-EF+ A=+t HALFELHH Affendance rate
Name of committee member ZESHENRSA HE/THREEERH i
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai o) e 33 100%
Dr. Chen Keji BReEEAE 3/3 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE 3/3 100%
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the requirements of the CG Code and the roles
and responsibilities delegated to the Nomination Committee by the Board. The
Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for preparing the procedures and
criteria for determining the candidates for Directors and the senior management
of the Company and conducting preliminary review on their qualifications and
credentials, including proposing to the Board on its size and composition in
accordance with the Company’s operating results, assets and shareholding
structure; reviewing the procedures and criteria for determining the candidates for
Directors and the chief executive officer of the Company and making proposals
to the Board; looking for the qualified candidates for Directors and chief executive
officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for the Directors and
chief executive officer; reviewing and making proposals on the candidates for
the other senior management, on which the Board needs to resolve and other
matters that the Board has authorized it to deal with.

The Nomination Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Wang Junyang
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), and two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Yeung Ming Lai and Dr. Chen Keiji.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy. Please refer to “Board Diversity Policy”
on page 92 of this annual report for more details.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and effort to carry
out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of the Nomination
Committee will then be put to the Board for decision.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one meeting. At
the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the matters relating to the
procedures and criteria for determining candidates for directors and selection
of senior management of the Company and reviewing and made proposals
on candidates for directors and senior management and made suggestions to
the Board. A summary of the aftendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:
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Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2020

REZE-Z-ZF+-A=+-HLEEDRH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEEHENE HE/ THEEERRY HEZ
Mr. Wang Junyang TEHEE n 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B8Rt N 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREfSE N 100%
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PROCEDURE FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

When there is a vacancy in the Board, the Nomination Committee evaluates the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of the Board, and identifies any
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination Committee will then identify
suitable candidates and convene a Nomination Committee meeting to discuss
and vote on the nomination of directors and make recommendation to the Board
on the candidatel(s) for directorship.

CRITERIA FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will consider candidates who possess the particular
skills, experience and expertise that will best complement the Board effectiveness
at that time.

In considering the overall balance of the Board's composition, the Nomination
Committee will give due consideration to the board diversity policy of the
Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code and the roles and the responsibilities
delegated to the Remuneration Committee by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee is primarily responsible for formulating the criteria for and conducting
assessment on the Directors and senior management as well as determining
and reviewing the remuneration policies and plans for the Directors and senior
management, including formulating remuneration plans and proposals in
accordance with the terms of reference of the Directors and senior management
and the importance of their positions as well as the remuneration benchmarks
for the relevant positions in other comparable companies; the remuneration
plans and proposals including but not limited to criteria, procedures and
main assessment system for performance assessment, main proposals and
regulations on award and punishment; reviewing the performance of the
Directors and senior management and conducting annual assessment on their
performance and results; supervising the implementation of the remuneration
policies of the Company and other matters that the Board has authorised it
to deal with. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the second model
described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules (i.e. make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management member).

The Remuneration Committee consists of two independent non-executive

Directors, Mr. Chan Sing Nun (chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr.
Yeung Ming Lai, and one executive Director, Ms. Wang Aigin.
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The primary goal of the Group’s remuneration policy is to enable the Directors
and senior management to be competitively rewarded having regard to the
Group’s operating results, roles and responsibilities and individual performance
of the directors and senior management and comparable market practices.

Details of the Directors” emoluments and the five highest paid individuals are set
out in Notes 11 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management (for the avoidance of
doubt, excluding Directors and Supervisors) by band during the Reporting Period
is set out below:

Mg E

Remuneration band

SEEREE

AEMFHERGEEAERRESLS
REBEEEEAEMOGEEE - AL
MR EENBRE DA BRQERIES -
WE LIS E AL - T AR N
52 -

EHREEMENANGESHFATHFEBEEH
RERE VB REMENRI12

RBEHE SREEEMHRESFM (B
ER TOEEERES) REMEELS
mF

Number of individuals

1B 78 A

HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the matters relating to the
reviewing and made proposals on the remuneration package of Directors and
senior management of the Company and made suggestions to the Board. A
summary of the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee members is
set out in the table below:

500,001;% 7T 21,000,000 7 7T
1,000,001 7% 7T 21,500,000 & 7T 2
1,500,001 7T Z 2,000,000 7 7T

RBEHRE - FHEREAH - REF -1
et FHNZESEZEMRIARANES
EREREENFHTBEAREERRESN
ZH UMEFSELER FHZE K
BHFLEMERNTX

Number of meetings attended/eligible to
attend during the year ended 31 December 2020

REZ-ZE-2F+ A=+ HLEELHH Attendance rate
Name of committee member ZEBRENA HE/ TEEEREAY HEE
Ms. Wang Aigin FTEHLL N 100%
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai BH#gfE N 100%
Mr. Chan Sing Nun BREELE N 100%
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy, which will form the basis of the Board's
considerations in 2020. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and achieving
a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavors to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments
should be based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the board diversity policy
to ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the objectives
of its board diversity policy for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including but not limited to:

(a)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors, Supervisors and senior management; and

(c)  toreview and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 which give a true
and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
financial performance and cash flows. The Directors also acknowledge their
responsibilities to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are published in a timely manner.

The management of the Company has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which are put
to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
updates on the Company’s performance, positions and prospects.
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The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement prepared by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 161 to 167 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness at least annually. The Audit
Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance
roles in the Group’s financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
internal controls, and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit functions.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and established to ensure
that assets are safeguarded against improper use or disposal, relevant rules and
regulations are adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may impact on the Group’s
performance are appropriately identified and managed. The systems and internal
control procedures can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

The Board has in place internal control procedures in ensuring any continuing
connected fransactions are conducted in compliance with their terms and the
applicable requirements under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

An internal audit function has been established to perform regular financial
and operational reviews and recommend necessary actions to the relevant
management. The internal audit function is to ensure the risk management and
internal control procedures are in place and function properly as intended. The
internal audit function also reviews the continuing connected transactions of
the Group and the adequacy and effectiveness of the relevant internal control
procedures. The results of the internal audit are reported to the Audit Committee.
The independent non-executive Directors, in performing their review of the
continuing connected transactions of the Group, also take into account the
findings of the internal audit function.
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Clinical risks are particularly relevant to the Group’s hospital operations and a
key area of the Group’s clinical governance. The Group has adopted a three-tier
risk management approach to identify, assess, mitigate and handle these risks.
At the first line of defence, the hospitals’ front-line staff, guided by clearly defined
procedures, are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks
associated with day-to-day operations. The hospital managers and executives,
as the second line of defence, implement rules and procedures, provide
coaching and support, and deal with, and analyse unusual and unexpected fact
patterns and outcomes detected or anticipated by their staff. They ensure that
risks are within the acceptable range in the ordinary course of business and that
the first line of defence is effective. They also continuously benchmark against
international best practice and collate lessons learnt from past incidents to
identify areas of improvements. As the final line of defence, the Audit Committee
and the internal audit function of the Company ensure that the first and second
lines of defence are effective through constant inspection, monitoring and making
recommendations to improve the relevant processes. On an ongoing basis,
each hospital of the Group reviews and assesses the status of potential risks
which may impact on its ability o achieve its business objectives and/or those of
the Group. This review process includes assessment as to whether the existing
system of internal controls continues to remain relevant, adequately addresses
potential risks, and/or should be supplemented. The results of these reviews are
regularly reported to the senior management and the Board. Such top-down and
company-wide risk management system is intended to cover every aspect of the
Group’s clinical operations.

The Board from time to time and at least annually reviews the significant risk
factors affecting the operations of the Group as a whole and is cognizant that
the unprecedented COVID-19 pandemic has become a relevant risk factor to the
hospital operations (including, in particular, the health and safety of patients and
staff) of the Group. The COVID-19 pandemic in the PRC is considered well under
control, however, it remains fo be seen whether it will result in material and long-
term disruptions to the Group’s operations. Please also refer to the paragraph
headed “The Impact of COVID-19” in the Management Discussion and Analysis
section.

The Audit Committee was satisfied as to the implementation and effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control procedures. There were
no matters of material concerns relating to financial, operational or compliance
controls. The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group during the Reporting Period.
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In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls undertaken
within the Group, the external auditor also assessed the adequacy and
effectiveness of certain key risk management and internal controls as part of their
statutory audits. Where appropriate, the external auditor’s recommendations are
adopted and enhancements to the risk management and internal controls will be
made.

DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the Hong Kong Listing Rules
and the overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately if it is the subject of a decision;

(i) conducts its affairs with close regard to the applicable laws and regulations;

(il  has established a policy and implemented guidelines for monitoring,
reporting and disseminating inside information to our shareholders,
investors, analysts and media by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution
of information through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website. These policies and guidelines also identify
who are the Company’s authorised spokespersons and their responsibilities
for commmunications with stakeholders; and

(iv)  has communicated to all relevant staff regarding the implementation of the
policy and relevant trainings are also provided.

The Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe harbours as
provided in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Company
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be maintained or
that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group would immediately
disclose the information to the public. The Company is committed to ensure that
information contained in announcements or circulars are not false or misleading
as to a material fact, or false or misleading through the omission of a material
fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way, which
requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the total fee paid/payable in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by the Group’s auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, is set out below:

ELET BN <

BE-F-TFT-ASt-BLFE A
®E ALY « BERS BHTRENE
SHREBERB D, ReR A mn T -

RMB’000
ARET T
Audit services EIT R
— Audit services in connection with the consolidated financial - ARG E P IERMER M ET RS
statements 2,366
Non-Audit services FEFTRE
— Review of interim condensed consolidated financial statements - Z B F EAf§BR4R & BT S i = 495
Total BEF 2,861

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. Chau Hing Ling of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as one of the joint company
secretfaries. Her primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky, the chief financial officer of the Company and the other joint company
secretary.

During the Reporting Period, both of Ms. Chau Hing Ling and Mr. Wong Wai Hang
Ricky have undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Board believes that effective communication with investors is essential for
establishing investors’ confidence and attracting new investors. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information which enables investors to make the best investment decision.

The general meetings of the Company provide an important channel for
communications between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board, as well as chairmen of the three Board committees or, in their
absence, other members of the respective committee and where appropriate,
the independent Board committee, will be available to answer questions at
Shareholders’ meetings.
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Published documents together with the latest corporate information and news are
available on the Company’s website at http://www.kanghuagp.com. Investors
can also communicate with the Company through email at kh@kanghuagp.com.

DIVIDEND CONSIDERATIONS

The payment of dividend is to allow the Shareholder to participate in the
Company’s profits whilst retaining adequate reserves to sustain the Group’s
operations and future growth. The declaration, form, frequency and amount
of dividend to be paid by the Company must comply with relevant laws and
regulations and the Articles. In deciding whether to recommend any dividend, the
Board will take into account a number of factors, including financial performance,
reserves, operations and liquidity requirements and development plans of the
Company. The Board will comprehensively consider other relevant factors as
appropriate from time to time. The Company does not have a fixed dividend
distribution ratio.

PRC laws require that dividends be paid only out of the profit for the year
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in many aspects
from the generally accepted accounting principles in other jurisdictions, including
the IFRS. Distributions from the Company and its subsidiaries may also become
subject to any restrictive covenants in bank credit facilities, convertible bond
instruments or other agreements that the Company or its subsidiaries may enter
into in the future.

The amount of any dividend actually distributed to the Shareholders will depend
upon the Group’s earnings and financial condition, operating requirements,
capital requirements and any other conditions that the Directors may deem
relevant and may be subject to approval of the Shareholders. The Board has
an absolute discretion to recommend any dividend for any year. There is no
assurance that dividends of any amount will be declared or distributed in any
year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting ("EGM")

Shareholders requesting the convening of an EGM shall proceed in accordance
with the procedures set forth below.

The Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares with the
voting power at the proposed meeting have the right to request the Board to
hold the EGM or a class meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative
regulations and the Articles, the Board shall give written feedback to agree or
disagree to hold the EGM or the class meeting within ten days after receiving the
proposal.

If the Board agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting, a meeting notice shall
be given within five days after the Board makes such a resolution. Changes to the
original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant Shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting or fails to give
feedback within ten days after receiving the request, the Shareholders individually
or jointly holding over 10% of the Shares have the right to request the Supervisory
Committee to hold the EGM or the class meeting in writing.

If the Supervisory Committee agrees to hold the EGM or the class meeting,
a meeting notice shall be given within five days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by the relevant
Shareholders.

If the Supervisory Committee fails to give the notice of the EGM within the specified
period, it shall be deemed that the Supervisory Committee does not convene
or preside over the Shareholders’ meeting. Shareholders who individually or
jointly hold 10% or more of the Shares for not less than 90 consecutive days
may convene and preside over the EGM by themselves. The expenses of the
Shareholders’ meeting held by the Supervisory Committee or Shareholders by
themselves shall be borne by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholder(s) to Put Forward Proposals at a General
Meeting

When the Company holds a Shareholders’ general meeting, the Board, the
Supervisory Committee and the Shareholders individually or jointly holding over 3%
of the Shares have the right o submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 3% of the Shares may put forward interim
proposal and submit to the convener in writing ten days before the EGM.
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Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through Mr. Wong Wai Hang Ricky, the chief financial officer and joint
company secretary of the Company. His contact details are as follows:

Address:

Unit 3207, Metroplaza Tower 2
223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Fong
New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2428-2880

Fax: (852) 2418-5688

Email: kh@kanghuagp.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general meetings of
the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no significant change in the articles of association during the Reporting
Period. The currently valid Articles of Association is available on the websites of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company.

CE AN

JJ:%E./D-*F

BRAZEZEEANIEF

P 3R AT B B 3 B B K N B B JE B TS B SR
FRARMERREALEUNEANARNES
SRESHALAEINEE - ERENHE
ECLUNE

oAk

EBFR

LI5S PR 223 57

e EBI5%E —BE3207E
B :h ¢ (852) 2428-2880

{5 : (852) 2418-5688

B EH : kh@kanghuagp.com

BRIFAERRBERAG LAEEEEH -

ERXHHEX

RIEHRE - ARBRRLBERET - Al
BRUH AR ERAIE ST BB RAR A
Mk LER -

BEREEBERNARQRF F3H 2020

99



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present the environmental, social and governance report
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “ESG Report”). The
contents of the ESG Report are in compliance with the relevant environmental,
social and governance reporting guidelines set out in Appendix 27 to the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The ESG Report covers the Group’s operations at Kanghua Hospital, Renkang
Hospital, Kanghua Hospital — Huawei Clinic, Kangxin Hospital and the Anhui
Hualin Group (the “Relevant Operations”).

Any opinions or suggestions in relation to the ESG Report may be sent to the
Company's email address at: kh@kanghuagp.com.

1. ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MANAGEMENT

SYSTEM

1.1

Core values in environmental, social and governance

The Group is committed to integrating corporate, social and
environmental responsibilities into various aspects of the Group’s
operations for achieving sustainable development. To this end,
the Group has implemented various environmental, social and
governance policies:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

compliance with the requirements of the laws, rules and
regulations on the corporate environment, society and
governance;

promotion of the establishment and improvement of relevant
management systems and mechanisms in corporate
environment, society and governance;

emphasis on delivering patient-centric healthcare services with
the highest possible ethical and professional standard;

active engagement with stakeholders to identify changing
needs in corporate, social and environmental aspect of the
Group's operations; and

encourages staff to save energy, cherish resources, support
and promote measures on energy-saving and emission
reduction.
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1.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

The Group has set up a special working group formed by the
management and hospital executives and managers of each
hospital and operating facilities to promote the above policies and
prepare the relevant disclosures and report to the Board.

The communication and responses among the stakeholders

As part of the Group’s sustainable development objectives, the
Group maintains communication with stakeholders through various
channels with a view to proactively responding to stakeholders’
requests and fostering the Group’s capability in fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibilities:

Stakeholders
&

Communication and responses
1 B O] B

RIR  HBRERBRE

AEEEKYL TEHEIBITIENAE -
KREREERENRSER R EE
RN BRITRAEREEAS -
LAES) Eall BOR R ARZIERE R E
WREEDER -
12 HHhEERERDE
EAREERFEERBIEN—
o AEBEBBZEREBHEE
MERSER BEEIHOER
MNENER RRENEEE it
BITRERTEET :

Key issues
FEEH

Investors/shareholders

KEE/BR

Government and regulatory
authorities

BT R EEE M
Staff
8T

\
/

Shareholders’ general meetings,
annual reports and interim reports,
results announcements, corporate
announcements, investors conferences
BREARE  FHREFHRES  XEQ
EFoEQE KREEXRE®

Regular communications, field visits,
meetings, operating information
disclosure and reporting

EHRR

BiR s
PR RS

B LEE

Labour union, regular communications
between staff and management, staff
activities, regular in-house publications,
trainings and education, responsibility
and accountability systems

BITe BIREEETHER -
BIEE  FHRNE T - 155182
B AEIELBESE

Corporate governance and strategic
development and directions

EEELMBRER LI

Strict compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, license, maintaining
and renewal hospital classification, anti-
corruption, environmental protection,
responsive to the government's latest policies
and directives on healthcare
BRERBERERER MR EFX
BEBLROE REF RRRE B
A 8 B PR ) B ¥ BUR M 45 5

Staff retention, collegiality, quality standard,
ethical practice, career progression,
development and training, workplace health
and safety, fair and reasonable reward and
punishment mechanisms
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B HEREARS

Stakeholders
HHE

Communication and responses

BB D

Key issues

FEER

Suppliers

HER

Patients

Community

ol

Healthcare facilities

BEgE

Due diligence, meetings, negotiations,
regular review of cooperation and
quality check, internal audit of
procurements and prescriptions by
doctors

BRRT &% WM THEES
EREERE KEADEZNE
B2 73

Day to day operations and communications,
dedicated customer service, satisfaction
surveys and feedback, service complaints
and response systems

HEELRBR ZENEFPRYE
MEEREERE  RGRF RO E
ES)

Community activities, public health
awareness events, free medical
consultations, regular in-house
publications, donations, supporting
charitable causes

HEREE AAFEBRED 2B
BEEH THAMBNY B X

Mutual cooperation and patient referrals,
technical assistance to lower-tier
hospitals, multisite doctor practice

MEAERBAED R TRERE
AR - BEZHAE
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Stable and uninterrupted supply of quality
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment on terms no less
favourable than market, proper qualifications
and licenses, service support and training on
equipment, anti-corruption, environmentally
preferable purchasing
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Clinical standard and the Group’s reputation
as a quality and ethical healthcare services
provider, patient satisfaction, anti-corruption
(e.g. refusing “red packets”)
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Improving the community’s awareness of
public health and safety and the profile
of the Group as a socially responsible
healthcare services provider, addressing
healthcare needs from the underserved and
unprivileged
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Delivery of optimal clinical solutions to
address the different needs of patients,
referral of patients requiring acute, complex
and critical care from lower-tier hospitals to
the Group, the Group’s influential presence
in the industry
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group regularly keeps track of the latest national and regional
environmental laws and regulations and adopts all necessary measures
to comply with them. The Board considers that wastewaters and solid
wastes (particularly medical wastes) produced by the Group’s hospitals and
operating facilities are particularly relevant to environmental protection.
The Group is compliant with applicable laws and regulations, including,
the Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the
Regulations on Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment, the Regulations
on the Management of Medical Waste and the Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had not been subject to any
penalties in relation to environmental protection.

Developing sustainable best practices requires modification of staff
behavior, and this occurs most frequently through ongoing staff education.
Education and supporting processes are one of the most critical elements
to effective implementation of environmental protection initiatives and
reduction in environmental footprint.

In particular, with the outstanding performance of Kanghua Hospital in
the National Greening Action promoted by the PRC, it is recognised as the
“Model National Greening Unit”, which is the only Grade A Class Ill hospital
in the PRC bestowed with such award. Kanghua Hospital has achieved a
green space and greening coverage ratio of over 60%, providing patients
with a pleasant hospital environment surrounded by greenery.

2.1  Wastewaters

Hospitals discharge considerable amounts of chemicals and
microbial agents in their wastewaters. Many substances contained
in the wastewaters, such as chemicals, medicine residues as
well as pathogenic resistant bacteria and viruses, resist normal
wastewater treatment and could pose a danger to public health and
the environment if released untreated into the public sewer system.
Due to the chemical and biochemical contaminants, the wastewaters
treatment requires specialised technologies and processes that
cannot be feasibly conducted at the source. The Group engages
a qualified and licensed service provider to process all of the
wastewaters produced by its hospitals. Before the wastewaters
are processed by the service provider, they are stored in dedicated
facilities fo ensure they will not contaminate the primary water supply
for human consumption and clinical use.
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The table below sets forth the discharge volume of wastewaters by
the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

TREINATFERRAEER
BEDS KB E

Change 2020 2019

) —ZE-FF —TNF

Wastewaters discharge (ton) 5K B Rk () -0.5% 317,053 318,692
Wastewaters discharge per gross & SEE &R 57K BER

floor area (ton/gross floor area) (Mg, 3EEER) -8.7% 0.63 0.69

The decrease in wastewaters discharge in 2020 was primarily due to
the decrease in business operation of the Group from the COVID-19
pandemic which resulted in the decease in the overall patient visits in
general during the year.

The discharge of wastewaters is integral to the Group’s clinical
operations and is generally expected to increase in line with business
growth. The management does not currently consider that it is
feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to control or reduce
the amount of wastewaters discharge without compromising sanity
and clinical safety, which are of overriding importance to public
health and safety. The Group regularly reviews its wastewaters
treatment protocols with a view to ensuring there is no inadvertent
contamination of its water supply and that the wastewaters will
be properly handled by the hospitals before treated by the service
provider. The management believes that the wastewaters produced
by the hospitals, after properly treated by the service provider, will
pose minimal risks fo the environment.
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2.2 Hazardous solid wastes

Hospital operations generate a variety of solid medical wastes in
the diagnosis, treatment or immunization of patients or in research
that can pose a danger to public health and the environment if not
properly treated and disposed of. Materials containing pathogens
are infectious can cause diseases if exposed. These include:

o human anatomical waste: waste from surgery and autopsies
on patients with infectious diseases;

° sharps: disposable needles, syringes, saws, blades, broken
glasses, nails or any other item that could cause a cut; and

o pathological: tissues, organs, body parts, human flesh, fetuses,
blood and body fluids.

Non-infectious but hazardous wastes include:

o pharmaceuticals: drugs and chemicals that are returned from
wards, spilled, outdated, contaminated, or are no longer
required; and

° radioactive: wastes contaminated with radioactive substances
used in diagnosis and treatment of diseases.

The Group’s hospitals have in place a comprehensive medical waste
management system:

1. Identification and segregation of waste types: segregation of
different types of wastes at source (wards, operation theaters,
laboratories, examination rooms efc.) with color coding systems
and clear operation guidelines and handbooks, supervised by
responsible staff. Effective segregation diminishes total waste
and the hospital’s environmental footprint;

2.2
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B HEREARS

2. Transport & storage of waste: use of puncture proof and leak
proof containers; bags are properly tied and sealed; use of
special containers for radioactive wastes; use of designated
transport trolleys and timely collection; and storage in covered
areas remote from normal passages with security measures to

prevent unauthorized tempering;

3. Identify the need for use of personal protective equipment:
special clothing, gloves, masks and eye protection identified
and provided to the healthcare works responsible for waste

transportation and disposal; and

4. Proper disposal of waste: collection and subsequent
disposal by qualified and licensed service provider (including
incineration, landfill or chemical/biochemical treatment, as
appropriate to the type of wastes) specialized in medical
wastes disposal. On account of the hazardous nature of these

wastes, they are not typically recycled.

The table below sets forth the volume of hazardous solid medical
wastes produced by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

Y ERRFET  ERH
RERBEZRER: KT
ZEWRERETR  (EH
B EENERTE £
RERNERTFHELRK
RS - RIRTFHERBELL
FRENAERS WK
Mz 2B RERE
BAMA:

a8 Bl {2 R {8 A B o 5 5 Y
FE BAEMBERED
BHMEENEBREARR
HEKRREX FE 0OE
KIRESRE R

HEREED BHERRK
EREEVREENSER
AR e RS REER (2@
FREmBER N HIE
HLB YRR B
WENREERE - AN Z
SEMAEREEN BR
AR BB R -

TREINAATRFERREZER
BELNEZEREREYE

Change 2020 2019
s —E-EF —ZT—NF
Hazardous solid wastes (kg) BEEEED(RT) -12.5% 515,121 588,721
Hazardous solid wastes per gross S E &R
floor area (kg/gross floor areal BEEEEEY
(RFT/3REEHEE) -19.3% 1.022 1266

The decrease in hazardous solid medical wastes produced in 2020
was primarily due to the decrease in business operations of the
Group from the COVID-19 pandemic which resulted in the decrease
in the overall patient visits in general during the year.
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The disposal of hazardous solid medical wastes is integral to the
Group’s clinical operations and is generally expected to increase
in line with business growth. The management does not currently
consider that it is feasible to implement any initiatives or policies to
control or reduce the production of hazardous solid wastes without
compromising sanity and clinical safety, which are of overriding
importance. For example, many surgical tools, protective masks and
gloves and syringes are strictly for one-time use only; extending their
use may reduce waste production but is not clinically acceptable as
it significantly increases the risks of cross-infection among patients
and staff. The Group regularly reviews its waste management
system with a view to ensuring that all of the steps in the chain are
properly followed with the safety of the patients and staff as top
priority. One of the key steps in managing the hazardous wastes is
proper identification and segregation because: (i) this ensures no
hazardous wastes are inadvertently mixed with domestic wastes and
disposed without proper treatment, potentially posing harm to public
safety and environment; and (i) the service provider processes the
wastes collected according to the identification and segregation by
the hospitals. The hospitals have a responsibility and accountability
system for waste management at the source and provide regular
trainings to the front-line staff to ensure that the guidelines and
handbooks are strictly adhered. The management believes that the
hazardous solid wastes produced by the hospitals, after properly
treated by the service provider, will pose minimal risks to the
environment.
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2.3 Domestic wastes 2.3 AJELIR

The Group’s operations generate domestic wastes that are non-
infectious and non-hazardous from the offices, dormitories, kitchens,
rooms, including bed linens, utensils, paper, etc. These wastes are
identified and segregated at source and are eventually collected,
treated and recycled by general wastes service providers.

The table below sets forth the volume of domestic wastes produced

AEENEBRBAE BSE -
BFE  FRELFEREEIE
FHENERE  BEK A
BEH BRF - RFHPRLIRA
TOARRI R 0B - AR — AR AR
VARG IR LR W - BRI N m K
BAMA -

TREINATRFERRAEE R

by the Relevant Operations for the years indicated: BEANEFNRE
Change 2020 2019
23 —EIEF —ZE-NEF
Domestic wastes (kg) BRI (AT -26.6% 2,160,406 2,943,221
Domestic wastes per gross floor FRERBNEENR
area (kg/gross floor area) (RfT/EEER) -32.3% 4.285 6.328

The decrease in domestic wastes produced in 2020 was primarily
due to the decrease in business operations of the Group from the
COVID-19 pandemic which resulted in the decrease in the overall
patient visits in general, and the continuous efforts in reducing office
and other domestic consumables usage using the year.

The Group is conscientious about the environment and is committed
to the recycling of domestic wastes where feasible. This primarily
includes the recycling of paper, plastic, metal and glass. The
Group mandates its staff to segregate the domestic wastes into
appropriate categories for proper handling by the service provider.
The Group also promotes “paper-less” office, including double-
sided or secondary paper printing except for official documents,
multimedia form of presentation in meetings and increasing the use
of office automation system fo reduce administrative paperwork. The
hospitals have an engineering department to salvage any usable
parts or components from decommissioned equipment and furniture,
such as televisions, computers and hospital beds, before they are
disposed of. The Group may also donate obsolete but functional
items, such as computers, to various charitable organisations. The
Group will continue to explore feasible initiatives to reduce domestic
waste production and enhance its recycling efforts.
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RIR  HBRERBRE

2.4 Energy consumptfion 24 BERBR
Healthcare systems are among a community’s largest consumers EEARRETERANEREE
of energy. Hospitals are generally open 24 hours a day and have Bz — - Bl —MREBR24/ N
sophisticated energy needs, such as particular air flow controls % BERAEMNEIRE K
and specialized heating, ventilation and air-conditioning systems. QA TE Y SR i R P A R
The Group’s hospitals’ and operating facilities” energy consumption BRARZERRG REERR K
primarily includes electricity and water. EERENEREEEZBREK
The table below sets forth the consumption of the Relevant TREFRAREFEBALEE
Operations for the years indicated: THERE
Change 2020 2019
2% —EIEF —ZT-hF
Electricity (kilowatt-hours) B (FER) -1.4% 38,761,263 39,291,865
Electricity consumption intensity BAERE
(kilowatt-hours per gross floor (BREEBETLR)
area) -9.0% 76.9 84.5
Water consumption (fon) JKFE (188 ) -7.8% 713,872 77410
Water consumption intensity IKFERE
[fon per gross floor area) (FREEEE) -14.5% 1.42 1.66

Electricity consumption is primarily attributable to air-conditioning,
water heating, lighting and energy demanding medical equipment
such as MRI and X-ray. The Group’s initiatives aimed at reducing
electricity consumption include:

o explore the feasibility of using air heat pump water heater and
gas-fired boiler;

o installation of inverter-type air-conditioning systems that are
more energy-efficient;

o installation of high efficiency LED light sources;
o promote staff awareness and control measures ensure lights

are off when no one is using;

o an energy saving task force is set up to perform regular
inspections of air-conditioning systems and other electrical
systems to ensure no unintended or unusual usage;
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o installation of motion-triggered lightning systems in escalators
and elevators;

J maximize the use of natural sunlight via roof windows;
o implement a system of inspecting office buildings; every
administrative department is responsible for the inspection of

power consumption and timely turning off related electrical
appliances, including lighting, air conditioning and so on.

o installation of automatic door closers in wards with a view
to increasing energy efficiency by limiting the amount of air
movement required, as well as the space that needs to be
cooled; and

o gradually replace obsolete equipment with new equipment
that are certified for energy efficiency.

Water consumption is primarily attributable to cooling equipment,
plumbing fixtures, landscaping, medical process rinses, pure water
systems and domestic uses (sinks, showers, toilets). The Group’s
initiatives aimed at reducing water consumption include:

° leak detection and repair;

J use of high-efficiency showerheads;

o use of low-flow plumbing fixtures;

° use of motion sensor-activated faucets and flow control;

o use of waterless medical vacuum pumps;

o use of reject water produced in the reverse-osmosis process;

. use full loads in sanitizers, sterilizers and laundry washing
machines, consistent with infection control requirements; and

o minimize water use for irrigation with rain/soil moisture
controllers and only during times when wind and evaporation
are lowest.
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The Group achieved remarkable water saving on account of, among
other water-saving initiatives, the installation of more than 1,500 high-
efficiency waterheads at Kanghua Hospital.

In the past, Kanghua Hospital has been awarded by the Dongguan
Water Authority under the Dongguan Municipal People’s Government,
the "Water-Saving Unit of Dongguan” upon passing evaluations on
various aspects, including water-saving rules and regulations, water-
saving containers and infrastructure, water usage planning and
management and water-saving mechanism implementation.

The Group will continue to oversee the effectiveness of the above
initiatives and explore new and innovative ways to achieve water
saving, which will in turn contribute to electricity saving.

The decrease in the consumption of both electricity and water during
the year ended 31 December 2020 was primarily due to the decrease
in business operations of the Group from the COVID-19 pandemic
which resulted in the decrease in the overall patient visits in general
during the year, and restriction and closures of our rehabilitation
centres during the time of the pandemic.

Antibiotics prescription

Antimicrobial resistance is a global public health challenge, which
is aggravated by the overuse of antibiotics. Increased antimicrobial
resistance is the cause of severe infections, complications, longer
hospital stays and increased mortality. Antibiotics over-prescription is
also potentially associated with an increased risk of adverse effects,
more frequent re-aftendance and increased medicalization of self-
limiting conditions.

Inevitably, doctors at the Group’s hospitals prescribe antibiotics to
patients from time fo time. The Group is committed to the judicious
prescription of antibiotics by eliminating unnecessary or sub-optimal
prescriptions. The Group’s continuous efforts has led to a stable
rate of antibiotics prescription of the relevant operations in 2020 as
compared with 2019.
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The Group’s clinical governance tracks a number of parameters to

gauge the prescription of antibiotics as set forth in the table below:

AEBNRKAREEREENE
ZRANETSH  FEHIT

x:
2020 2019 Standard
Kanghua Hospital REER —E-EF —T-NEF S AE
Rate of antibiotics prescription for P9 B &M EZEFE 5 X
Outpatients 8.2% 10.8% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for MAZE H AR E&
emergency treatment VAR R 17.0% 25.8% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription for BT B&EMEZE H X
inpatients 45.0% 47.2% = 60%
2020 2019 Standard
Renkang Hospital ZERER —EEF —E-NEF FA
Rate of antibiotics prescription FIZBEMERE X
for Outpatients 11.1% 15.1% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription NAEZRFAREZ
for emergency freatment SRERILE R 29.5% 31.7% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FhRBEMEERA X
for inpatients 58.8% 62.8% = 60%
2020 2019 Standard
Kangxin Hospital B ER —E-EF —E-NEF FA
Rate of antibiotics prescription FIZBEMEREAE
for Outpatients 1.2% 2.0% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription NAEZRETAREZ
for emergency freatment SRR L X 2.1% 4.0% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FhrEEMERRA X
for inpatients 25.2% 25.0% = 60%
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2020 2019 Standard
Huawei Clinic EHMD —E-EF —E-NEF EA
Rate of antibiotics prescription FIZBEMERE X
for Outpatients 9.5% 17.3% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription MEXREHTARBEERE
for emergency freatment Eo)s s 19.8% 19.8% = 40%
2020 2019 Standard
Anhui Hualin Group ZREREE —EEF —E-NF RAE
Rate of antibiotics prescription FIZEBEMEZRR T E
for Outpatients 13.2% 13.4% = 20%
Rate of antibiotics prescription MEZRAFARES
for emergency freatment SRR & 0% 0% = 40%
Rate of antibiotics prescription FhrBEMEERRA X
for inpatients 21.6% 17.7% = 60%

The Group’s initiatives to the judicious prescription of antibiotics

include:

AEEEEEERMHNERES

BRI

providing education and clinical decision support to doctors
and patients regarding the long-term and community-wide
consequences of overusing antibiotics;

patients should be educated of the importance of following the
use of antibiotics according fo prescription;

doctors should always follow the principle of rational, safe and
effective antibiotics prescription;

antibiotics should be prescribed only for bacterial infections
whenever possible and in the proper dose for the correct
duration;

narrow spectrum antibiotics should be chosen whenever
possible to avoid destroying populations of beneficial bacteria
along with the disease-causing bacteria;
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e publish internal clinical guidelines for doctors to follow, o  HMEAEERENAIEK
especially for common infections, with a view to improving ol FRRHEE R
antibiotics use; R AREMAERER

e rotfating use of different classes of antibiotics where possible; e HAREXREMFEATFRER

I ER

e accountability systems to prompt responsible prescription of e HIEMESE RFER
antibiotics by doctors; BEMMRENAERER

e strictly prohibit any form of advantages or rebates provided by e BBEILHERREME
pharmaceutical companies to incentivize docfors fo prescribe fa] 72 =X 89 4f B2 3k [B] 40 2% B
more antibiotics; and ErRAEHEZNNARR

7k

e regular communications with regulators and healthcare o EABFEABEKIRIED
organizations, including the Chinese Center for Disease Control FORENNEERE RS
and Prevention, to understand the latest community threats BABTHER TH&
and outbreaks with a view to modifying antibiotics prescription TRt RERREE REE
strategy as appropriate. B LHBEE S E

EY R

3. EMPLOYMENT 3. 1Ef®

The success of the Group depends critically on its ability to attract, develop REEBNKD +HEBRRS - FE
and retain its staff. The Group adheres to fair and open recruitment NEBEEIMEND AEBEEBEAM
practices, and provides its staff with adequate protection of rights. During AEMNBEFR TR HREE TE
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group continued to strive for M-BE-Z-_FEF+_A=+—
improvements and innovations in staff support, development and training HIEFE AEBEESHNTETIX
to create a safe and comfortable working environment and provide a B BRE RIF I E1E M OE R AR

fair and collegial learning and development platform. The Group prides NEIEZ 2T ENTERRMNERA
itself on maintaining harmonious relationships with its staff in the spirit of THERABERERTA A&
“Kanghua People”. As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 3,777 REIREANINBSAEES TREFMN
(2019: 3,838) full-time staff. BHERRKR - BE_T_TF+_H

—t+—B AEEXBEEBE 13,777
A(ZZE—N%F :3838A) °
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Recruitment

Recruitment is an important component to the continuous growth
of the Group. The Group’s recruitment process is merit based and
is open to all qualified personnel. In addition to internal recruitment
by job promotion and rotation, the Group also carries out external
recruitment activities. Healthcare professionals are highly sought after
in Guangdong Province. Therefore, the Group strategically extends
its recruitment efforts to other provinces in the PRC. The Group
implements a series of internet recruitment campaigns to reach a
wide base of potential candidates and on campus recruitment drives
in key medical schools and nursing schools in multiple provinces to
aftract talent out of Guangdong Province. Teaching affiliations with
academic institutions enable the Group to identify potential young
healthcare professionals and recruit them early on. The Group also
has in place various referral schemes to identify potential candidates
from its existing staff's social networks. Referred staff generally has
higher retention rates and increased engagement. The Group audits
and verifies staff identify and background as part of the recruitment
process to ensure no child labor or forced labour is employed.
Depending on the position being hired, the Group also conducts
background checks to ensure the veracity of information provided
by the potential candidate. The Group has adopted a Recruitment
Process Management Policy to standardize its recruitment practice.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations such
as the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC,
and enters into labor contracts with its staff. Each of the Group’s
hospitals and operating facilities has adopted a labor union to protect
the rights and interests of its staff and encourage them to participate
in the management of the Group’s operations.

Equal opportunities employer

The Group is an equal opportunities employer. The Group provides
equal opportunities to all staff in a fair, transparent and non-
discriminatory environment. Female staff has equal opportunities
as male staff, and would not prejudiced because of pregnancy. No
religious or racial discrimination is tolerated in recruitment and career
development.

3.1

3.2
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As at 31 December 2020
BE-Z-SFE+-H=1-8

Kangxin Anhui Hualin
Kanghua Hospital Renkang Hospital Hospital Huawei Clinic Group Total Staff
BEER CERER BULER ERMY  ZAEREE YN

Male Female  Male Female Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female

Age Group/Gender ERAR/ MR 8 b4 2 z B b4 2 z B b4 8 b4
Age 51 or above SIEEA L 71 51 31 19 1 6 6 3 13 51 138 136
Age befween 310 50 NZ505% 310 514 94 147 54 93 7 16 50 222 515 992
Age below 30 0BT 164 778 32 197 21 128 2 48 90 389 309 1,540

551 1343 157 363 86 227 15 67 153 668 962 2,668

As at 31 December 2019
BHE-_Z—NWF+=-A=+—H

Kangxin Anhui Hualin
Kanghua Hospital Renkang Hospital Hospital Huawei Clinic Group Total Staff
BEER CRER BEOER E5MY RHEREE BAY
Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female  Male Female

Age Group/Gender ERER /MR g2 x 5 &z &8 & B8 x# & x B Z
Age 51 or above ST L 89 61 30 15 13 6 6 4 A 180 18
Agebetween 311050 31Z50% 32 543 93 W 65 84 7 l 64 194 550 973
Age below 30 0FAAT 165 840 32 198 26 148 3 50 87 437 313 1673

575 1444 155 354 104 238 16 65 193 663 1043 2764

”6 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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3.3 Staff remuneration and retention

The Group's comprehensive staff remuneration and retention policy
is designed with a view to rewarding staff performance and long
term staff retention. It primarily includes: (i) economic components
comprising basic salary determined with reference to the individual's
position, seniority and length of service, performance bonus
determined with reference to the metrics specific to the individual’s
job function and other benefits; and (i) non-economic components
comprising personal development, job challenge and satisfaction,
recognition, work environment, work safety and career advancement.
The Group regularly benchmarks against available market data
and adjusts its remuneration structure with a view to remaining
competitive. While financial incentives are an important factor in
staff retention, the Group recognizes that they alone are not enough
to improve recruitment and retention in a sustainable manner.
Therefore, the Group places equal emphasis on non-economic
factors, in particular personal development, work environment and
collegiality. The Group's career advancement track is transparent and
achievable. The Group provides a platform and support for its staff to
undertake medical education and research in their field of choice.

With a view to retaining and developing talent, the Group actively
identifies high potential staff and provide them with additional
training opportunities, industry exposure and an accelerated career
track. By providing training for new skills and tuition reimbursement
for external courses, the Group’s staff will feel valued, important and
invested in the Group. The Group regularly carries out staff appraisals
to discuss achievements, strengths, and areas for development, and
to set personal objectives with a view to ensuring they feel motivated
and appreciated for their contribution. The Group maintains open
channels of communication with its staff to keep them informed
of the latest developments and provide them with opportunities to
voice their opinions. The Group also recognises that its healthcare
professionals, in particular doctors and nurses, may be subject to
a high pressure and demanding work environment from time to
time due to their job nature, which may result in attrition. The Group
actively monitors the emotional wellbeing of its staff and provide
counselling and supporting arrangements where appropriate. The
Group regularly gauges the working hours of its staff to identify
any staff with excessive workloads and makes alternative staffing
arrangements if necessary. The Group aims to build a strong
organisational culture to cultivate a sense of belonging among its
staff through various staff functions and events. The Group believes
that the creation of a healthy and harmonious working environment
will improve staff morale and productivity in the long term.

3.3
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B HEREARS

3.4

In 2020, the Group began the year with 3,838 (2019: 3,469) full-time
staff, added 396 (2019: 794) full-time staff and lost 457 (2019: 425) full-
time staff during the year. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
a total of 3,777 (2019: 3,838) full-time staff. The attrition rate of full-
time staff (including doctors, nurses, administrative and other support
staff] of the Group for 2020 was 12.2% (2019: 11.7%). The attrition
rate of doctors of the Group for 2020 was 12.5% (2019: 13.9%). The
improvement in attrition rate was primarily attributable to the offering
of more competitive remuneration packages and the enhanced
profile of the “Kanghua” brand.

Training and development

The Group provides structured training and education programmes
to enable its staff to consistently deliver high quality services. These
programmes aim to equip the staff with a sound foundation of the
medical principles and knowledge as well as practical skills in their
respective practice area and foster a high standard of practice,
organisation capability and vigilant attitude. Regular internal and
external mandatory trainings are organised for medical staff to
keep them abreast of the latest development in healthcare. From
time to time, the Group identifies and sponsors its staff with high
development potential to undertake further studies and professional
training in prestigious academic institutions and participate in
industry conventions. Medical teams also benefit from the experience
and knowledge exchange during seminars and sharing sessions
regularly held. The Group encourages medical staff to apply for
professional and technical qualifications and enroll in specialised
training programmes and assessments from time to time, including
induction training for new employees, development training for young
and middle-aged core talent, medical service quality fraining and
management training for young core talent, with a view to ensuring
that their relevant professional competencies meet the required
standards. Through various training and education programmes, the
Group also aims to foster a proactive risk reporting culture among
staff, which is important in the early detection of clinical failure and
damage control.

]]8 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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The Group has adopted a Continuing Education and Training
Management Policy. The training system is supported by three major
components:

o the science and education department is primarily responsible
for training on clinical skills;

o the nursing department is primarily responsible for training on
nursing and patient caretaking skills; and

o the human resources department is primarily responsible
for comprehensive training on staff management capability,
cultural values and technical skills.

The table below sets forth the number of training hours provided to
the Group’s staff of the Relevant Operations for the years indicated:

RIR - HSERERBRS

AEBDRNCEBEHRESEIE
BHIE) - IEIGIEm=EE
R X F

e HMHUMEIZAEBMKIGEE
HEE I

e HEIFTZAAEEELR
Fhm BREEETI K

s ANERMETERBEET
BEEN  XEEBEEER
e 2 EF

TREIRATFERBRALE
EBOAEE B TRHMZIIR
2

Change 2020 2019
FE)K —ECEHF —E-NF
Number of parficipants 28 AKX -37.8% 18,880 30,360
Training man-hours (Hours) I TR (/B -39.1% 236,300 388,120

The decrease in the number of participants and training man-hours
was primarily due to the restriction measures imposed, temporary
closures of our operations and reduction of our non-essential training
at the time of the COVID-19 pandemic during the year.

2 AR MIBFNGERD 2
i A 5 N COVID-19 4% 155 HA R it AN
BIBR HilFE e - EREFRERR & B A K
BPREMZEFIED -
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3.5 Workplace health and safety 35 IESGFRERZZE

The Group highly values occupational safety and strives to eliminate
potential workplace health and safety hazards. The Group maintains
an internal audit and inspection program to ensure the safety of
the hospital premises for patients, the public and staff. The aim of
the audit process is to ensure that the workplace is continuously
monitored and that deficiencies in relation to set standards are
remedied. The Group ensures that each of its hospital departments is
periodically inspected and audited for safety issues, such as medical
treatment safety, environment safety and occupational safety.
The Group actively encourages staff to report health and safety
incidents and risks on a no repercussion basis, and the learning
from proactive monitoring and findings from incident reviews is
used to improve further and refine training programmes, policies
and working practices. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had, in all material respects, complied with applicable laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

The Group is committed to improving the construction of infection
prevention and control systems at both the hospital level and
discipline level, further clarifying the functions of infection prevention
and control teams, revising the infection prevention and control
policies, processes and contfingency plans, and strengthening
the relevant training and education with a view to consistently
standardizing infection prevention and control management.
The Group conducts regular sanitisation to contain the potential
spread of infectious diseases at its hospitals. The Group has
established surveillance systems to closely monitor the prevalence of
nosocomial infections at its hospitals and ensure that such incidents
are maintained at a very low level in compliance with applicable
standards. The Group also provides periodical occupational safety
education and training to augment its staff's awareness of safety
issues. The Group provides its staff with regular health assessment
to monitor their overall health. In particular, the Group adopts
stringent assessment protocols for its staff that are regularly exposed
to high-risk environments such as radiation and clinical wastes to
ensure their exposure is within acceptable safety limits. Such staff
are provided with adequate protective gears and are regularly
required to take days off to minimize the long term health effects of
radiation. Each relevant staff is required fo follow specific procedures
and guidelines laid down by the hospital, including Medical Staff
Occupational Exposure Protection and Reporting Policy. From
time to time, the Group engages third party experts to assess the
effectiveness of the hospitals’ safety and protective measures.
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The Group recognizes that medical violence has in recent years
become a workplace safety hazard faced by many medical
professionals in the PRC. In light of this, the Group has established
internal guidelines and provided trainings to better prepare its staff
in handling such situations, including setting a risk assessment of
patient violence, implementing an on-line direct reporting system
for adverse events of hospitals and adhering to the Regulations on
Prevention and Treatment of Medical Disputes recently issued by
the government and taking into account the actual circumstances of
the hospitals to establish an early warning management system for
patient safety. The department of security is able to dispatch security
officers experienced in handling incidents of medical violence.
The Group also works closely with the police bureaus and law
enforcement agencies who will be able to dispatch officers in short
notice to the hospitals if necessary.

The table below sets forth key health and safety information of the
Relevant Operations for the years indicated:
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RIR - HERERRE
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4. SERVICE QUALITY 4. REEE
As embodied in the Group’s motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice” BREERE[BEERD EREHE
(B A« EEHE) the Group adopts a patient-centric approach in RIRE AEEERMEBELE
treating all patients, the well-being of whom form the core of its values. The BEREBUNEERPLHAR  BEL
Group places a high priority on providing patients with consistently high ReHEEZL ASEREERA
quality service and support, which is crucial fo ifs long-term success. The BERBR-EBENEBERBHEIFE &
Group provides patient care in an ethical manner, and at the best possible HERBKDEHEZE - BERIEE
quality, taking into consideration patient safety, patients’ satisfaction and T2 BEREERRBESER K&
service efficiency. aFEmas - AER e
EEREBERMERE-
41 Patient satisfaction and complaints 41 BEREERKF
The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated customer service department AEBENBERREEERFR HH“
to collect and gauge patient feedbacks. The customer service HAWERFTELBERE -
department is an important component in ensuring that patient THTEHRRERERES /%L
experience is positive through proactive outreach and responsive PRGBS ERREEERER
communication. The table below sets forth key operating datfa of the WEZHEKE D o TERIHIIARF
Group's customer service for the years indicated: TEEAEEEFPRENEEL
EBUR
Change 2020 2019
)% —E-EF ZZT—NF
Number of patients served Ri%8E NIX +5.4% 123,096 116,742
Customer service man hours ZHR A TR +0.1% 2,025,074 2,022,338

The increase in number of patients served was primarily due to (i)
the increase in patients vistis and served at Kanghua Hospital —
Huawei Clinic during the year; and (i) further improved efficiency
and automation of certain aspects of outpatient customer service
at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital in 2020 through online
platforms.
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The hospitals continuously review and streamline patient registration
process and provide regular staff customer-service training. The
hospitals also conduct patient satisfaction surveys. Such results serve
to establish a baseline to monitor changes in patient experience and
satisfaction in specific area of service delivery. These surveys primarily
include:

o call back interviews with inpatients, outpatients and physical
examination patients;

o surveys delivered through short messaging services;
° on-site questionnaires; and
o comments collection boxes.

The Group also cooperates with third parties to conduct
comprehensive surveys and analytical studies from time to time.

The subjective nature of the healthcare industry means that the
Group occasionally receives patient complaints in the ordinary
course of business. The Group has implemented a standardised
customer complaint management at each of its hospitals with
a view fo promptly, accurately and comprehensively collecting
feedback from patients, addressing patients’ concerns, continuously
improving clinical processes and ultimately delivering service of
the highest standard to patients. The Group generally classifies
patient complaints in three major categories of importance: (i) critical
complaints, which may involve deficiencies in clinical quality resulting
in adverse effects to patients, medical disputes attracting media
attention and intervention from regulatory authorities, extremely
poor service aftitude, verbal abuses or assaults on patients, or any
complaints regarding medical ethics; (ii) regular complaints, which
may involve general service atfitude, environment, accommodation,
hospital or inter-departmental processes resulting in inconvenience
to patients, billing error, repeated assessment, pricing or lack of
communication or language skills; and {iii) immaterial complaints,
which may involve mere service recommendations or trivial
comments, or complaints that are frivolous, vexatious or are primarily
attributable to the patients’ individual condition.
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The table below sets forth the number of each category of complaints
received by the Group for the years indicated:

TREINFARFEAEEUE
MR BIRGEREA ¢

Change 2020 2019
BEpxK —EEF —T-NEF
Number of critical complaints R IR BB -6.3% 15 16
Number of regular complaints EHIR R -25.4% 50 67
Number of immaterial complaints ~ IFE&E B 1% 5k & B -1.2% 333 337
Total #Et -5.2% 398 420

Patients may lodge a complaint by mail, telephone, touch-screen
terminals or in person. The Group has dedicated facilities to record
the complaint process on a confidential basis to safeguard the
interests of all parties involved and ensure that the complaint
processes are conducted fairly with proper records. The hospitals
have a complaint office, a unit led by a highly experienced hospital
manager and dedicated to the management of patient complainants.
The complaint office acts as the complainant point of contact,
explains the complaint process to the complainants, directs patient
complaints to appropriate departments and governance committees
for detailed investigation and root-cause analysis, conducts in-
depth fact-finding, proactively oversees and manages the complaint
processes, coordinates and communicates with the parties involved,
accurately records all relevant findings on a confidential basis and
formulates the appropriate replies to the complainants. All initial
complaints and views will be handled and responded to directly by
the complaint office. The Group is committed to resolving all patient
complaints in the shortest period of time, or on the spof, if possible,
though resolution of critical complaints generally requires a longer
period of time. For critical complaints involving clinical safety or
possible health implications, the Group proactively takes immediate
actions to prevent and minimise adverse effects on patients. The
hospital policy mandates every complaint to be properly lodged and
processed through the system and prohibits staff from reaching a
private seftlement with the complainants, which may potentially place
the hospital in a disadvantaged situation if such complaints were to
escalate further.
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The Group regards patient complaint management as an important
component for the continuous improvement of clinical safety and
quality. The Group treats each of the patients” complaints seriously
and regards them as the best source for improvement. Complaint
reports are regularly reported to senior management for review. For
every patient complaint, the Group is committed to understanding its
fact pattern and root cause, ascertaining the responsible parties and
areas of improvement. The hospitals organise a monthly complaints
analysis meeting to identify improvement areas in clinical processes,
make recommendations and ensure the relevant administrative
and clinical departments implement the necessary improvements
promptly. In addition, the hospitals organise a quarterly complaints
sharing session on the root cause of the complaints, improvement
processes implemented and lessons learnt with a view to cultivating
a sense of vigilance among staff.

For critical complaints that may escalate into medical disputes, the
complaint office will notify the medical dispute contingency task force,
headed by the director and senior management of the hospital, to
initiate the medical dispute process involving a highly coordinated
effort of various units of the hospital. In 2020, most of the complaints
were resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes. In 2020, 8 medical disputes cases (2019: 6) were
materialised during the year.

Service quality management

The Group adopts a comprehensive service quality management
system consisting of the following key components:

o structure - the availability of clinical resources, including
medical equipment, hospital governance structure, human
resources, bed to staff ratio, clinical objectives, practice
guidelines and standards;

J process — the clinical processes, including whether clinical
procedures are conducted according to the relevant
specifications, work flow and nosocomial infections; and

o outcome — patient's well-being after receiving service, including
efficacy of treatment, recovery progress, health conditions,
satisfaction and complications arising from treatments.
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The service quality management system has a wide scope. In
addition to monitoring the quality of diagnosis (whether it is accurate,
comprehensive and prompt), the quality of tfreatment (whether
it is effective, prompt, thorough and of a reasonable duration),
nosocomial infections control and clinical deficiency (whether
resulting injuries, harm or pain to patients that could otherwise be
avoided), the system also monitors clinical efficiency, reasonableness
of medical fees, the input-output relationship of applied medical
techniques, systematic services and continuum and community
feedback. Under this system, each hospital department is given
quantifiable service quality targets to achieve and parameters
to monitor. Service quality management and improvement is a
continuous process. Any deficiency, once identified, will be handled
promptly with appropriate level of supervision.

High standard of clinical governance maintains the Group’s inpatient
fatality rate consistent with the risks inherent in hospital operations
and industry. As the Group increases its intake of patients with critical
conditions and/or require specialized and complex emergency
procedures that carry higher risks of unfavourable clinical outcome,
its inpatient fatality rate may increase. The table below sets forth the
Group’s inpatient fatality rate for the years indicated:
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B EEEARRA A H A7 2UR
eWMBE - BETRER) I Z
BETEZERER BEEM
BN FAERBERRMMEAE
HER - RFERE SEBIER
HERRE - EZERT  BR&
M=ERRHAED WA 8RR
EEARNER28 - RKEE
IR M SCE R — AR AR B o
ERE—K%ER NENEE
EBEMBIRRERE

192 B R R AR B £ B
FAFE T R BB B RAT A
BE BRI 5 EEAEE
BINERERBER ABEY
PY A% B A F AT A B
FIBR R 5 REB NS E - R
AR ELGER - TR
BB 4 LA B A EE R A A B
=

Change 2020 2019

BER —EEF —T-NEF

Total number of inpatient deaths  1EBEmATE T2 E +3.1% 334 324
% of total inpatients fR1ERR R A BB

Elaysd -0.01b.p. 0.27% 0.28%
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4.3 Patient privacy protection

The Group’s hospitals have a dedicated medical records
management department to handle patients’ medical records. The
hospitals strictly adhere to applicable laws and regulations in relation
to patient privacy, including Guangdong Province Medical Records
Writing and Management Specifications and Healthcare Institutions
Medical Records Management Rules. The hospitals have stringent
protocols on the creation, maintenance, reviewing and copying,
sealing or unsealing and preservation of patient medical records.
These protocols are also design to ensure that the records are not
accidentally accessed, processed, erased, lost or used without
authorization. Patient medical records are generally kept for 15 years.
Before access to the relevant medical records is granted, patients or
their families will need to produce the original of the patient's identity
documents and a signed consent letter. The medical administration
department is responsible for overseeing and auditing medical
records management.

The Group also promotes patient privacy awareness among staff
by conducting regular training and sharing sessions. Hospital staff
are sensitive to patient privacy and place additional emphasis
on protecting patient privacy during every aspect of the clinical
processes. Save as required by applicable laws and regulations,
patient information can only be released with consent.

Each of the Group’s hospitals has an information technology
department responsible for reviewing and implementing data
protection measures in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. The hospitals’ resources that store and manage patient
data are physically disconnected from internet access points to
prevent external leakage and tempering activities. The hospitals strictly
adhere to grade three security requirements under the Administrative
Measures for the Graded Protection of Information Security. The
hospitals’ network security, system security and database security are
reviewed from time to time and are comprehensively audited at least
once every year fo ensure the required standards are met.
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The hospitals have formulated policies for privacy data administration
which sets out the overall responsibilities and procedures to ensure
that all users adhere to defined standards. The hospitals have
promulgated internal instructions setting out specific procedures
regarding the handling of documents containing patient data. Staff
are also required to observe the hospitals’ internal instructions on
the security of computer systems (including storage, processing,
transmission and management of classified information, data
encryption and physical security of computer systems). Violation of the
above requirements will result in disciplinary actions. The hospitals
provide regular updates and trainings to staff on data protection to
cultivate their data protection awareness. Staff who need to have
access to sensitive data are also required to enter info a confidential
undertaking with respect to any patient data, operational, financial
and other sensitive information that they may come across.

The hospitals implement strong access controls to information. The
degree of access and control the staff has to sensitive information
is determined by reference to the relevance to their role, their post
and/or seniority and is reviewed from time to time. Any unnecessary
or obsolete access rights will be revoked immediately. All network
actions are recorded on the systems and continuously monitored for
any irregularity. In the event of an information security breach, such
records will enable the hospitals to carry out detailed investigations
and damage control.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to patient privacy.
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44 Suppliers 44 {hpER

The Group's suppliers primarily consist of agents and distributors of
pharmaceuticals, medical consumables and medical equipment.
The Group seeks o manage inventory risks by maintaining adequate
inventories and building strong relationships directly with suppliers.
Suppliers are cautiously selected for quality, reputation, price, product
and service offerings and delivery capability. The Group routinely
assesses its suppliers’ performance, credit-worthiness, re-confirm
their qualifications (such as GMP and/or GSP Certificates, where
appropriate) and ensure the compliance status and quality of the
supplies. The Group undertakes reasonable due diligence of its
suppliers’ qualifications, including:

o suppliers are required to provide all relevant qualification
documents and licenses for inspection;

o the procurement department is responsible for verifying the
genuineness, validity and scope of the qualification documents
and licenses;

o the qualification documents and licenses will be provided
to the relevant departments, including warehouse, medical
equipment department and pharmacy department for the
relevant staff to take note of the source of the supplies and their
qualifications; and

o the suppliers shall promptly produce any updates or changes
to the qualification documents and licenses.
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The Group has adopted a stringent policy that prohibits suppliers
from contacting and offering rebates to doctors to solicit business. If
any supplier is found to be in violation, the Group will immediately
terminate the business relationship. The Group believes that such
practice minimizes the risk of corrupt practices, thereby safeguarding
the quality of the supplies.

The Group has an internal rating system for its suppliers, which can
broadly be classified into:

(il excellent suppliers: the Group should increase purchase
volume, and maintain stable relationship with, these suppliers;

(il mediocre suppliers: the Group should gradually reduce
purchase volume with, and pay closer scrutiny on, these
suppliers; and

(il  poor suppliers: these suppliers are blacklisted and the Group
should no longer purchase from them. These suppliers
typically include those who do not comply with the purchase
agreement, have questionable reputation, always misrepresent
the product price, do not deliver the required quantity at the
required time, deliver supplies with inferior quality, or show no
improvement despite repeated warnings.
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The Group recognizes that purchasing products with reduced
environmental and human health impacts is vital to sustainable
healthcare. The Group is exploring various ways to achieve
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (“EPP), an act of purchasing
products whose environmental impacts have been considered and
found to be less damaging to the environment and human health
when compared to competing products. EPP may be feasible to
achieve overall cost saving and waste reduction while meeting
the needs of patients. The Group has begun its EPP efforts with a
few carefully targeted purchasing changes, and if feasible, will
expand the scope of environmental purchasing to select as many
environmentally sound, healthy and safe products as a hospital can
use. The Group believes that EPP may become an important part of
the process toward sustainable operations. Downstream corrections
of environmental or occupational health issues are generally more
costly — in terms of money, labor, technical complexity, and adverse
publicity — than prevention through EPP. By carefully selecting
products, a hospital may achieve:

o a significant reduction in overall impact on the environment,
cost reduction with lower purchase prices or changes that
reduce or eliminate waste disposal, hazardous waste, and/or
the need for worker safety measures;

o a healthier environment for patients and staff through reduced
exposure to hazardous substance; and

° opportunities for positive publicity and promotion.
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Any implementation of EPP is expected to be gradual, and may
require substantial changes to purchasing and clinical configuration
of the hospital. The Group will comprehensively assess the long-term
benefits of EPP, clinical feasibility and business considerations when
making any purchasing changes.

In addition to the purchase of pharmaceuticals, medical consumables
and medical equipment, the Group also relies on various vendors
for engineering and renovation services at the hospital premises
from time to time. The Group uses its best efforts to ensure that these
vendors are properly qualified and will take all appropriate measures
to protect the environment both inside and outside the work site
and limit harmful effects to the public and property due to wastes,
pollution, noise and other nuisances caused by the engineering work.
These vendors are expected to satisfy the applicable requirements
under the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor Contract Law of the
PRC and provide the workers with adequate social security and
benefits under the relevant laws. The Group pays close attention
on the engineering work and may from time to time engage third-
party supervision to ensure that the engineering work meets the
applicable national engineering specifications and standards and
environmental protection.
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4.5 Anti-bribery and corruption risks

The PRC government has recently enhanced its anti-bribery efforts to
prevent improper payments and other benefits received by doctors,
staff and hospital administrators in connection with the procurement
of pharmaceutical and medical supplies and the provision of
healthcare services. In addition, Grade A Class Il hospitals in the PRC,
such as the Group’s Kanghua Hospital, are subject to particularly
stringent requirements, including as part of the criteria for such
ratings, requiring all such hospitals to (i) implement internal controls
and risk management measures addressing bribery and corruption
risks; and (ii) undergo annual inspections from relevant regulatory
authorities as to their anti-bribery and corruption status. The Group
has implemented the following policies and procedures to address
potential bribery and corruption incidents:

o an anti-bribery function at the Group level led by the chief
financial officer of the Company. This function is in charge
of developing the overall framework of anti-bribery and
corruption policies and procedures and providing guidance
and supervision towards implementing them across every
aspect of the Group’s operations. Each of the Group’s hospitals
will immediately report any suspected incidents of bribery and
corruption to the chief financial officer of the Company, who
will then carry out any further investigations if necessary and
determine the appropriate course of action. From time to time,
the Group provides training to its staff and updates on recent
anti-bribery and corruption issues and practices as they arise;
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e the Group has in place a robust whistle blower programme o AREBERIEEA ST
accessible by staff and business partners, including a E-EBEIREBEHEGR
dedicated hotline and an email address, to receive reports of BRELG LB R
alleged corruption on a no repercussion basis, with the option WM IR moE | A ER R
of anonymity. The Group has established a zero-tolerance BEMORE  BWE]
policy towards staff accepting any form of bribes. Such policy is B NEEHE W
included in the staff handbook and code of conduct. Any of the FRMEANEBERRNER
staff found in breach of anti-bribery and corruption policy will RBE - ZBEHNREL
be dismissed. The Group also takes appropriate measures to ? it R1TRAER] - EME
discourage patients from offering any form of payment or gift —EERERAEEH
to staff for better or priority services, including displaying the Jiﬂﬁ BERBRBEE S
relevant policies and laws in prominent places in the hospital W BB o AN & B IR R EUE
premises; EMREYARARES

T BERG M RARE

IE’]EIT%?EE{EJ%EW@
Tek@m BREEBKR
%QEEuEJ: TN B BOR &

ERE

e the Group has close oversight over every aspect of the e AEBRTYERRERE
procurement processes. The Group has established a WEBEAE  NREED R
systematic multi-tier approval process involving various U REEEF ZEE
departments, dedicated governance committees and BZEGRERRBER
management for different categories of procurement. The WESUEZEEHRE -
procurement processes are segregated and no particular BN EBEREAED B
individual or department has excessive authority, control g 3R E B A 3k &5 P
or influence, thereby minimising the risk of corruption or WS EhliEsTER
abuse. Before engaging in any business relationship with R-BHEEAI&ZARE 5¢1
a new supplier, the Group conducts due diligence to obtain 58 B sk B PR Bk A A L B
reasonable understanding of its background and its connection BT R B AR ﬂ‘%
with the Group, including how such supplier was referred to BRA AEEETRE
the Group in the first place. The Group requires its suppliers to AE UNEBERAES=R
agree fo anti-bribery and corruption provisions in the supply RERANEENBEER 8
agreements. In particular, suppliers are prohibited from RZEERERSIBER
soliciting business with the hospital staff directly. Any violation SEMAFH  c REBEEK
will result in the Group’s immediate business termination with HEMRERMHERZ
such suppliers; and P A B B R SR T BB ST o

LER ZIIHERER
AP ERS THRER
Be—BER AKEEK
MBAR E R R Y
xR
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o as part of the Group’s key clinical governance, the
Pharmaceutical Administration and Therapeutics Committee at
each of the Group’s hospitals regularly reviews drug prescription
patterns. Any unreasonable or inexplicable irregularities or red
flags indicative of a deliberate attempt to substantially increase
the prescription of certain drugs will be promptly reported and
investigated.

In line with requirements under applicable PRC laws and regulations,
the Group has established a strict “no red packet policy” for medical
professionals not to personally accept any form of payment or
advantages from patients in return for more favourable treatments.
The Group requires all healthcare professionals to report to
management of all instances of red packets offered by patients.
The table below sets forth the number and monetary amount of
red packets rejected by the healthcare professionals for the years

RIR - HSERERBRS
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indicated: ABERNABPEE RS :
Change 2020 2019
) —EEE —ZE-NF
Number of red packets rejected ERABEE -44.9% 145 263
Total monetary amount involved Fir % 42 & 8
(RMB) (AR®TT) -38.5% 133,132 216,478

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had, in all material
respects, complied with applicable laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery and corruption.
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COMMUNITY BENEFIT PROGRAMMES

As encompassed in the motto “Empathic e Virtuous Medical Practice”
(BEE A« EEHE), the Group regards social contribution as one
of its core values. The Group prides itself on being a socially responsible
private hospital operator. The Group demonstrates its commitment to
community service through organized and sustainable community benefit
programmes primarily providing: (i) free and discounted care to those
unable to afford healthcare; and (i) services or education designed to
improve community health and increase access to healthcare. These
programmes are purposely designed to create meaningful impact by
responding to identified community needs, as opposed to being random
acts of kindness.

The Group has implemented a comprehensive framework for planning,
delivering and reporting its community benefit efforts, including the
following elements:

o sustainable infrastructure — the Groups has fostered a culture that
supports its community benefit initiatives and has in place operational
elements that sustain the community benefit programmes, such
as clinical resources, staff, budget and supporting policies and
procedures;

° plan for community benefit — through regular communication
with public health organizations and the community, the Group
continuously assesses and prioritizes community health needs and
develops community benefit programmes accordingly;

° account for community benefit — the Group has established effective
administrative and accounting processes to account for and report
community benefit to its stakeholders; and

o evaluate community benefit programmes — the Group assesses the
quality, effectiveness and impact of the relevant programmes and
activities.
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In 2020, the Group organized numerous volunteer programmes and free
clinics, with a focus primarily on children and elderly people with limited
health awareness and/or access to affordable and adequate healthcare.
The free clinics also penetrated remote areas where basic healthcare
resources are scarce. The table below sets forth certain data of the Relevant
Operations community benefit efforts for the years indicated:

RIB - B RERHRE

—ECRF AREHEBAETREE
HERRESY EHUREREER
BRER/RBAZTXEMNEENE
BRBIXEABEREIENZRERK
FE-REGLNMAAEARBRERE
ZHREILE - TRFINARFE
ERRLEXBHEREN TIENE T
&

Change 2020 2019
& —E-EF — N4
Volunteer activities SHEHETLEY
Number of volunteer activities ELEHRE -46.2% 183 340
Number of staff participants S2HET AR -31.8% 504 739
Total number of volunteer man-hours 2HEFET EBH A BRE -36.4% 2,427 3,814
Free clinics REBED
Number of free clinics REEDRE -40.3% 184 308
Number of staff participants 28BT AKX -35.3% 509 787
Estimated number of patients served PR B & (HaT AR -40.3% 14,036 23,492
Total number of free clinic man-hours CEGDHETR -39.2% 1,491 2,454
Total amount of compensation provided [AIZHE P EEZHE T
to staff for parficipating in free REta R esE
clinics (RMB) (ANR®IT) -2.0% 24,500 25,000
The decrease in all aspects of volunteer activities and free clinics was RZEZZF FESFEHMNEL
primarily due to the restrictions imposed, decrease in patients served il ib )Si mRBEZRL TEHR
at Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital and reduction of our non- COVID-19 %% 1B EAMI T FREE B b R (Z R

essential activities during the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020.
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE'S ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GBRFCRIE - B RERREESD
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX AESE ]
A.  Environmental A IRIE
KPI
BRENES
Aspect Al: Emissions
BE A : R
Types of emissions and respective The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al
emissions data greenhouse gas emission Al.2
e TR SR K B B B B B RS T 3R = R B HE R B KRR
Greenhouse gas emission in total
REREAENE
Total hazardous and non-hazardous Wastewaters produced: 317,053 tons (2019: 318,692 tons) Al3
waste produced and intensity FrEE A RE7K ¢ 317,053 M8 (—F — JL4F « 318,69218) Al4
FEEEERBEREEMEEREE
Hazardous solid wastes produced: 515,121 kg
(2019: 588,721 kg)
FIEEEEEEERY : 51512187
ZE—NF 588720 RT)
Domestic wastes produced: 2,160,406 kg
(2019: 2,943,221 kg)
PREEAHEIEREEY) 2,160,406 AT
ZE—NF 2,943,221 A7)
Measures to mitigate emissions and The Relevant Operations are not a significant source of Al5

results achieved
BAKBENE R HE R FTIS R R

greenhouse gas emission
BRAKEERBIIOR = REBHMAERKIR
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KPI
BRENES
Description of how hazardous and Handling Al6
non-hazardous wastes are handled, %)

reduction initiatives and results
achieved

HEIERERBEERZMNITE

WARE S EBNIEERATSRR

Wastewaters and hazardous solid wastes: handled by
qualified contractors licensed by environmental authorities
KRB EBBEZEY - BRSNS ER
AR R B TR

Domestic wastes: handled by eligible contractors through
tendering

EEEREY  mPRNAREAEHEE

Reduction initiatives

TR E 4+ BRI IE

Domestic wastes: segregation and recycling; promoting
staff awareness and paper-less office initiatives; reuse of
components in decommissioned equipment and furniture
EEBREY pBREN RS EIEHRREAHRA
Gt EENAREREBELEENANT

Wastewaters and hazardous wastes: production of these
wastes is integral to clinical activities and maintaining a high
clinical standard and environment sanitation. The Group
currently considers it is not feasible to excessively reduce the
production of these wastes without compromising clinical
standards, which are of overriding importance

KL BEERY  ET2RIVESELRRY
BPRFREREERBRRHERE - AEEB AR
RBERDZEEENEES TR ORIRETH
ML EEEEREE  BURBEAL T E AT
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B HEREARS

KPI
BERENIES
Aspect A2: Use of Resources
BEA2 : ERERA
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption  Electricity: 38,761,263 kw/hr (2019: 39,291,865 kw/hr) A2.1
by type B : 38,761,263 T R (=& — L4 : 39,291,865 F FLEF)
RER S DM ERE R EEER
e
Water consumption in total Water consumption: 713,872 tons (2019: 774,110 tons) A2.2
mREKE FEKE : 713,872WE (ZZ — LG : 774,11018)
Energy use efficiency initiatives and results  Efficiency improving initiatives A2.3
achieved M teHi1 &) A2.4

BETR{E A an st & R AT IS AR

Use of energy efficient light source, water heating, air-
conditioning and equipment; staff awareness; regular audit
of energy usage and inspection of energy demanding
processes

FREMEONNIR KE ERALZE ReEEIEH:
EHEZRE A MR T ERE K2

Results achieved

VRIS

Energy consumption per gross floor area was decreased
by 9.0% primarily because of the decrease in energy
consumption during the year, however, there was an
increase in gross floor space occupied at our Relevant
Operations in 2020

FRERENRREERNLD9.0%  FT2HRFARMNEE
REFERD A RZZE_TFRALEEBHG
Hh 1 TE A PE N

The Group will continue to monitor the effectiveness of the
initiatives on a long term basis

A6 B S A AR R A BE AR AT B RO RO
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RIR - HSERERBRS

KPI
BREMER

Water efficiency improving initiatives and
results achieved

RITRK R 8 R ATISAR

Total packaging material used for finished
products
HmTABEMHNES

Efficiency improving initiatives

Mz tET 5 &)

Leak detection and repair; use of efficient and low flow
plumbing fixtures; motion sensor-activated faucets and flow
control, waterless medical vacuum pumps; use full loads in
sanitizers, sterilisers and laundry washing machines
BRI L E RS ERETEEE B
FEKBESR S M BEH - BREBKEZER R E
FAEES  BRE S RERE

Results achieved

VR PES

Water consumption infensity decreased by 14.5% primarily
because of the decrease in water consumption during the
year, however, there was an increase in gross floor space
occupied at our Relevant Operations in 2020. The Group will
continue to monitor the effectiveness of the initiatives on a
long term basis
KEHEFERERMAD145% T EZRRFRHKEEER
Do R RZEEFERREEBN L EES
FTIEIN » AR 6R B G 4 A = HRBE 1 5T S BV B

The Relevant Operations do not involve significant use of A2.5
packaging materials
AEENFRASEEBL NS RAREFEABREME

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHAS : BERRARER

The significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them

EBEHHRBERRAERNEARF
ERERNERFHELENTY

The Relevant Operations had no significant impact on the A3.1
environment and natural resources during 2020

FRAREEBN _Z_EFHRRLRAERLESE
N2
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RIE  HSREBRE

B.  Social B. #&
Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BEREIER BRENES
Aspect B1: Employment
EBmEB : &
Total workforce by gender, employment  As of 31 December 2020: B1.1
type and age group BE_ZE_ZTF+_A=+—8":
R EREL R FREREI D
EE A Total of number of staff of the Group: 3,777 (2019: 3,838)
REBMMB T 3777 A (ZF—HF : 3,838 A)
— by nature of work
—RIEMLEE D
Doctors: 873 (2019: 904)
BAE 8B A(ZZT—N%F : 904A)
Other medical, administrative and support staff: 2,904
(2019: 2,934
HhEE  THREENET : 2,904 A
ZE—NF 2,934 A)
— by gender
—RMRIE 5
Male: 962 (2019: 1,060)
B 962 A(ZZE—LF 1,060 A)
Female: 2,815 (2019: 2,778)
22815 A(ZE—NEF 1 2,778 A)
-by age group
—RFWAERIE D
Age 51 or above: 274 (2019: 298)
51808 A | - 274 A(ZF— N5 - 298 A)
Age between 31to 50: 1,507 (2019:1,538)
312 50%% : 1,507 A (ZZF—H4F : 1,538 A)
Age below 30: 1,996 (2019: 2,002)
B0AREIA T 11,996 A (ZF—H5F 1 2,002A)
Employee attrition rate Attrition rate: 12.2% (2019: 11.7%) B1.2

EBERKLLE

SRR 1 12.2% (ZE—NE 11.7%)
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RIR - HSERERBRS

Employment and Labour Practices KPI

BRERETIER BRENIER

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EMEB2 : REHZZ

Relating fo providing a safe working In 2020: B2
environment and protecting employees —F —Z 4 :

from occupational hazards
FHREZE2THERRRRERES&
RBEERE

Number of staff contracting infections due to occupation: 0
(2019:19)
B EEERANEIHE :OA(ZZE-AF 19A)

Number of staff deaths: 0 (2019: 0)
BTIWTHE :0A(ZE—RF:0A)

Number of staff disabilities due to occupation: 0 (2019: 0)
FBEREANBEIHE - OA(ZE-NF:0A)

Number of man-days lost due to occupation related injuries

orillness: 0(2019: 0)

ARERECEIERETNMIERIRE : 0K
“Z-NF:0K)

Health and safety measures adopted:
ERMM R T 2

Regular audit and inspection of operating premises;
ERERLIRERE R

proactive risk reporting culture among staff;
EETREKFBRENE

continuous learning from health and safety incidents and
improvement of processes;
FELRFERZE2ENPEBFLRINERRF
regular staff health and exposure assessment;
TERETTE TRE X AR

provision of adequate protective gears;
REETHNER

third party inspection and assessment; and
F=mERE &

adequate support to handle incidents of medical violence
BTRAXFHARERBERNEMH

BEREEBERNARQRF F3H 2020
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BIE  HEBRERRE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
EBRERREZIER BRENIER

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETH B3 : B[R R

Policies on improving employees’ In 2020: B3
knowledge and skills for discharging —E-FF
duties at work
BRIRFEE BT TIEBEMA#H Y Number of parficipants in fraining and development
REERBR programmes: 18,880 (2019: 30,360)
2E R ERBEEME T AR 18,880 A
(ZZ—N%F : 30,360 A)

Total number of training man-hours: 236,300 (2019: 388,120
IR TR : 236,300/ B (Z & — L4 - 388,120 /) BF)

Description of training activities The Group has a comprehensive Continuing Education and
L E FIE B Training Management Policy
AEBRBELTENEEHRSEINIEEGE

Training activities include fraining on clinical skills; nursing
and patient caretaking skills; and comprehensive training on
staff management capability, cultural values and technical
skills

ZE B BRI R IR - EERRABERENEI
UEHETEREN  MEEBERRMEENZEE
Bl

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[EMEB4 : & T %8|

Employment practices to avoid child and  The Group stringently complies with all national and local B4.1
forced labour laws, including the Labor Law of the PRC and the Labor
D7 1EE T R ag 45 Ty BB fl Contract Law of the PRC;

REEBRET BRI EE  BE(REAR
HAE S8R R(FEARLANRDLHA AR

The Group conducts background checks and reasonable
due diligence on job applicants; and
REBEHBURBZAETESAELAEETRES
K

labour unions are established to protect the rights and
interests of staff
& T8 AR B THEF R A&

Steps taken to eliminate such practices During 2020, the Group had no non-compliance in this B4.2
when discovered respect

EERRERBEAFEBREABLME RIZ_TF AEETVELFTENTERBER
A 2 5
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Employment and Labour Practices
BRERETIER

RIR - HSERERBRS

KP!
BREMER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EEBS : HEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain
BT MR R A IR T At g AR R

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BHEBs : EmEE

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

BEESDEXERAHTRLT 2 HE
FRIESHMARKKE DL

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with

EEMANERRRBORFEE UK
it PapzS

Practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights
B NRENBEEEGENED

The Relevant Operations do not have a supply chain business  B5

FRKEEBWERE HERER

It has a stringent criteria in selecting suppliers and conducts
reasonable due diligence to ensure that its suppliers are
appropriately qualified and licensed
HEMEHER T OREBRBFRELETAERRE
EURRMHEREABEENERMER

The Group will continuously assess the feasibility of
“environmentally preferable purchasing” (EPP)

AEBE B FHER G RRERE ] EPPI AT 1T IE

Not applicable to the Relevant Operations B6.1
TEANEBREER

In 2020: B6.2
—E-FF:

Number of critical complains: 15 (2019: 16)
BSIRFEE - BR(ZT—NF 1 161R)

Number of regular complaints: 50 (2019: 67)
EHIIRERER 50 R(ZF— N4 : 671R)

Number of immaterial complaints: 333 (2019: 337)
FEERFHE - 333X (ZF—NF : 337K%)

The Group’s hospitals have a comprehensive complaint
management system. In 2020, most of the complaints were
resolved amicably with only a few of them escalated into
medical disputes.
AEENBRRAEZHNRFERRS - —T-FF -
RBORFEENRE - EHLEARSBRUL -

The Relevant Operations do not involve a significant degree B6.3
of intellectual property rights
FRAREEBIES RERBEAN A BERE
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B HEREARS

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
ERRE TR BIRAN ST
Quality assurance process and recall The Group has a comprehensive service quality B6.4
procedures management system consisting of structure, process and
EE2RTiREREmBKRET outcome. It has a wide scope covering every aspect of
operations. Dedicated customer service department collects
and gauges patient feedback and ensures that patient
experience is positive through proactive outreach and
responsive communication
AEBRERIERE BFMEREANZERBE
EEBRRG HHEERER RELENTESIE -ZER
EFPREHFABRENFAERERE  WEBTHHRRE
RERBBREREESRIFER
Consumer data protection and privacy Patient medical records are kept in strict compliance with B6.5

policies, how they are implemented
and monitored

HEBEERMRE RFLBBER - AR
BAEIT R B R TR

applicable laws and regulations. The Group has stringent
protocols on accessing these records. The medical
administration department is responsible for overseeing
and auditing medical records management
BEBELHEDBRBETERERERRRE - K&
EREERZECHENBRBRIE BBEHAEERER
ERBELSRER

The Group’s hospitals maintain a certain level of information
security infrastructure and implement strong access controls
to information. Regular audits on the infrastructure are
carried out to ensure relevant standards are met
REBBRER -—TRENERRLEARRENEH
HEDENOBRES - HeHARREETERE
RIARRTT AR E

Staff are trained to be vigilant and sensitive about patient
privacy. Policies and guidelines are implemented to create
working processes that safeguard patient privacy
BTEBIANBERLRIFILE G NGUR - D EHER
B RIESI AR RIEBERILA TIERE
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RIB - B RERHRE

Employment and Labour Practices KPI
BRERETIER BRENIER
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EHEB7 : RE'S
Policies and compliance with relevant Policies and procedures include: B7
laws and regulations that have a . anti-bribery function at Group level;
significant impact on the issuer relating whistle blower programmes;
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money e close oversight over procurement processes;
laundering ° drug prescription patterns; and
BREADTIEFEES - Bh3 - BGFREREE e nored packet policy
E’JE&Zﬁ&LT%‘J?Xﬁ/\ﬁEK@’ Eﬁﬁﬁ&%ﬁf’a%
B AR R AR MR B 7N 5% [ B 1 B S B e A
o BRIHIE
o FERRERIE
e EEWEIRA K
o  HBRABEE
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEmB8 : tBIRE
Focus areas of contribution In 2020, the Group has organised volunteer programmes B8.1
HIERERE and free clinics, with a focus primarily on children and
elderly people with limited health awareness and/or access
to affordable and adequate healthcare. The free clinics also
penetrated remote areas where basic healthcare resources
are scarce
—ECRF AEEEABETIRERREGY B
SPRREESE 7@%3%&/&%&%% SR RENEHE
BRENZERZA - R2EBSDMAAINERBRE
R R Y 1R A [
Resources confributed In 2020 B8.2
BB ER —ETF

Number of volunteer man-hours: 2,427 (2019: 3,814)
2 ,\%%I/E@J/\,E\HT%( 2,427 /N
—JLEF : 3,814/ \BF)

Number of free clinic man-hours: 1,491 (2019: 2,454)
GESLTIHEE 1491/ B (2 —NE : 2,454 /)

Total amount of compensation provided to staff for participating
in free clinics: RMB24,500 (2019: RMB25,000)
m2EeEgLHE TRMHNGMERE - AR 24,5007
(ZF—N%F : AR¥25,0007T)
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEkeREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Junyang, aged 38, is an executive Director and chairman of the
Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operation and
strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wang was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wang has approximately 14 years of industry and
management experience, and is familiar with modern enterprise management,
capital operations and marketing. Mr. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in August
2007 and has held various positions since then, including assistant to general
manager responsible for hospital operations from August 2007 to July 2009,
manager of the business department responsible for business development
from August 2009 to November 2012 and vice general manager of the business
department responsible for business management and overall strategic
development of the hospital since December 2012. Mr. Wang has also served as
director and general manager responsible for business management and overall
strategic development of Kanghua Group since August 2007 and Xingye Group
since December 2008. Mr. Wang has served on the fourth council of Dongguan
City Houjie Chamber of Commerce (RZEMEH R FMUEEESE E) since
December 2009. In 2012, Mr. Wang served as the president of the fifth council of
Dongguan Young Entrepreneurs Association (52 5 FEER B E A /12
EE2K). InJune 2014, Mr. Wang was awarded Outstanding Young Dongguan
Businessman (&35 & F 52/ ) by the World Dongguan Entrepreneurs Convention
Organising Committee (1 R EEf A E 44 Z 2 €). Mr. Wang is a member of
the Wang Family and is the cousin of Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon and nephew of
Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin.

Mr. CHEN Wangzhi, aged 50, is an executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Chen is primarily responsible for the overall hospital
operations and management of the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the
executive Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a
joint stock limited liability company. Mr. Chen has over 14 years of experience
in the healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the chairman responsible for hospital operations and development.
Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established
as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served as the chairman
and general manager responsible for hospital operations and development. He
was principally responsible for supervising the construction and development of
Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital from which he had gained extensive
experience in hospital management and development. Under the leadership
of Mr. Chen, Kanghua Hospital and Renkang Hospital have developed a
management style reflective of the values and characteristics of the “Kanghua”
brand and obtained many prestigious accreditations and recognitions. Mr. Chen
obtained an executive master's degree in business administration (75 A% & I
A B TRE ) from Sun Yat-sen University (A [ KX 22) in December 2014. Mr.
Chen is a member of the Wang Family and is uncle-in-law of Mr. Wang Junyang
and spouse of Ms. Wang Aigin.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Hung Simon, aged 32, is an executive Director and vice chairman
of the Board. He is primarily responsible for the overall business operations
and strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Wong was appointed as the executive
Director in December 2015 after the Company was converted into a joint stock
limited liability company. Mr. Wong has approximately 10 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wong joined Kanghua Hospital in July 2010 and
has since served various roles, including assistant to chairman responsible for
implementing and executing chairman’s decisions from July 2010 to April 2012,
manager of the finance department responsible for the overall supervision of
the financial affairs of the hospital from May 2012 to June 2013, and vice general
manager of the business department responsible for hospital administration
management since July 2013. Mr. Wong actively participates in the business
communities in Dongguan. He has served as the vice chairman of the Hong Kong
Houjie Clansmen Association (& /& [Z 5 [& #8 &) since January 2016. Mr. Wong
obtained a bachelor's degree in management from the California State University,
Northridge in December 2010. Mr. Wong is a member of the Wang Family and
is the cousin of Mr. Wang Junyang and nephew of Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms.
Wang Aigin.

Ms. WANG Aiqin, aged 50, is an executive Director. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the overall financial management and capital investment of
the Group. Ms. Wang has approximately 23 years of group management
experience, in particular group financial management. Ms. Wang joined Renkang
Hospital in August 2005 when it was established as a limited liability company
in the PRC and has since served as a supervisor and a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. Ms. Wang
joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it was established as a limited
liability company in the PRC and has since served as a vice general manager
of the finance department responsible for financial management. She was also
substantially involved in the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital
and Renkang Hospital. Ms. Wang has also served as a director and vice general
manager of Kanghua Group since June 2002 and Xingye Group since June 1997,
and has obtained significant experience in implementing and executing group
control systems in financial management, human resources management, risk
management, audit management and cultural management. Ms. Wang is a
member of the Wang Family and is the aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Wong
Wai Hung Simon, and spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi.
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B EEkeREEE

Non-executive Director

Mr. LV Yubo, aged 70, is a non-executive Director. He is primarily responsible
for overseeing the corporate development and strategic planning of the Group.
Mr. Lv joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as non-executive
Director in June 2016. Mr. Lv has more than 44 years of extensive experience in
hospital management. Since October 1974, Mr. Lv has played an instrumental
role in the development of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (& % & 1 BB ), which has now become one of the largest hospitals
of traditional Chinese medicine in the PRC. Mr. Lv is currently a lifetime honorary
director (£% & % #Fx & ) of Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese
Medicine. Before such appointment, Mr. Lv had served numerous managerial
roles at Guangdong Provincial Hospital of Traditional Chinese Medicine, including
vice director (&Pt &) and director (B & ). Mr. Lv has served in a number of
healthcare associations in the PRC, including deputy chairman (&] & &) of the
China Hospital Association (1 B &7 1€ ) since February 2006, chairman (€ &)
of the Guangdong Provincial Association of Chinese Medicine (& & & / &

2 g since August 2010 and chairman (= £ Z &) of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital Division of the China Hospital Association (7 Bl & B 17 & o 22 28
3 &) since August 2015. Mr. Lv is well regarded in the medical profession in the
PRC and has received numerous awards, including Outstanding Contribution
to Chinese Hospitals (# [ & f 22 {1 & k) from the China Hospital Association
(R EIEE BT =) in 2006, No’nonol Outstanding Director of the Chinese Medicine
Hospital (& B 2 & |3,—5 & F5 Bt &) from the China Association of Chinese
Medicine (H £ /1 2 2% 2 &) in September 2007, Outstanding Management
Personnel ({8 % & 2 A 1) from the China Association of Chinese Medicine
(FR £ fp B8 BEEA @) in 2014 and the First Class Sci-Tech Advancement Award of
Guangdong Province (& 3 & B} # 26 — % 5%) from the People’s Government
of Guangdong Province (& & & A R EUT) in 2015. Mr. Lv graduated from
Guangdong Provincial University of Continuing Technology Education (& 5
E S BHE K E) in July 1981 majoring in English, and Guangdong Economics
Management Cadre College (&R & £ 7 & T2 % #0265 ) in July 1988 majoring
in organisation management (48 4% & 22 ). Mr. Lv obtained an executive master’s
degree in business administration (= & & 1 A 8 L& & #) from Lingnan
(University) College of Sun Yat-sen University (5 L1l A 2245 7 22F% ) in December
2005.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. YEUNG Ming Lai, aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director. He
is primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment
to the Board. Mr. Yeung joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in June 2016. Mr. Yeung has approximately
36 years of hospital operation experience, particularly in financial management,
personnel management, human relations and marketing. He dedicated much
of his career to the Adventist Hospitals in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung started as an
assistant accountant at Hong Kong Adventist Hospital (& 7 % 22 28 B ) in July
1968. He became the vice president for finance of Hong Kong Adventist Hospital
in April 1977. He left Hong Kong in October 1979 to pursue advanced fraining
in hospital administration under sponsorship from the Hong Kong Adventist
Hospital. Mr. Yeung had also served as an administrative residency at hospital
administration at the Kettering Medical Center in Kettering, Ohio, the United States
from March 1981 to March 1982. He returned to Hong Kong and became senior
vice president of both Hong Kong Adventist Hospital and Tsuen Wan Adventist
Hospital (£ /&8 %2 & Bt ) in April 1982. Shortly after, Mr. Yeung was appointed
as president of Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital in July 1983. Under the leadership
of Mr. Yeung, Tsuen Wan Adventist Hospital developed into a modern healthcare
institution providing advanced multi-disciplinary healthcare services. He left the
hospital in April 1992 and later emigrated to Canada to pursue other interests. Mr.
Yeung returned to Hong Kong and had served as president and chief executive
officer of both Adventist Hospitals from January 2006 to December 2015. Mr.
Yeung left his positions at both Adventist Hospitals in December 2015.

Mr. Yeung obtained a diploma in business administration from the South China
Union College in Hong Kong in June 1979 and a master’s degree in hospital
administration from Loma Linda University in California, the United States in March
1982. In recognition of his remarkable contributions to the Adventist Hospitals in
Hong Kong, the Adventist University of Philippines bestowed a doctorate degree
in humanities upon Mr. Yeung in March 2009.
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Dr. CHEN Keji, aged 90, is an independent non-executive Director. He is primarily
responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Dr. Chen joined the Group in June 2016 and was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in June 2016. Dr. Chen is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC
with over 64 years of experience in the medical industry. Dr. Chen has played
a pivotal role in the development of the Xiyuan Hospital of China Academy of
Chinese Medical Sciences (A Bl # & 5} £ f 78 55 2 P ), where he currently
serves as chief researcher (& & #ff %€ B ) and the lifetime researcher (£% &
#1958 ) of the China Academy of Traditional Chinese Medicine (7 B8 B& £/ 95
Bt ). Dr. Chen has worked at the Chinese Medical Science Xiyuan Hospital (&
B} BT 75 28 B BT ) since April 1956, and has served various roles, including
resident doctor ({3 B 82 £f), attending doctor (=34 B2 i), associate chief doctor
(&= £ & HD), associate researcher (BIfft 5T &), department head (F}Z= x £),
chief doctor (= £ B fill), researcher (# t & ), tutor for doctor of philosophy
students (18 4= 438 Rl ) and vice director (&Pt £ ). Dr. Chen has made significant
contributions to the medical profession in the PRC. He was elected as the fellow
of Chinese Academy of Sciences (9 B %} 22 f B 1) in 1991. He received the First
Lifu Academic Award (& — J& 37 7k & & %% 2217 #Z) for Chinese Medicine from
the Lifu Medical Research Foundation (37 5 & 25 9t X E £ &) in Taiwan in
1994. He was awarded the Wu Jieping Medicine Prize (12 [ - & £2 #%) by the
Wujieping Medicine Prize Committee (2 f F & 2 45 :¥ 28 £ 8 &) in 2009. He
received a First Class National Science and Technology Progress Award (B 5 &}
B 45 88— F 88 from the State Council (BI756%) in 2004. He also received an
honorary doctorate of science from Hong Kong Baptist University in 2004, and an
honorary doctorate of medicine (28 %1% 1) from the Macau University of Science
and Technology in 2010. He received a Lifetime Achievement Award (4% & ik 5t 2%)
from the China Association of Chinese Medicine (F 2 b B2 Z£ 22 & ) in 2014 for
his contribution to the academic development of TCM. He became the honorary
president (% 2 & &) of the Hong Kong Association for Integration of Chinese-
Western Medicine (& 78 7 78 & 4 & B B0 =) in 2009, the honorary academic
advisor (£ 2 1f7 B ) of the Hong Kong Association of Traditional Chinese
Medicine (& /& # & £ &) in 2011, and the director of the academic committee
(E1i7Z& 8 & = F) of the State Key Laboratories of Quality Research in Chinese
Medicines (R BE ST 7. H R EZHEER =) of the University of Macau (29 A E2)
and the Macau University of Science and Technology (38 F9 &} #2 K 2 ) in 2011
and the honorary president (% 2 & &) of the Chinese Association of Integrative
Medicine (7 [/ 75 %8 45 & 2 € in 2015. Dr. Chen graduated from Fujian
Medical University (@32 255l K2 ) (formerly Fujian Medical College ({2722 E2057 )
in July 1954, majoring in medicine (2 & % ).
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Mr. CHAN Sing Nun, aged 46, is an independent non-executive Director. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent judgment to the
Board. Mr. Chan was appointed as a Director in December 2015; his appointment
as independent non-executive Director was officially confirmed in June 2016.
Mr. Chan has approximately 22 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. From 1998 to 2002, Mr. Chan was a senior audit
associate at K.L. Wong & Co., an audit firm. From January 2003 to January 2019,
Mr. Chan has been the financial manager of Brandwell Limited, a consulting
services company. Since March 2019, Mr. Chan has been the Financial controller
of Muse Group Holdings Limited. Since September 2009, Mr. Chan has been the
audit principal of Qing Lan C.P.A. Limited, mainly responsible for audit planning
and supervision, internal control assessment, tax advisory, corporate secretarial
services and business development. Mr. Chan has served as an independent
non-executive director of Differ Group Holding Company Limited (a company
formerly listed on the GEM board with stock code 8056 and currently listed on
the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 6878) since
November 2013. In January 2021 resigned as an independent non-executive
director of Fameglow Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8603). Mr. Chan also is the
director of A2Z Hotel Equipment Limited, a company that is principally engaged
in tableware trading. Mr. Chan is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan graduated from the City University of
Hong Kong in 1998, and obtained a higher diploma in professional accounting.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Shaoming, aged 42, is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. He
is primarily responsible for supervising the daily operations and management of
the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in September 2005 and was appointed as
our Supervisor and the chairman of the supervisory committee in December 2015.
Mr. Chen has more than 14 years of financial management experience in the
healthcare industry. Mr. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when
it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since served
various roles, including manager of the finance department from September
2005 to April 2007, financial controller of the finance department from May 2007
to December 2013 and supervisor since March 2013. Mr. Chen participated in
the construction and development of Kanghua Hospital from which he gained
valuable hospital management experience. Mr. Chen has also served as a
supervisor of Dongguan Houjie Huaye Village Bank (5 3t £ 7 2 2 5 $A 4 17)
since March 2012 and a financial controller of the finance department of Kanghua
Group since November 2012. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangdong Economic
Management College (/& 5 & £ /7 & ¥ % %6 £ Fx ) and obtained a diploma in
accounting in July 2003.

Mr. Yue Chunyang, aged 46, is a supervisor and is currently the general
manager of Kanghua Hospital primarily responsible for managing its overall
information technology system, administrative and ancillary functions. Mr. Yue
Chunyang has approximately 17 years of hospital management experience. Mr.
Yue joined the Group in February 2003 and participated in the establishment of
Kanghua Hospital. Since the commencement of operations of Kanghua Hospital
in November 2006, he has assumed various managerial roles at Kanghua
Hospital primarily to develop and manage its information technology system,
administrative and ancillary functions. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yue had
gained his industry experience from Qintai General Labour Union Computer
School (Z & # T @ 5+ B # E47) in Lushan County of Henan Province (] &
% &1L %) as a teacher from August 1997 to October 1999, and Lushan County
Communication Administration (& L §2 % 15 /&) as a staff member from July
1999 fo January 2003. Mr. Yue graduated from Zhengzhou University (25| A £2)
and obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science and technology in August
1997.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. WANG Shaofeng, aged 37, is a Supervisor. He is primarily responsible for
supervising the daily operations and management of the Group. Mr. Wang joined
the Group in October 2006 and was appointed as our Supervisor and employee
representative of the Supervisory Committee in December 2015. Mr. Wang
has approximately 13 years of human resources experience in the healthcare
industry. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in October 2006. From October
2006 to February 2007, Mr. Wang worked at Renkang Hospital as a network
engineer in the information department. From March 2007 to August 2007, Mr.
Wang was seconded to Kanghua Hospital to receive on-the-job training in the
procurement department and the human resources department. In September
2007, Mr. Wang became formally employed by Kanghua Hospital and has since
served as head of the human resources department responsible for recruitment,
payroll, performance, training and employee relations. Mr. Wang graduated
from Dongguan University of Technology (R 5232 T 22 ft) with a bachelor's
degree in computer science and technology in June 2006. In August 2018, Mr.
Wong acquired the occupational qualification of Enterprises Human Resource
Management (Second Level), awarded by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. TIAN Kege, aged 66, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Tian has more than 29 years of experience in the
medical industry. Dr. Tian joined Kanghua Hospital in January 2008 and headed
the development of its O&G practice, in particular endoscopic technigues,
minimally invasive procedures, standardised treatment of malignant tumours,
management of high-risk pregnancies and newborn deliveries and reproductive
medicine. Dr. Tian currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and the
head of the O&G Medical Center of Kanghua Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from May 1991 to January 2008, Dr. Tian had worked at the 301 Military Hospital
(30167 ) as an attending doctor (£ A %8R ), associate chief doctor (&= FEETN)
and chief doctor (= 1T £ Al ) with a focus on O&G practice. Dr. Tian has made
significant contributions fo the development of O&G practice in the PRC. She was
awarded two Third Class Prizes for outstanding contributions in medical care
(B8 32 4t B Bk = 5 22) by the 301 Military Hospital in 1993 for successfully
rescuing a patient from HELLP syndrome with multiple organ failure (HELLP's
REIENMEZE T =E —FIIB AT and resuscitating 37 newborns
with asphyxia (¥7 4 52 & B 18 # X 21 37 3l ), respectively. She was also
appointed as an expert in health science (f# 5 £ & % %) by the Guangdong
Provincial Health Education Centre (& 5 & @ BZ (B # ) in May 2015. She was
awarded as “Heroic and Excellent Doctor in Southern Guangdong” (&5 £ 111 1
4228 ) by the Guangdong Provincial Female Doctors Association (/& 5 & 7z 58
Bl 1% ) in 2015. Dr. Tian graduated from the Second Military Medical University
(55 — % % K &) and obtained a bachelor's degree in medicine in August 1983,
and a master's degree in medicine in July 1998. She obtained the chief doctor
qualification in O&G in September 2005.
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Dr. JIA Guoliang, aged 77, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company
since June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations
of the Group’s hospitals. Dr. Jia is a renowned cardiologist in the PRC with more
than 51 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua Hospita
in March 2008 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua Hospital and
the head of the Cardiovascular Center. Before joining the Group, from August
1968 to December 1974, Dr. Jia had worked at the Xinjiang Military Region Sixth
Division Hospital (752 % [& 7B 28 ) as a military surgeon. From January 1975
to October 2005, Dr. Jia had worked at the First Affiliated Hospital of the Fourth
Military Medical University (25 P4 5 %8 K 2 8 — ) as an attending physician
in cardiology (/0 A &L == 78 & 4 ), associate director (& == £ and director (&=
f£), where he undertook clinical, teaching and operational responsibilities
From October 2005 to February 2008, Dr. Jia had worked at the Cardiovascular
Hospital of Xi An No. 1 Hospital as a director (ft £ ). Dr. Jia has made substantial
contributions to cardiovascular healthcare, particularly in military medicine,
in the PRC. He has served as a committee member of numerous medical
associations and editorial board of medical journals. In addition to a Third Class
Prize in Technology Improvement ( = £ &l 5 3 #5 #) awarded by the Nononol
Commission for Scientific and Technologlcol Research (IR B 210 Z &

in December 1996, Dr. Jia had received more than 18 awards from the Generol
Logistics Department of the Chinese People’s Liberation Army (7R Bl A R ## T E
#81% B8 for the contribution of his research projects in military medicine ( Z
22 22). Dr. Jia received a Life-time Award in Interventional Cardiology in the PRC
(7R B A0 i 22 4% A2 B B 2%) and a Distinctive Contribution Award (5 5l
B 5t %) from the Chinese Medical Association (7 2% 28 22 & ), respectively, in
March 2005. Dr. Jia continues to actively pursue his endeavours in cardiovascular
healthcare. His recent appointments include consultant for the interventional
cardiovascular diseases branch of the Chinese Medical Association (7 % £ £
2L IMERESD ) in 2013, committee member for the cardiologist branch of
the Chinese Medical Doctor Association (Bl B FiiH & /L %E AR BRI 5 &
in 2014 and consultant for the editorial board of Chinese Journal of Geriatric
Heart Brain and Vessel Diseases (91 #£ 2 £ 0 i [l & %% 4 55 ) in 2016. Dr. Jia
possesses the chief doctor qualification.
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Dr. LI Zhiwei, aged 53, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. He is primarily responsible for overseeing the clinical operations of the
Group’s hospitals. Dr. Li is an industry leading general surgeon in the PRC with
more than 29 years of experience in the medical industry. He joined Kanghua
Hospital in February 2006 and currently serves as a vice director of Kanghua
Hospital and the head of the Department of Hepatobiliary and Pancreatic Surgery.
Dr. Li also participated in managing the development and operation of Kanghua
Hospital from which he gained valuable hospital management experience.
Before joining the Group, from August 1990 to December 2005, Dr. Li had focused
his practice on hepatobiliary surgery at the 301 Military Hospital (301 %8 fit ), where
he had served various roles, including resident doctor ({E Bz 22 £f), chief resident
doctor (#2{% P & R ), attending doctor (= & & Al ), ward inspection chief
attending doctor (2 2 42 & 4 22 i) and associate chief doctor (& 3 T & A ).
Dr. Liis substantially involved in the development of general surgery and medical
associations in the PRC. He was complimented to be an advanced teaching
individual (%t # T {E{E A ) twice by the PLA Postgraduate Medical School (2
#E A2 B 7)) in 1997 and 2001, respectively, for his outstanding performance in
teaching and teaching management. Dr. Li graduated from First Military Medical
University (55 — E %8 K 2) with a medical bachelor's degree in July 1990. He
obtained a master's degree in general surgery and doctoral degree in clinical
medicine from the postgraduate medical school (E & i £ £ ) of 301 Military
Hospital (301%& B ) in July 1995 and July 2003, respectively. Dr. Li obtained the
chief doctor qualification in hepatobiliary surgery in January 2009.

Ms. LIN Yan, aged 58, is a clinical vice general manager of the Company since
June 2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall management of the nursing
work of the Group’s hospitals. Ms. Lin is a highly experienced nurse with more
than 36 years of experience in the medical industry. Ms. Lin joined Kanghua
Hospital in September 2010 and has since served as the head of the Nursing
Department. Before joining the Group, from July 1983 to October 2010, Ms. Lin had
served various roles at Second Affiliated Hospital of Sun Yat-sen University (L]
K E R B = BB, including nurse, head nurse of operating theatre, head
of nursing department and deputy head of outpatient office. Ms. Lin has made
distinguished contributions in the nursing profession in the PRC, with far-reaching
influence in the field of operating room nursing within the PRC, in particular
Guangdong Province. She participated in the publication of many professional
practice guides in nursing, including main editor (== #&) for Practical Surgical
Nursing (& F & il 7% F2 &) published by the Sun Yat-sen University Press
Il K & [ fR #£), which received a First Class Prize in Outstanding Teaching
Materials (18 5 Z 8 — 5 #2) in Southern China universities from the China
University Presses Association (9 B K £ ) iz 1 &), participating editor (£ 4% )
for Guide on Improving the Core Competence of Professional Nurse (2 3£ & &
% 0 B8 77 52 3% 5 ) published by the Guangdong Provincial Publishing Group
(F& 3 4& 1 i % E), and participating editor (£ 48 for Clinical Care Document
Specifications (F& Ik 7 ¥2 X &£ 7 #3) published by the Guangdong Provincial
Publishing Group. Ms. Lin obtained a diploma in advanced nursing from the
Evening School of Sun Yat-sen University Zhongshan School of Medicine (9
ERIARBRAEZ) in June 1989. Ms. Lin graduated from the Hunan University of
Chinese Medicine (78 7 A & % K ) in January 2010. She obtained the chief
nurse qualification (&= fEz& ¥ A ) in December 2007.
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Mr. WANG Baizhi, aged 45, is an operation vice general manager of the
Company since June 2016. He is responsible for the overall administrative and
ancillary operations of the Group’s hospitals as well as overseeing the Group’s
hospital management business. Mr. Wang has approximately 15 years of hospital
management experience. Mr. Wang joined Renkang Hospital in August 2005
when it was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and has since
served as the vice general manager of Renkang Hospital, and as the general
manager of Renkang Hospital since November 2015, primarily responsible for the
hospital's administrative and ancillary operations. Mr. Wang also participated in
the construction and development of Renkang Hospital. Before joining the Group,
from March 1998 to July 2003, Mr. Wang had worked at China Construction Bank
responsible for auditing and loan management. Mr. Wang obtained a diploma
in mechanical manufacturing engineering and design from the Dongguan
University of Technology (5 5232 T 25 ) in June 1998.

Ms. WANG Yingda, aged 46, is the secretary o the Board since June 2016. She
is primarily responsible for overseeing public affairs, administrative and daily
operations of the Group. Ms. Wang has 16 years of management experience
in the medical industry, particularly in financial management, hospital
administration, support and assurances, service excellence, brand promotion
and corporate culture. Ms. Wang joined Kanghua Hospital in June 2006, served
as a senior manager of the finance department and currently serves as an
assistant to chairman responsible for operation control, external and internal
liaisons, implementation of action plans, monitoring key performance indicators,
assessing patient safisfaction levels and organising hospital branding events. Ms.
Wang had worked as a manager of the finance department of Kanghua Group
primarily responsible for financial and audit matters from February 2004 to May
2006, during which she had been involved in the construction and development
of Kanghua Hospital from which she gained valuable hospital management
experience. Ms. Wang currently serves as a standing committee member (& 7
Z 8 of the Guangdong Provincial Health Economics Association (& 3 & &1 4
KEEe % 8 @) and the deputy chairman (2] € &) of the Dongguan Hospital
Association (3 52 71 2 Bt 1% & ). Ms. Wang graduated from Xi‘an Technological
University (75 % T 2 X 2 ) and obtained a diploma in financial accounting in July
1995. Ms. Wang obtained the qualification of accountant in the PRC in May 2002.
Ms. Wang obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Northwest
University (84t X &) in the PRC in December 2013.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, aged 42, is a chief financial officer and a joint
company secretary of the Company. Mr. Wong has more than 18 years of
experience in accounting and finance. He is primarily responsible for the overall
financial management, capital investment, investor relations and corporate
finance of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Company as chief financial officer in
December 2015. Before joining the Group, from December 2002 to November
2015, Mr. Wong had worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, where he was
responsible for leading, managing and supervising audits for listed and multi-
national companies. Mr. Wong has also cultivated transactional experience in his
previous roles, including acquisitions, debt offerings and initial public offerings.
Mr. Wong was a senior manager at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu before he joined
the Group. Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor's
degree of commerce majoring in accounting and finance with merit from the
University of New South Wales in April 2000, and a master's degree of commerce
majoring in advanced information systems and management from the University
of New South Wales in May 2003.

Ms. CHEN Li, aged 49, is a financial controller of the Company since June
2016. She is primarily responsible for the overall financial management of the
Group’s hospitals. Ms. Chen has more than 27 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Chen joined Kanghua Hospital in September 2005 when it
was established as a limited liability company in the PRC and is currently serving
as financial controller in the finance department. Ms. Chen also participated in
managing the financial operations of Kanghua Hospital during its construction
and development phase from which she gained valuable hospital financial
management experience. Before joining the Group, from September 1992 to
March 2004, she had served various roles at Dongguan City Guangcai Hotel
(=W E R OB JE), a subsidiary of Guangdong Fortune Colour Picture
Tube Co., Lid. (E R & #1 % & B & & A ), including accountant, accounting
supervisor, cost supervisor and project manager. She has also served as the
vice chairman (2] & &) of the Dongguan Social Insurance Association (R 2=
& R B 1% &) since January 2016. Ms. Chen obtained a diploma in financial
accounting from Changsha University of Workers (£ 8 T X 2) in June 1992.

ok

She graduated from Dongguan Party School [ 3 52 % 4% ) in December 1998.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

B EEkeREEE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Wai Hang Ricky, one of the joint company secretaries of the Company,
is also a senior management member of the Company. Please refer to “Senior
Management” in this section for his biography.

Ms. CHAU Hing Ling was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company since 27 June 2016. She joined Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited
since June 2013 and currently serves as a director of Corporate Services of Vistra
Corporate Services (HK) Limited), where she leads a team of professional staff to
provide a full range of company secretary services. Ms. Chau has over 18 years of
experience in the corporate services industry.

Ms. Chau is currently the company secretary of several companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Ms. Chau received a master of laws majoring in
corporate and finance law from the University of Hong Kong in November 2007.
She has been a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly
known as the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since May 2013.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

GUANGDONG KANGHUA HEALTHCARE CO., LTD.

BREERERMDAERRAA

(a joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guangdong Kanghua
Healthcare Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the "Group”) set out on pages 168 to 273, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are the matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
BARETSEE

BRESEIE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TITRBETRINMAIEEERETSE

Impairment assessment of gooawill

B E AR ERF I

We identified the impairment assessment of goodwill arising
from acquisitions of Z B 7R B & 1% & B IR A 7 (Anhui Hualin
Medical Investment Co., Ltd.) ("Anhui Hualin”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Anhui Hualin Group”) and & FE &
SRS 0 I B 978 25 B 8 PR 2 &) (Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.) (‘Kangxin Hospital”) as a key
audit matter due to significant level of management judgement
involved in determining the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit ("CGU") of Anhui Hualin Group (“Anhui Hualin
CGU") and CGU of Kangxin Hospital ("Kangxin Hospital CGU”)
to which goodwill is allocated for the impairment assessment
on the goodwill in relation to acquisition of Anhui Hualin Group
(“Hualin’s Goodwill’) and in relation to acquisition of Kangxin
Hospital (“Kangxin's Goodwill’) respectively.

As set out in Notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, impairment of Hualin’s Goodwill and Kangxin’'s
Goodwill is assessed by comparing the recoverable amount
of the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU to their
respective carrying value at the end of the reporting period.
The recoverable amount of their respective CGU is the higher
of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. The value
in use of their respective CGU is determined by the directors of
the Company based on the present value of estimated future
cash flows to be generated from their respective CGU and with
reference to the valuation reports prepared by an independent
professional valuer, which was approved by the directors of
the Company. Significant judgements and assumptions are
adopted by the management in the value in use calculation for
estimation of recoverable amount of their respective CGU, the
key assumptions including growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s impairment
assessment of goodwill included:

Obtaining an understanding of the impairment assessment
process used by the management and involvement of
the independent professional valuer engaged by the
Company to estimate the recoverable amounts based on
a value in use calculation;

Assessing the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation
methodology and key assumptions adopted by the
management in determining the recoverable amount
of the Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU
respectively, including growth rates and pre-tax discount
rates, with the involvement of our internal valuation
specialist;

Evaluating the historical accuracy and reasonableness of
the value in use calculation by comparing the historical
cash flow forecasts with the actual performance of the
Angui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital CGU respectively;
an

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis of the forecasts for
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
AR ETEIE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BEN RS

BRESTEIE (@)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TITRETRIMAIEEERET SR

Impairment assessment of gooadwill (Cont'd)

By 5 B G ()

Kangxin's Goodwill was impaired by RMB49,900,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and its net carrying amount
was RMB15,512,000 as at 31 December 2020. Hualin's Goodwiill
was impaired by RMB27,500,000 during the year ended 31
December 2020 and its net carrying amount was RMB29,101,000
as at 31 December 2020.
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Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes

BRI B AR '

We have identified the contingent liabilities arising from medical
disputes as a key audit matter because there are inherent
risks of medical disputes in the healthcare business, and the
estimation of their financial impact involves significant degree
of management judgment as disclosed in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There are inherent risks associated with the Group’s clinical
activities which may result in unfavourable medical outcomes
not caused by clinical decisions. The Group may be subject to
legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of business, which primarily include medical dispute claims
brought by the former patients.
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Our procedures in relation to the Group’s contingent liabilities
arising from medical disputes included:

o Understanding management's process in developing the
estimation on the outflow of economic benefit;

J Obtaining the list of medical disputes from the
management;

o Arranging litigation search to check for the status of the

medical disputes and the completeness for the list of
medical disputes;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B ZBEHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Contd)

Key audit matter
BARETSEE

BRESEIE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
TITRBETRINMAIEEERETSE

Contingent liabilities arising from medical disputes (Contd)
BB SRR A B E ()

Provision for medical dispute claims is made based on the
status of potential and active claims outstanding at the end
of each year, and taking info consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure.
However, where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Except for those disputes with provision of RMB2,956,000 made
as disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management of the Group believes that the final result of
other medical disputes with total claims of RMB6,792,000 as
at 31 December 2020 will not have a material impact on the
financial position or operations of the Group and the amount of
outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior fo judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in
this regard and disclosed as contingent liabilities in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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o Obtaining and reading legal proceeding letters, judicial
appraisal reports, expert opinion letters, judgment letters
and medical records, if any, relevant to the medical
disputes;

o Discussing with the management of the Group and
the Group’s legal counsel on the estimated outcome of
the pending medical disputes, with reference to legal
precedents of any similar cases; and

o Evaluating the adequacy of provision and the disclosure
under contingent liabilities.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or fo cease
operations, or have no redlistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZBEHRE

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and fo issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
aftention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease fo continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conta)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threat or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we defermine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s
report is Del Rosario, Faith Corazon.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2021
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Conso
meBEREMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

idated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

2020 2019
ZEIERF —ZT-hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5E AR¥TF T ARBT T
Revenue & 5 1,745,023 1,955,525
Cost of revenue Wz A AR (1,481,868) (1,566,106)
Gross profit EH 263,155 389,419
Other income HA g A 7 41,201 29,591
Other expenses, gains and losses HtfX - e REE 8 (5,123) 8,594
Net reversal (net provision) of impairment losses TEEEEEEENIE T 2R
under expected credit loss model B8 - BEFRE (BE
) 1,847 (596)
Impairment loss on goodwill EEREBE 18 (77,400) (60,000)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (227,774) (232,282)
Finance costs A& KA 9 (21,995) (17,241
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (E518) & 7 10 (26,089) 117,485
Income tax expenses FIBHiAX 13 (23,967 (68,797)
(Loss) profit and fotal comprehensive (expense) REE (BER) & RE2HE
income for the year (AX) A4z (50,056) 48,688
(Loss) profit and fotal comprehensive (expense) T FIBEEBIEAEE (BE)
income for the year attributable to: w AR 2 (X)) BALE
]
— owners of the Company . VNEIE RSN (25,372) 74,264
— non-controlling interests — IR R (24,684) (25,576)
(50,056) 48,688
(Loss) earnings per share, basic (RMB cents) BIRER () &5
(ARED) 15 (7.6) 22.2
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R
At 31 December 2020
RZEZZTF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARBT T AR T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WE k&R 16 976,272 917,670
Right-of-use assets TRREE 17 382,845 323,102
Goodwill [ 18 44,613 122,013
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plantand ~ UsEE¥ % - BiE K& & 1E
equipment [EENE& 91,218 109,645
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss 2 A F{EF A Bz
TREE 22 67,663 -
Fixed bank deposits EHIIRITIE R 19 - 37,000
1,562,611 1,509,430
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 20 56,756 69,768
Accounts and other receivables JFEE 8 B R B R A M R 21 248,679 300,588
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss & A F{EzF ABZEH
TREE 22 400,000 477,150
Restricted bank balances X R AR 1T 48R 19 1,182 2,345
Fixed bank deposits T BRIR1TIF R 19 5,000 -
Bank balances and cash WITHEB LB S 19 179,673 223,880
891,290 1,073,731
Current liabilities nBEE
Accounts and other payables and provision JRE 1 B AR B B Ath 8 A~ TR TR %
B 23 516,868 488,534
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of & Bl B8 2 &1 A9 FE4EAZ A% 38
subsidiaries IR 24 18,856 138,854
Tax payables JEIBiTE 22,907 34,401
Bank loans — due within one year RITER——FREIH 25 7,574 7.468
Lease liabilities HEAE 26 30,685 26,294
596,890 695,551
Net current assets RBEEFE 294,400 378,180
Total assets less current liabilities BEEBRBERS 1,857,011 1,887,610
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI R

At 31 December 2020
RZEZZTF+=-A=+—H

2020 2019
=k 2 LT S
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

(R ARET T ARETT

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loans — due after one year RITER——F& I 25 250,256 208,785
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEA R 27 21,945 21,383
Lease liabilities HEAR 26 177,308 199,884
449,509 430,052
Net assets EEFE 1,407,502 1,457,558
Capital and reserves BERK#1E
Share capital & 28 334,394 334,394
Reserves ] 998,136 1,022,031
Equity attributable to owners of the Company NRTHEB AEGEZ 1,332,530 1,356,425
Non-controlling interests JEVE RS 74,972 101,133
Total equity FERYA%E 1,407,502 1,457,558

The consolidated financial statements on pages 168 to 273 were approved and £ 168 £ 273 E MG B WMEE R =T

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2021 and are signed ——HF=A=-t+hBEZEFeERE#E
on its behalf by: T THNATEEREREE
Wang Junyang Wong Wai Hung Simon
TEH TR
Director Director
EFE Ea
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Consolidated Statement of Chunges in EquiTy

Attributable fo owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

RLNEHE ARE
Share Share Capital  Statutory Other  Refained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rx ROEE EARE iERE HERE REERA Nt ERER b
RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB000  RWMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTR
hote(ll  Motefill  otefil)  (note fiv]
(EEm) O (Bsedn) (B
At1January 2019 RZZE-N&—A—H 334,394 698,214 53,394 62,584 - 186,938 1,335,524 126,659 1,462,183
Proft {loss| and tota ERET(EE) R
comprehensive income L ONGEY)
lexpensel for the year ag - - - - - 74264 74204 (255760 48,688
Dividends [Note 14) T8 (M 14) - - - - - (53363 (53,363) - (53363)
Appropriation fo reserve ROGEES - - - 26343 - (26,343 - - -
Capital contribution by non- —EREAT
controling interests of a FERER
subsidiary ieg - - - - - - - 50 50
At 31 December 2019 S -3
+=A=+-H 3343904 69824 53394 88,927 - 18149 1356425 101133 1457558
loss and total comprehensive ~ ERBEREZEA L
expense for the year ag - - - - - (25372 (25372)  (24,684)  (50,056)
Appropriation fo reserve ROEES - - - 7,895 - (7,895) - - -
Deemed parial disposal of RIEDPHHE—FH
a subsidiary =N - - - - 1477 - 1477 1.477) -
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZE
+ZA=+-H 334,394 698,214 53,394 96,822 1477 148,229 1,332,530 74972 1,407,502
Notes: M3

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the different between the net asset value
of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares which were
issued as consideration for the subsidiaries at the time of the group reorganisation in
preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares.

According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), the
Company and its subsidiaries which were established in the PRC are required o
transfer at least 10% of their net profit after taxation, as determined under the PRC
accounting regulations, to a non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the respective registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used
to offset the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation.

The other reserve of the Group arose from a group restructuring that was accounted
for as deemed disposal of interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary, which was fully
acquired by a non-wholly owned subsidiary, from owners of the Company to non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary.

Included in the retained earnings, an amount of RMB5,633,000 (2019: RMB4,035,000)
belongs to restricted retained earnings from Anhui Hualin Group (defined in Note 4)
which is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

AEEWERNFEENBQRNEEFE
EARBREBARA RN LT METE
E SR ERKENEB AR ERET
R D E(E R ZRE ©

RiEhEARAME (TFE ) BEER
ARBRENPBEKZAKEARERT
Bl & s AR EIRIA R R 4L F) = 2 10%
FIARNA DIRFHEES - Einﬁ{%iﬁ:ﬁ%}\_x
B RE & AN 50% o 7 A A A DK AR
ﬁﬁ?ﬁ%’ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁéﬁ%f’E%Eﬁ{%fi?ﬁ!ﬁlﬁéﬁ
HBEFEER(WE) KRIFFR B
A 7K

AEEWEMEERG - BARREAHES
EffBAREEnEEEE  ZMBLAAF
EH—HFEEMB LR 28U -

MAREBF P - AR¥S5633,0007T (=

T—NF - AR 4,0350007T) & 5B R

ﬁ@ﬂ%?ﬁ M (EE R4 ZRHIR
EX - BIEFE BRI DK -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AN =B
?.%/T =] IE:@/)ILE'IEE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZTFE+-_A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
g g 522 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBT T
Operating activities REEH
(Loss) profit before taxation BRELAT (E1E) & (26,089) 117,485
Adjustments for: MATIEEF{ERE :
Net reversal (net provision) of impairment losses TREEEEEENRIE T 2 RE
under expected credit loss model E5tE - BEEFEE (REFE) (1,847) 596
Bank and other inferest income 1T R E AR S WA (4,038) (2,789)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M- BERZRETE 109,266 91,200
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTAEEENE 33,622 31,404
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BRAFEFAESNEREED
through profit or loss N E W (4,130) (8,701)
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, plant and HE MEME - BEREBN
equipment &8 1,513 246
Impairment loss on goodwill HMERERHE 77,400 60,000
Investment income from financial assets at fair BRATFEFAESNEREED
value through profit or loss FEBA (16,439) (14,508)
Interest expenses MERX 21,995 17,241
Unrealised exchange loss (gain) REIFHMEHEE () 1,792 (1,307)
Provision of medical dispute claims BEADRERE 4,558 597
Operating cash flows before movements in working HEBCEPHIKERERE
capital 197,603 291,464
Decrease (increase) in inventories TR (Em) 13,012 (24,410)
Decrease (increase) in accounts and other receivables [ 4 BE 5% Kz H tb g U 5038 3R >
(1 ) 53,355 (94,221)
Increase (decrease) in accounts and other payables JE AT R SR N EL Ath FE A~ SR IE 8 0
CRLA) 46,221 (2,789)
Cash generated from operations BREPERE 310,191 170,044
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EEH (34,899) (71,866)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHABREFE 275,292 98,178
Investing activities RETH
Placement of restricted bank balances T U R I R1T 45 81 (1,645,528) (1,690,944)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BREIEE (128,653) (142,425)
Payments of rights-of-use assets FRAREENK (85,068) -
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BERATEFABZEN
profit or loss PREE (1,600,000) (1,639,855)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and WiEME BEIERHDHIES
equipment (33,817) (76,568)
Placement of fixed bank deposits 17 hUE BRER 1T 17 3K (5,000) (37,000)
Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries WS E A R AR & mHFE - (21,000)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances AN PR #ISR 1T 45 88 1,646,691 1,709,697
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value  HEZE A FEF AEZEH
through profit or loss T REEMBSRIA 1,610,957 1,651,632
Withdrawal of fixed bank deposits REUE BER1TIF K 37,000 16,000
Investment income received from financial assets BEAFEFABEHNESREE
at fair value through profit or loss WA 52 E A 16,439 14,508
Interest received 2 A 4,439 2,842
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEME  BERZEFTERIE
equipment 388 181
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFAREFHE (182,152) (212,932)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

2020 2019
=E-EF —E-NF
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETF T ARETT

Financing activities
New bank loans raised
Advances from non-controlling shareholders of

BESEE
FrEBHiETER 50,000 235,350
B BB B A FE 5 A% B 3R #A 3k

subsidiaries 67,500 228,000
Repayments to non-controlling shareholders of BRTHEBRRDNIFERKE
subsidiaries (187,498) (220,350)
Dividends paid B F B = (53,363)
Repayments of lease liabilities BEHEAR (26,483) (21,973)
Interest paid BEFE (25,503) (17,217)
Payment of bank loans arrangement fee XRRITERLTHER (7,980) (12,598)
Repayment of bank loans BRTRITER (8,251) (2,062)
Repayment to a shareholder BRT—RBRE - (682)
Capital contribution by non-controlling interests of —HME AR EERERE HE
a subsidiary - 50
Net cash (used in) generated from financing activities ~ B& &S (Fr ) FTBIR & F4E (138,215) 135,155
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents IRERIREHEY G2 ) 0
FER (45,075) 20,401
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BNEBEERELZEY 223,880 203,256
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fEXREEHrE 868 223
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December, RT-ZA=+t—HBHRERES
representing bank balances and cash ZEY  IRITESRRRES 179,673 223,880
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

GENERAL

&R B EE B R D A R A A (Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co.,
Ltd.) (the “Company”) was established as a limited liability company in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its overseas listed foreign
invested ordinary shares ("H Shares’) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is 5 5¢ T 7
# 1% & £ B & [R 2 8] (Dongguan Kanghua Investment Group Co., Lid.)
("Kanghua Group”), a limited liability company established in the PRC. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business in Hong
Kong of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in provision of hospital services, provision
of rehabilitation and other healthcare services, provision of hospital
management services, sale of pharmaceutical products and provision of
other services (represents elderly healthcare services) in the PRC. Details of
the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 39.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

Significant event and fransactions during the year

The outbreak of a novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") and the
subsequent quarantine measures as well as the travel restrictions imposed
by the PRC government have had negative impacts to the economy and
business environment, and have affected the operations of the Group
mainly during the first half of the year ended 31 December 2020. In view
of mandatory government quarantine measures in an effort to contain the
spread of the pandemic, the number of patients decreased and certain
of non-critical surgeries and medical treatments were deferred, while
the Group’s overall fixed costs remained at a relatively high level as there
was no material lay off of staff members and reduction of the relevant
expenses. As such, the financial positions and performance of the Group
were affected in different aspects during the first half of the year, including
decline in revenue and reduction in profit generated from hospital services
and rehabilitation and other healthcare services segments.

]74 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL (Contd)
Significant event and transactions during the year (Contd)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit ("CGU") of & & # & B & 3% & A& [R 2 A (Anhui
Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd.) ("Anhui Hualin”) (the “Anhui Hualin
CGU’) ("Hualin’s Goodwill") and & B B 3 R B /0 1 & s B8 B B BR A
&l (Chongqging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd.)
("Kangxin Hospital”) (the “Kangxin Hospital CGU”) ("Kangxin's Goodwill’) are
impaired by RMB27,500,000 and RMB49,900,000 respectively in view of
the estimated future growth in revenue from the rehabilitation and other
healthcare services business relating to the operations of Anhui Hualin and
the hospital services business relating to the operations of Kangxin Hospital
will be lower than previously expected. Details are set out in Note 18.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current
year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

—RER (&)
RAFRNBERNENH NS (&)

BHE_Z-_ZF+_A=+—HItF
B OEELHERESEREERA
Al ((Z8ER)BeELESEMN ([X
BERReEEEM]) OB ([HR
BMEDREERERBOMERER
BRAE ((RLER]) ReEELEEM
([RUERBeEEEM]) WEE ([ &
DEE]D 5 BRE A R 27,500,000
TN A R ¥ 49,900,000 T @ R A 2 &
THERESEUNREREMER
REEBRERLERESEBNE
B AR 75 35 75 MO 1 5T R SRIRAE R R
RICBITEER o FHIBEAMIEE18 -

FE FFTe] BB B s 5 22 A ([ B
PR R RS R ) R AR A

T 7R 4F [ 9 i) A 20 v B R B 795 R
HFEAZAEFTA

RAEE AEEDERFEAR_-F
TEF-A-BARZEMBZFED
3 54 Il A 2 ) BY B A7 75 4R & 2B Rl 2 8
THERZ IR EET A K BFR & 5t
ZAZEe ((BRetENZES])
MARE) T 51 BRI 5 3R 5 R B9 T
Ko REHR A M EHRE -

Definition of Material

BB S sr ERIE 15 R 25T ERIZE 8 5% (1BE]AN) FEANER
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business
B0 R B 75 S 5 22 RI 58 3 9% (18R] AN) EBHER

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
BIFR B Hs R 22 RI S5 957 ~ B &R RIS 3955 &
BB B T R A 2E RIS 7 5% (18R] &)

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards and the amendments to IFRSs in the current
year had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

RS

NGRS AT B = e
MR Z JEA Z EET A T BB B 7 R
ERAMBETA  YARKREREER
BEFENTBRIERE R, HZ
ERAVBRRMBEREEFRALES

=
K2 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL 2.

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (cont'd)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

FE PR B PR B s i o R Al (TR
BREAFEREZER ) REBRT AR ()

2 AR 1B 1 AR A R AT B R B
BamEE R EERTA

A IR PR TE R ER
SR A 30 3 5T B S B 5 0 2 2 B e
CHEE

IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts and the related Amendments!
B0 R B 765 5 2RI S8 17 5% Riaa X MR

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions*

B B B 7 s A 2RISR 16 5% (18 5T AN) COVID-19 /H B & Z 5

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

B R B 7 R 5 22 BI S5 3 5% (18R] AX) BESELE w R

Amendments to IFRS 9, I1AS 39, IFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

BRI EERIE 95 - B &5 ERIE 395 - FIREERE —F S

BRI G HREENETS  BRMEREEE
457 M BIFR B A 3RS R 16 5% (BT A)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Confribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture?®

BRM B REENFI00GMERESHERF 28 REFREBENRSAELXEZANEEREIIEAS

(BET )

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current!

BIFR &St ERIE 5% (BRI A) HEESBERRENIERE

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting Policies!

B B e 5T A RIS 1 % R B B B s s R A R BRI ER

BEBBHAEE 25 (BFTR)

Amendments fo IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates!

BIFR &5t RIE 858 (BRI A) G hETEER'

Amendments to I1AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use?

BIBR & s R 16 5% (IBFTAN) M - BB K& BT BRI PT1SRIA?

Amendments to I1AS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

B BR & 5T A RIS 37 5% (1BETA) BEE R ENE K Z K2

Amendments fo IFRS Standards Annual Improvements fo IFRS Standards 2018 — 20202

I % B 75 3R 5 HE Bl (I AT AR) B BRELEN T - N\FE_Z_TF 2 FENE?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ! RZZE_=F—HA—Hzlz&RK
B 4F 5 BR A A AR

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 2 RZZT_—_F—-—H—Hzlz&FRR
B 4F 5 BRFE A AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined 3 R ER BB 2 BRI FE
AR AR

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1June 2020 4 RZZ_ZFA—H2&RAR
B 4F 5 BRFE A AR

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1January 2021 5 RZZ-_—F—HA—Hzs 2%
B 4F 5 BRFE A AR

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (cont'd)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer seftlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current, which:

° specify that the classification of liabilities as non-current rights that
are in existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically the
amendment classify that:

il the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12 months;
and

(i) clarify that if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are met at the
end of the reporting period, even if the lender does not test
compliance until a later date; and

° clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32 financial
Insfruments: Presentation.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December 2020, the
application of the amendments will not result in reclassification of the
Group’s liabilities.

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

F& PR B PR B s i o 2 Al (TR
BREAFS RS 2R ) REMERT A ()

@ ERIE 158 (BETAR) A
BRI

ZEER RTEREEENFHREM
BERMAEES BREAHERD
T_EARKBEEIBEARDAEENR
FnBEE EP:

s HEEHKABIBEARMERKD
FHEMNIERBER - LEME -

AFIER]RIS ¢

il DBEITEXIEEEEE
KL HE12ME A NIBERE
BHEE R

(i) ANRERIAE ST R B IRE
BIEERARERAMBT
AHEDTE RS WR
WEHAREXGMS - AR
TERERTFE R

s MAMARBZGRANBERST
EERACRRERERE Y
ZHBETAREE EEZER
7552 B 1 BB HERR R B A N B
S ERIERREH LA - 2]
Tz HEETAR  ZFHERA T
SRERBEN AR

BEAEEBR_ZT_ZF+ A

=T HMKREERE EREIR
BT EEHAREABENEN I -

BEREEBERNARQRF F3H 2020

177



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (cont'd)

Amendment to IFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for lessees to elect
not to assess whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The practical expedient only applies to rent concessions
occurring as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 that meets all of the
following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for changes in lease
payments resulting from rent concessions the same way it would account
for the changes applying IFRS 16 Leases if the changes are not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group’s financial
position and performance as the Group does not intend to apply the
practical expedient.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidation financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. For the purpose of preparation
of the consolidated financial statements, information is considered
material if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values af the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements are determined on such a basis, except for
leasing transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 16 “Lease”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in 1AS 2 Inventories or value in
use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assefts.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3.

BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation of consolidation financial statements
(Contd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)

controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved

when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

32 EXRNGFBUR#E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. WMEWMEBRRZGEHEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta) REFTHEE (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions EBartEERE

Optional concentration fest

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a fransaction-by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration test is
met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining balance of
the purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable assets
and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the date
of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or
bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

32 EXRNGFBUR#E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Contd)
Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in September 2010).

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 /ncome Taxes and IAS 19
Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below);

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. MEMBRERZGFHEERSE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTEEE #)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Contd) EBartEEKE (&)
Business combination (Cont'd) REEG(E)

e lease liabilities are recognised and measured af the present RRAMEEBERRME

value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16) as A HEBERFNSREE
if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date, TEREERYIRE (R MR B R B
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 TEIREER B EE)
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of MRERFE-BUTER
low-value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured Br 4N : (o) & HAfE W BE H
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted 1218 B A % =R : sk (bl KB
to reflect favourable or unfavourable ferms of the lease when BEHEEE - FRAEEE
compared with market terms. MR KT EEEEEE

BEMNSBEMER  LHET
8 B LA I BR B T 35 {6k 4 4R
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Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration BB DR RE  REIKE
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the ARG () FE 128 IR 1M A 2 BB SR U
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity BEBIRE WK EERAE
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable W AE(E) 2 EEBEER
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition Wb B W 2 AT R B B R R I
date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable JEBEFHEIERENE MK E
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the FarihiE  WE A BRI EER
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests EEZABRREER 2 FERR
in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held XARE R IEE 2 E [ 3E
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately TRt RERERNEERERE
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain. ZHBEEER T ATE(E)

ZHREE - B EFEAERNE SR

REBWEWE -
Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests REAEREAEAFAEATR
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant ERER IR OIEEHE QR
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially FEE TR - ATHEIK
measured af the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the BEZABNFEECHERSHE
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair Z IR DI (R B 10 S iR A S EH)
value. IR E ©
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3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

32 EXRNGFBUR#E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above] less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units ("CGUs") (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUSs| to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than its
carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
(or group of CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU (or group of CGUs), the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill disposed
of is measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or group of CGUs) retained.
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BE—_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLFE
3.  BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. vT\/r_'x\Ejﬁ% WRZEEEENE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd) RKEFTHE (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Revenue from contracts with customers ERAHWE

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or
services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the
relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the goods or services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining goods or services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods
or services.
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3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

32 EXRNGFBUR#E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the provision of services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

When the land and buildings are in the course of development for
provision of services or for administrative purposes, the leasehold
land component is classified as right-of-use assets. During the
construction period, the amortisation charge provided for the
leasehold land is included as part of costs of construction in progress.
Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they
are ready for their intended use (i.e. when they are in the location
and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management).

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets, other
than construction in progress, less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each year, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from business
combinations on or after the date of initial application or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the contract
are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the confract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of leasehold land and buildings that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight line basis or another systematic
basis over the lease term.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)

The Group as a lessee (Contd)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs fo be incurred by the Group in dismantling
and removing the underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 financial
Insfruments ("IFRS 9”) and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBRRZERELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER &)

32 EXRGFBUR(#E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Leases (Contd)
The Group as a lessee (Contd)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising an option fo terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assefs, and are recognised as expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Leases (Contd)
The Group as a lessee (Contd)
Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) whenever:

J the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the
related lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes in market rental
rates following a market rent review, in which cases the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. MEMBRERZGFHEERSE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd) REFTBER &)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Leases (Contd) HE (&)
The Group as a lessee [Contd) KEFERATN (B)
Lease modifications HEER

i HBEATER  AEEHEE
EFTER—HEBBNEEARR

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the o  HRIEERIEBIZMER—
right to use one or more underlying assets; and HRZHEBEEENETN
BAHE#E: &

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount e MEREMEMSFEMRE
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in REEENEERNEFE
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone BRERBREEASLNBR
price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract. i %) &% B AR TR E M

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities by
making corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. MEMBRERZEHREERSE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTEEE #)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Leases (Contd) HE (&)
The Group as a lessor KEEERHL A
Classification and measurement of leases HEZ P BLGTE

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”) to assess whether sale and
leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by the Group.

For a transfer that does not satisfy the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee accounts for the transfer proceeds as bank
loans within the scope of IFRS 9.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. ,%?/\,M%%E%z MEHERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)
Financial instruments SR TE

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value except for accounts receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL")) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income and interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. MEMBRRZGEHEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTHBER (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BEAREFTBUR(#E)
Financial instruments (Contd) SRIAE)
Financial assets EHBEE

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL, except
that initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that is required to be measured at the amortised cost or financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI")
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(Contd)

il Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.

(il Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI

are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other expenses, gains

and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-T-TFt-_A=t—BILER
3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBRRIEUEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta) REFTHE (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 32 BREGFIE#E)
Financial instruments (Cont'd) SEBITAE)
Financial assets (Cont'd) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets eRLEERE

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") on financial assets (including accounts and other
receivables, fixed bank deposits, restricted bank balances and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12 months ECL (“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that
is expected to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for accounts
receivables with significant balances and/or collectively based on
internal credit rating.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL under general approach. Unless when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in
which case, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd))

i

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument's external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. ,?53\/\ MERR2BBEEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta) REFTHEK (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd) 32 BEREBR#E)
Financial instruments (Cont‘d) ST AEE)
Financial assets (Contd) THEE ()
Impairment of financial assets (Contd) CREERE (&)
(il Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd) il 1EERBBEZEZN(E)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Tam Lt FF &R - i
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly CEIARES I Hﬁ 8830 E
since initial recognition when contractual payments are more AlxEEgREEER
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and B ¥ 2 1R M KRE R %i'a‘
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise. m-BRIEXEEREEE

i)

ASEMENERIL ERE
KON RIVE R ©

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria rEE Tf Hﬁ BL 5% A A Bl
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase FER SO mER 7311
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate fo ensure that the GRS E"J ﬁX Mo AREE
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit RRIEHLERT  AHERE
risk before the amount becomes past due. FRIEEREANKEBERR 2

Al A= B R E R0 -

Definition of default (i) EXIHEZE

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an RABEERREEMNS
event of default occurs when information developed internally ﬁ W H 4R 3 o 1t 51 B SRR
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is SHNEHBREBAT
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without 7<—f EEMEBEEA(BREAX
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group). SE)2EER(TEEARN

SEFANEAERD) -
ARSER RSB EENSMF -

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has Eam Lt AEER
occurred when the instrument is more than 90 days past due A I AR EEBER -
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information ABEROFEMN  BRIEX
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more SEAEERAEMNARE
appropriate. ASEHFABRNED

=5k - AERIH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assefs (Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Contd))

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(¢} the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

el the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv)  Write-off policy

rRMBHRR CRRUEERE
REFTBER (#)
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TR (48)
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(iv)
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The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking info account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised

B 2B B % IR 2 Eiﬁ?
R M5 1m0 5% 08 Y AT RE B (17148
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MEE EEEBRATE

in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Financial instruments (Contd)

Financial assets (Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL for account receivables are considered on a
collective basis taking into consideration past due information
and relevant credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)
Financial instruments (Contd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Contd))

) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Contd)

For collective assessment, the Group takes into consideration
the following characteristics when formulating the grouping:

° nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s accounts
and other receivables except for accounts receivables
from the PRC government's social insurance schemes
and certain credit-impaired debtors, fixed bank deposits,
restricted bank balances and bank balances are each
assessed as a separate group. Accounts receivables
from the PRC government's social insurance schemes
and certain credit-impaired debtors are assessed for ECL
on an individual basis);

° past-due status;

. nature, size and industry of receivables; and

° external credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar credit
risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BREGRTBUR (#)

Financial instruments (Contd) SRITE (&)
Financial assets (Contd) 2HEE (/)
Derecognition of financial assets RITTEREREE

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivables is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual obligation for
the Group to deliver cash or other financial assets or the Group has
the sole discretion to defer payment of distribution and redemption of
principal amount indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HMEVBRRZFEREERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd) REFTBEKR (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BEREBRGE)
Financial instruments (Contd) ST A E)

Financial liabilities at amortised costs

Financial liabilities, including accounts and other payables, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries and bank loans,
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation
(legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BREGRTBUR (#)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporates assets are allocated
to individual CGUs when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses whether
there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU
or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs, and is
compared with the carrying amount of the relevant CGU or group of
CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or the CGU) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBRRZERELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (%)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BREGRTBUR (#)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets other than goodwill (Contd)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate
assets or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the
carrying amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of CGUs.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMBBMRZEREELERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (&)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BREGRTBUR (#)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are accrued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. WMEWMEBRRZGEHEERE
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conta) REFTHEE (&)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd) 32 BEARGFHRM#)
Government grants T 4l B

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them and that the subsidies will be received.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable such grants are presented under “other
income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, including
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
and government-managed retirement benefit schemes in the PRC,
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits
the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

Research expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HENERRIEREERS
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd) RETHE (&)
32 BRI #E)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contd)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

3. BASIC OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL 3. HEMEHRRIEREERS

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contd) REFTBER (%)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Contad) 32 BREGFTHE#E)

Taxation (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised due to application
of the initial recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of remeasurement
or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied fo the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss. Where
current tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the
business combination.

2] O Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered fo be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the management have made in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of incremental borrowing rates of lease contracts

In determining incremental borrowing rates of lease contracts, the Group
applies judgement to determine the applicable rates, taking into account
the nature of the underlying assets, the terms and condition of the leases,
creditworthiness of the relevant group entities and economic environment,
at both the commencement date and the effective date of the modification
to calculate the present value of lease payments. The incremental
borrowing rates of the Group applied significantly affect the amounts of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Impairment of goodwill in relation to the acquisitions of % &I 7 & & 1%
& A BR 2~ Bl (Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co. Ltd.) (“Anhui Hualin”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Anhui Hualin Group”) and &
BE R #E R 0 B W B B A FR A & (Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian
Cardiovascular Hospital Co. Ltd.) ("Kangxin Hospital”) is assessed by
comparing the recoverable amount of the CGU of Anhui Hualin Group
(“Anhui Hualin CGU”) and CGU of Kangxin Hospital (“Kangxin Hospital
CGU") to which goodwill has been allocated in relation to acquisition of
Anhui Hualin Group (“Hualin’s Goodwill’) and in relation to acquisition of
Kangxin Hospital (“Kangxin's Goodwill*), which is the higher of the value in
use or fair value less costs of disposal, to their respective carrying value at
the end of the reporting period.

The value in use of their respective CGU is determined by the directors of
the Company based on the present value of estimated future cash flows to
be generated from their respective CGU and with reference to the valuation
reports prepared by an independent professional valuer, which was
approved by the directors of the Company. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or changes in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise. Significant judgements and assumptions are adopted
by the management in the value in use calculation for estimation of the
recoverable amount of the CGUs, the key assumptions including growth
rates and pre-tax discount rates. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
Hualin's Goodwill and Kangxin's Goodwill were impaired RMB27,500,000
(2019: nil) and RMB49,900,000 (2019: RMB60,000,000) respectively in view
of the recoverable amounts of Anhui Hualin CGU and Kangxin Hospital
CGU were less than their carrying amounts. The situation will be closely
monitored, and adjustments will be made in future periods, should future
market activity indicate that such adjustments are required.

2] 2 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Estimated impairment of goodwill (Contd)

As at 31 December 2020, the net carrying amount of Kangxin’s Goodwill
is RMB15,512,000 (2019: RMB65,412,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss of RMB109,900,000 (2019: RMB60,000,000)). As at 31 December 2020,
the net carrying amount of Hualin’s Goodwill is RMB29,101,000 (2019:
RMB56,601,000) (net of accumulated impairment loss of RMB27,500,000
(2019: nil)). Details of their respective recoverable amount calculation is
disclosed in Note 18.

Provision for medical dispute claims

The Group may be subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in
the ordinary course of business, which primarily include medical dispute
claims brought by the former patients. Provision for medical dispute claims
is made based on the status of potential and active claims outstanding
at the end of each year, and taking into consideration the assessment
and analysis of external experts and the total claim exposure. Where it
is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Based on the assessment, the provision for certain medical dispute claims
existed of approximately RMB2,956,000 (2019: RMB375,000) has been
provided and included in accounts and other payables by the Group as at
31 December 2020. The situation is closely monitored by the directors of
the Company and provision will be made as appropriate. Where the final
actual claims are greater than expected, a material dispute claims expense
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a claim takes place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Contd)
Estimated allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete inventories. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a net realisable value that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the net realisable value of inventories of the Group becomes
lower than its carrying amount subsequently, additional allowance may
be required. The carrying amount of inventories was approximately
RMB56,756,000 (2019: RMB69,768,000) as at 31 December 2020. No
impairment loss on the above amount was recognised during the year.
Details of the Group’s inventories are set out in Note 20.

Provision of ECL for accounts receivables

The Group collectively assesses ECL for the accounts receivables, except
for accounts receivables from the PRC government’s social insurance
scheme and certain credit-impaired debtors which are assessed for
ECL individually. The provision rates are based on internal credit ratings
as groupings of various receivables that have similar loss patterns. The
collective assessment is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
info consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are reassessed and changes in the
forward-looking information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group’s accounts receivables is disclosed in Note
35(bl(iii).

2]4 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_TFT_A=t+—HLEFE

REVENUE 5. W&
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows: AEEFAWZ DA :
2020 2019
RN\B 000 RMB’000
AREET T AREF T
Recognised over fime — output method: RELARERERER
Hospital services: BB AR -
— Inpatient healthcare services —{F BB AR 977,929 1,135,867
— Outpatient healthcare services —FIZ B ERS 528,826 609,740
— Physical examination services — BB AR5 113,697 102,561
Rehabilitation and other healthcare services: REREMBERE
— Rehabilitation hospital services —FE1E B RTE 64,210 53,345
— Rehabilitation centre services and — BB 0 AR 75 B H i B8 5 AR 75
other healthcare services 36,201 33,770
Others HAh 6,622 1,665
1,727,485 1,936,948
Recognised at a point in time: RE—REER
Sale of pharmaceutical products BEmiHeE 17,538 18,577
1,745,023 1,955,525
Performance obligations for contracts with customers BEFEHEITRD

Provision of hospital services, provision of rehabilitation and other
healthcare services and provision of other services

The Group provides hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare
services and others (represents elderly healthcare services to patients).
The directors of the Company considered the performance obligation
represents provision of these services, which are satisfied when these
services are rendered. Such services are recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive its service
income according to the relevant operating performance from the patients
and the patients simultaneously receive and consume the benefits provided
by the Group’s performance as the Group performs.

All hospital services, rehabilitation and other healthcare services, and
others are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under IFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

REBERS  REREREMEE
QEFX&TXE@\/J@HE@&

AEBEREELRRS K@&/H\ﬁﬂ
BRG N EM (FERRBRTEEFE
R#%) - ARREER %J@ﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬂm
HZFRYE AR RHZERBET
iwe - AR AN EE A RRBEABL
BRBRFEBUEE R YA - TiE
BRBEUBRMERAEBETASHE
REPTIRE N &S - S F R R
REITER

PrE BB IR 7% - BR1E e H 4 B IR 7%
REMHMRAS—FRER - RIEH
BRI EERIE SRR TE - R
BOREZEZERABETRONRZER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

5.

REVENUE (Contd)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers (Contd)
Sale of pharmaceutical products

The Group sells pharmaceutical products to customers and includes
single element as delivery of pharmaceutical products. The directors
of the Company considered no other separate performance obligation
is identified except for delivery of goods. The revenue on sale of
pharmaceutical products is recognised as sales of goods when the goods
are delivered and titles have been passed.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
service provided.

The Group's operating segments are classified as (i) hospital services; (ii)
rehabilitation and other healthcare services; (i) sale of pharmaceutical
products; and (iv) others. The details of the Group’s operating segments are
as follows:

Provision of hospital services includes (i)
inpatient healthcare services generally
refer to the treatment of patients who
are hospitalised overnight or for an
indeterminate period of time; (il outpatient
healthcare services generally refer to the
treatment of patients who are hospitalised
for less than 24 hours; (iii) physical
examinations services generally refer to the
clinical examination of individuals for signs
of diseases and health advisory services.

il Hospital services:

(i)  Rehabilitation and
other healthcare
services:

Provision of rehabilitation services generally
refer to the provision of special care
services to patients with permanent or
long-term physical or mental disabilities.
Other healthcare services include elderly
healthcare services and training services
for the disabled.

(il Sale of pharmaceutical ~ Sale of pharmaceutical products to patients

products: of the Group’s hospitals and outside
customers.
(iv)  Others: Provision of elderly healthcare services.

2] 6 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

These operating segments also represent the Group’s reportable segments.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in

arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating

segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Rehabilitation

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

RERENBNRRAKEN T 2]
D Rb o NEETE AR SR B R AT 2 ) JRE
MESHEIZEERRERTNEE

BE—T_THFET_A=t—HLEE

and other
healthcare Sale of
Hospital services  pharmaceutical
sevices  EERERHM products Others Total
B R BERE EmHE Hft @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTr AR%ETR ARETr  ARET:
(note) (note)
(k) iEa)
SEGMENT REVENUE pak: L6z
External revenue SMabiEE 1,620,452 100,411 17,538 6,622 1,745,023
Segment profit loss| 280 (E18) 179,323 3,141 3,523 (232) 185,755
Other income HA 4,201
Other expenses, gains and losses ~ EA1f s « Wiz RIEHE (5,123)
Net reversal of impairment losses T HHEEEBE
under expected creditloss model B [ 2R EEE -
BEFR 1,847
Administrative expenses THAX (227,774)
Finance costs MEKAK (21,995)
Loss before taxation PR AT 1R (26,089)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)
Segment revenues and results (Contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Rehabilitation

RiE E Y E S AC )
BE_Z-NFt-_A=1T—HLFE

and other
healthcare Sale of
Hospital services  pharmaceutical
sevices  REREM products Others Total
Bl R BERG BoHE Hit Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT AR®TT  ARBTT  ARETR
(note) (notel
(F3zE) (Fi3E)
SEGMENT REVENUE 7 E s
External revenue HMERSHE 1,848,168 87,115 18,577 1,665 1,955,525
Segment profit 7805 7l 304,688 19,549 4,164 1,018 329,419
Other income Hipe A 29,591
Other expenses, gains and losses Hff s « Y R EE 8,594
Net provision of impairment losses 78 Hi(2 & E51E 185t
under expected credit loss model T8 7 i {E 18 -
BEFE (596)
Administrative expenses THFA% (232,282)
Finance costs BEKAR (17,241
Profit before taxation PR AT R 117,485

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, impairment losses on goodwill
of RMB49,900,000 and RMB27,500,000 are allocated to hospital services
segment and rehabilitation and other healthcare services segment
respectively (2019: RMB60,000,000 allocated to hospital services segment).

There were no infer-segment sales during both years.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment profit (loss)
represents the (loss incurred) profit earned by each segment without
allocation of other income, other expenses, gains and losses, net reversal
(net provision] of impairment losses under expected credit loss model,
administrative expenses and finance costs. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Except as disclosed above, no other amounts are regularly provided to the
CODM and therefore, no further analysis is presented.

2] 8 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contd)

Segment assets and liabilities

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results of each
segment. No analysis of segment assets and segment liabilities is
presented as the CODM does not regularly review such information for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment. Therefore,
only segment revenue and segment results are presented.

Geographical information and information about major customers

All revenue are generated in the PRC where almost all of the non-current
assets of the Group are also located in the PRC. The Group has a highly
diversified patient portfolio. No single patient contributed over 10% of the

Group's total revenue during both years.

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

DHBEERAE

TERLERRERBEZDMNRER
BIEHARR - Y EEIDHEERD
BEEIT ARTERERKER
BRIEMARAFEMTLTERE
BlazEER - Bt B2% 7 8l

WEEHRBEBAIEEFPHNER

FRBERSEERETE MAKEET
B ERBEERGURPE - K&
BrmAEARESB - WEE K

AR MEFTFES A EEBENEZET
EA10% A | o

OTHER INCOME 7. Hfimlg A
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Investment income from financial assets at BAFEFABTHNSHEENKR
FVTPL (note i) E A (B REG) 16,439 14,508
Fixed operating lease income BlE&EHE WA 5,426 6,235
Bank and other interest income RITREMF BUA 4,038 2,789
Clinical trial and related income B& IR 52 58 Mo 4B B A 3,088 848
Government subsidies (note (ii)) IR e B (B 2 (i) 6,345 739
Others Hih 5,865 4,472
41,201 29,591
Notes: B 5T

(i) The amount represents investment income mainly in the form of dividend (i)
income or interest income from financial assets at FVTPL.

(ii) The government subsidies mainly represent the subsidies on costs incurred for (ii)
operation of rehabilitation centres and hospitals, research and development
projects, medical related seminars and other COVID-19-related subsidies in
2020 with no special and unfulfilled conditions aftached.

ZEBEBEEENRQFEF AR
B B A E R A B WA A B A
AR EBA -

BT BEENEEREAE
THEENEEPLRERNES
MEEE  BERBEAEELNK
AOBHEAREMR T -_ZTFR
COVID-19 H B8 84 -
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

8.  OTHER EXPENSES, GAINS AND LOSSES

Htfx - WEREE

2020 2019
g g 2:2 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREEF T ARBTT
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVTPL BATFEFABENEREERN
(note) N EWE () 4,130 8,701
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, HEMEE - BE R
plant and equipment FEWEE (1,513) (246)
Net exchange (loss) gain fEH (B8 W= F58 (4,906) 2,152
Donations B (2,834) (2,013)
(5,123) 8,594
Note: The comparative amount is reclassified from other income to conform with the M Zem b REFE MK AHR

current year's presentation.

EFOE UNEAFEZ2ITR -

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RERNAK

2020 2019
—EIEF —ZT-hEF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBET T AR®T T
Interest on bank loans RITERFE 15,332 5,387
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEAMNE 12,493 13,343
27,825 18,730

Less: Amount capitalised in property, plantand & : R¥1% « B KR EE AL
equipment H) 58 (5,830) (1,489)
21,995 17,241

The capitalised borrowing costs represent the borrowing costs incurred
by a subsidiary on borrowings raised specifically for the construction in
progress during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLEE

(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. BRF AT (BE) &R
2020 2019
g g 222 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBT T
(Loss) profit before taxation has been arrived at  BrFi AT (E518) B F 4 HIBR T 5 EE
after charging: BER
Directors’ emoluments (Note 11) EF5ME (HEN) 3,068 3,910
Other staff costs: Hih 8 TRA :
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 11) EEMe (k) 820 861
Other salaries and allowances Hih e MERL 532,428 527,599
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIRAEFIET B 3K 12,744 26,511
Total staff costs 8 TR 549,060 558,881
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - /= MR IEITE 109,266 91,200
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAREENE 33,622 31,404
Research and development expenditure X 1,595 1,030
Short-term lease rentals in respect of HEEFLORETIEEE BN
rehabilitation centres and staff quarters EHEEES 276 813
Variable lease rentals in respect of hospitals HERARENAIZHERS 6,569 6,078
Auditor's remuneration ZEEN & 2,366 2,694
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAF XM FERA
[representing pharmaceutical products, (5P &Em - FM K
consumables and others used, included in Hpth o FF AW AA)
cost of revenue) 805,426 919,463
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

11.  DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ N ESE THARKREEMHNE
EMOLUMENTS
Mr. Wang Junyang, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon, Ms. RREFETEHLE  REKRESE -
Wang Aigin and Mr. Lv Yubo are the directors of the Company for both FTEEEE TEHL IR ERE
years. Mr. Chen Wangzhi is also the chief executive of the Group and his ERARNAEE - REREETR/A
emoluments disclosed below include those for services rendered by him as SEMITBUEE - T XXPTH EEF A B
the chief executive. EEFBBRIERTTHAIFIRERSEH
B -
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai, Dr. Chen Keji and Mr. Chan Sing Nun are the RREFEEHZESEE RAER
independent non-executive directors of the Company for both years. MIRERERE R RRIEILIENITES ©
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors, chief executive FRNEMNHIENEARRIES  ITHA
and supervisors of the Company during the year are as follows: HEEENMSFFBOT
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances contributions
Fees HER RIKEF Total
we 2R sHEIfR Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T AR® T AR® T ARBTT

For the year ended BE-Z-ZF+=H
31 December 2020 =t-HLEFE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Wang Junyang TEGLRE 225 - - 225
Mr. Chen Wangzhi PRAE AR 2 & 225 1,588 6 1,819
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TRERE 225 - - 225
Ms. Wang Aigin TEHut 225 120 4 349
Non-executive director: FHITES
Mr. Lv Yubo aEREE - - = =
Independent non-executive
directors: B IEHITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai B EE 150 - - 150
Dr. Chen Keji PRAJEEE 150 - - 150
Mr. Chan Sing Nun RELE 150 - - 150
Directors’ emoluments [Note 10) = E 84 (FH5E10) 1,350 1,708 10 3,068
Supenvisors: BE:
Mr. Chen Shaoming BRAEHEE - - = =
Mr. Wang Shaofeng TlHEE - 225 7 232
Mr. Yue Chunyang FEBEE - 580 8 588
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 10)  E= S #{4 (Ff5£10) - 805 15 820
1,350 2,513 25 3,888
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e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND SUPERVISORS’ N BEE - THAZBKEEMNE »®)
EMOLUMENTS (contd)
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and schemes
allowances confributions
Fees ek RIKEF Total
ok AL BEGEA st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETTT ARETTT
For the year ended BE-Z-NFT+=H
31 December 2019 =t—HLEE
Executive directors: WITEE
Mr. Wang Junyang TEGRE 360 - - 360
Mr. Chen Wangzhi BREE R ST A& 360 1,587 25 1,972
Mr. Wong Wai Hung Simon TRELRE 360 - - 360
Ms. Wang Aigin FEHL+ 360 120 18 498
Non-executive director: FERITESE
Mr. Lv Yubo BEREE - - - -
Independent non-executive
directors: BYFERITES
Mr. Yeung Ming Lai mERB LA 240 - - 240
Dr. Chen Keji PR EE A 240 - - 240
Mr. Chan Sing Nun REfE KL 240 - - 240
Directors’ emoluments (Note 10)  E FE8{< (Fiz£10) 2,160 1,707 43 3,910
Supervisors: E=x:
Mr. Chen Shaoming BB E - - - -
Mr. Wang Shaofeng FOEREE - 210 14 224
Mr. Yue Chunyang FEGEE - 618 19 637
Supervisors’ emoluments (Note 10) - & S 8% (Fi3110) - 828 33 861
2,160 2,535 76 4,77

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above are for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The non-executive director's and independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above are for their services as directors of the

Company.

Mr. Lv Yubo has waived emoluments in acting as a non-executive director
of the Company. No other director of the Company has waived or agreed
to waive any emoluments during both years.

EXFRBTESTNOME I EEE
RRF R AR BEBIR AR M AT -

EXFARIEMITERE B IENITE
ENME IR EERARBESRM
B AR5 0 32 A o

BERELECREERARFFANT

EFENHE - RNMEFEARAER
EENERXFBRETANEOLE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

12.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 12.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included one
(2019: one) director, details of whose remuneration are set out in Note 11
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining four (2019:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
of the Company are as follows:

hERESHFMES

FA - AEELEERSFMERERE
—RH(ZE-NEF:—R)EF HEH
MEEBE N EXEN - FR - BT
mEHE(ZE-AF:mE2) RARAR
RAEENFERSTHRABNRSHE
BHOFBFBIT -

2020 2019
g S22 2 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T AREF T
Salaries and allowances e MoER 2,817 2,904
Performance related incentive payments IR AE A S 1 3K 2,922 2,891
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIRAEFIET B #E 3K 4 9
5,743 5,804

Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEMENFLATEHE :

Number of employees
EEAH

2020 2019
—E-FF —EFNF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7T 2 2,000,000 78 7T 2 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the Company or
the five highest paid individuals (including directors and employees) as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office for both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. PREBIBA
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBT T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax [“EIT") PRI EMET ((REMSEHD
Current tax B EATR IR 23,109 67,795
(Overjunderprovision of EIT in prior years BAEFELEMSEH
(ERFRE ) BB T 2 (160) 32
22,949 67,827
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEREM
Current tax BVER® TR 167 72
Underprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax in BEFERBNESHBEEBD R
prior years 289 -
23,405 67,899
Deferred tax charge (Note 27) R IE X (5T 27) 562 898
23,967 68,797

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the statutory income tax rate of the Company and
its PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill) which introduced the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group
entity will be taxed at 8.25% and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Accordingly, the Hong Kong Profits Tax of the qualifying group entity
is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2,000,000.

REBFBECEMEIE ((REMREHR
B REEMBBOREREGS - A2
Al R B B B A R M E S E A
REFEBN R 3 25%

RZE-NF=ZAZ+—RH FBYL
FEBB(CTE—EERBE (B (F
75) GO ER) ([ZIEHIER] 3
AMBHMRG - ZGEPIERR-F
—NEF=ZAZ T N\BERIRRERE
WHRBEFE - REFGHMRARS
S EMEBEE R E 2,000,000 7T
B 1 %X 7% 8.25% - 1M i 8 2,000,000 /&
To8 A BB K 4516.5% © NI A RS
AR I B AR B SR B B R 2 i N AR 1R
16.5%F—HEHEH o

Eit - & B 1% & B E 88 5 2,000,000
Joil st FE SR B ) & 2,000,000 7 7T LA
EHHETEREOE R T D 51128.25%
F16.5% TR E B BEFEH °
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BHE_ZT-THF+-_A=1+—HLFE

13.  INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Contd) 13. FriSHiBsz (#)
The income fax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit FAMMGHRAEITEGEBERRE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ftb 2 T W 2w 2k BO BR B AT (S 18) i A1
comprehensive income as follows: R -
2020 2019
—EC-EE —F-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBT T
(Loss) profit before taxation B AT (B518) & A (26,089) 117,485
Tax [credit) charge at EIT rate of 25% 1225% B Bl 1 FEFTS B K
(%) B HiE (6,522) 29,371
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR A BB 2
purposes 22,970 19,100
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARRBANTR G E
purposes (2,788) (2,597)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERNRIABENRSTZE 23,628 21,572
Utilisation of deductible temporary difference &) 3 5¢ Al R FE R EY
previously not recognised AR By = 2 (1,425) -
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BB R R T IAE 18
recognised (15) -
(Overlunderprovision of EIT in prior years BEFEREMSEH
(EBREm) BRI (160) 32
Underprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax in BEFERBFEN
prior years BETE 289 -
Effect of different tax rate of a subsidiary EEMBEERECENNE R A
operating in other jurisdiction TRAB Rz HH 2 (1,091) (146)
Others H (919) 1,465
Income tax expenses PSR 7 32 23,967 68,797
14. DIVIDENDS 4. BRE

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 of RMB16 cents per
share amounting to approximately RMB53,363,000 in aggregate was
declared and paid by the Company during the year ended 31 December

2019.

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2020, nor has any dividend

been proposed since 31 December 2020.

226 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

REBEE-_FT-NAF+-_A=+t—H
IFFE ARAERERENBE T
—NFETZA=+—HBIEFENHNRY
CRHRBARE

BEERARREI6S
53,363,000 7T °

HE_ZT-_FTF+=-A=+—H1
FEITEH AR L ER IR K
BRKERE BT TF+=A
—t—HRIMEEZZRATEMAEKE -



15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. 8k (F#E) BF
The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share atiributable to owners of KRR AREBRER (BB &
the Company is based on the following data: MERATEIEE -
2020 2019
RN\B 000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

(Loss) earnings: (E18) &8F)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable to ARETE R (BE) BF AR F
owners of the Company for the purpose of HAEARGAREE (B18)RH
calculating (loss) earnings per share (25,372) 74,264
2020 2019
—EEF —T-NEF
Number of shares: RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ B FTE &R EA (F518) BFIW
for the purpose of calculating basic (loss) TR T8
earnings per share 334,394,000 334,394,000
No diluted (loss) earnings per share has been presented since there were BAREMBEFEANLEEITELL B
no potential ordinary shares in issue for both years. Ig - B 2 5 AR EEE (B518) B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

16.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6. W% BERZE
Leasehold Medical Office Motor Construction in
Buildings ~ improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles progress Total
EF HEEL BaERE WORE b= EEIR @z

RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RWMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO0O  RWMBO00O
ARBTL  ARBTL ARETR  ARETRL ARETL  ARETRL ARET:R

cost e
At1January 2019 RZZ-N§—-A—-H 205,100 264,381 525,847 116,067 13,722 123 464 1,248,581
Additions NE - 384 56,461 15,791 3,926 118,345 194,907
Disposals e - - (16,06) (1,929) (826) - (18,820)
Transfer g3 - 7,634 - - - (7,634 -
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NEF

+-A=1+-H 205,100 272,399 566,243 129,929 16,822 234,175 1,424,668
Additions e - 1,017 70,251 10,065 1,539 86,897 169,769
Disposals/write-off HE /W - (1,490) (23,204) (2,400) (1,746) - (28,860)
Transfer oz - 138,151 1,380 - - (139,531) -
At 31 December 2020 R-B_BF

+-A=1+-H 205,100 410,077 614,650 137,594 16,615 181,541 1,565,577
DEPRECIATION &
At1January 2019 RZE-NE-A—H 2,215 81,536 280,746 60,398 9,296 - 434191
Provided for the year FREE 5316 15132 56,515 12,678 1,559 - 91,200
Eliminated on disposals ~ HEE 34 - - (15,724) (1,845) (824) - (18,393
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NF

+-A=1+-H 7,531 96,668 321,537 7,231 10,031 - 506,998
Provided for the year FREE 5316 24,429 64,270 13,585 1,666 - 109,266
Himinated on disposals/ i E B ¥ /3

write-off - (568) (22,502) (2,329) 1,560) - (26,959)

At 31 December 2020 R-B_BF

+-A=1+-H 12,847 120,529 363,305 82,487 10,137 - 589,305
CARRYING VALUES RHE
At 31 December 2020 RIZZZTET2R

=t+-A 192,253 289,548 251,345 55,107 6,478 181,541 976,272
At 31 December 2019 RZEB-NF

+-A=1+-H 197,569 175,731 244,706 58,698 6,791 234,175 917,670
The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction it BE R ERE (ERIRRN)
in progress, are depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates BERERAERER THFEGHRINE
per annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the lease, or gF TH Ak 50 F & A

50 years R

Leasehold improvement 10 - 20 years HEEE 10 £ 204
Medical equipment 5-10 years EERE 55104
Office equipment 5-10 years PRFAE 5%104F
Motor vehicles 5 years A 5%
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17.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

7. EHEEE
Leasehold
land and
Leasehold buildings
lands HELTH Total
HE i kEF HEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTIT ARETT ARETT

COST 2N
At1January 2019 R-ZE—-—hF—H—H 153,646 192,433 346,079
Additions NE - 8,427 8,427
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+=-A=+—H 153,646 200,860 354,506
Additions NE 85,068 8,297 93,365
At 31 December 2020 RZE-_EF+_-_A=+—H 238,714 209,157 447,871
DEPRECIATION e
At1January 2019 N_ZE—NF—H—H - - -
Provided for the year FREBE 3,248 28,156 31,404
At 31 December 2019 R_ZE—hF+_A=+—H 3,248 28,156 31,404
Provided for the year FNRHE 3,957 29,665 33,622
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TF+-_A=+—H 7,205 57,821 65,026
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2020 RZZE_ZF+A=+—H 231,509 151,336 382,845
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hhF+-A=+—H 150,398 172,704 323,102
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
RMB‘000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETIT
Total cash outflow for leases HEReRL@EsE 45,819 42,207

The Group leases leasehold lands, and leasehold land and buildings for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to twelve
years, but may have variable lease payments as described below.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for rehabilitation centres
and staff quarters. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the portfolio of short-
term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-term leases to which the
short-term lease expense disclosed in Note 10.

AEEHERETHURAEL R
@?}%EAE"” HONEEHEIIE12
FRI EREEA MM AT R E K -

$%i%ﬂ7ﬁ%§z?ﬁqﬂ/b&§lf§%
RIVEREE R _TFER_
—hF+ZA=+—8" %Eﬁﬂfﬂf?ﬂ
BELURH 0T KNG HEER
SHERHEES -
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

17.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd)
Variable lease payments

Leases of leasehold land and buildings are either with only fixed payments
or contain variable lease payments that are based on the gross floor area
occupied and minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease
term. The amounts of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable to
relevant lessors are as follows:

7. EREEE @)
AR EERNRK
HEXHMBFHHEEAGEEMR
ENAKBEERMEBARETRE
WA HEEENFARERERRNEE
MERFEEENK - BN BN TF
BRAHBEANEE & AT #EE RN
™
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
EhENEN CIE-2NEA E/S S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBETT AR®TRT AR®TR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE—-ZT -ZF
+ZA=+—HIEFE

Leasehold land and buildings AETHRET
— without variable lease payments - EuEHENR 3,874 = 3,874
— with variable lease payments - BRI EHAENR 35,100 6,569 41,669
38,974 6,569 45,543
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
R DEN EIE-LPEN Bk
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTRT ARBTRT

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & ZE —Z— L4
TZA=+T—BIEFEE

Leasehold land and buildings AETHRET
— without variable lease payments - EAEEENK 2,510 - 2,510
— with variable lease payments - BAEHEENK 32,806 6,078 38,884
35,316 6,078 41,394

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that higher
rental costs are incurred by increasing occupation of gross floor area of
relevant properties. Variable rental expenses are expected to continue to
represent a similar proportion of gross floor area of relevant properties
occupied in future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-B-TFT-A=+—ALEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd) 7. EREEE#)
Restrictions or covenants on leases THE R &l sk 25
In addition, lease liabilities of RMB207,993,000 (2019: RMB226,178,000) s R-E_TFF+_A=1+—8"
are recognised with related right-of-use assets of RMB151,336,000 (2019: RIEEBEARE 207,993,000 (=
RMB172,704,000) as at 31 December 2020. The lease agreements do not T—NF : AR®226178,00070) © 1
impose any covenants other than the security inferests in the leased assets {0 A & = B A K 151,336,000 7T
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for —E—N5F : AR¥172,704,0007T) ©
borrowing purposes. BREBABENREEEE EI’HEHEF >
@A HEWE T ENEMREE R
EEETSRAEERER -
As at 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities are secured by rental deposits RZEBEZZF+_A=+—1H MHE
with carrying values of RMB582,000 (2019: RMB170,000). BENLEEMEARAKEES582,0007T 8
BB EER(ZZE—NF: ARKE
170,000 7T.) ©
GOODWILL 18. E&
RMB’000
ARBT T
COST ﬁj?,Z{&
At 1January 2019, 31 December 2019 and RZZE—hF—H—H- —NFrZA=1+—
31 December 2020 E&_7_7¢+ ﬂ + H 182,013
IMPAIRMENT AR
At1January 2019 RZZE-NF—H—H -
Impairment loss recognised for the year FREBRREERE 60,000
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NAF+-A=+—H 60,000
Impairment loss recognised for the year FADERBEEE 77,400
At 31 December 2020 R—_T-_TFF+_H=+—H 137,400
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2020 N e 44,613
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+_A=+—H 122,013
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18.

GOODWILL (Conta)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Hualin’s Goodwill and Kangxin's
Goodwill are impaired by RMB27,500,000 (2019: nil) and RMB49,900,000
(2019: RMB60,000,000) respectively, in view of the recoverable amounts
of the two CGUs being less than their own carrying amounts. As at 31
December 2020, the carrying amounts of Hualin’s Goodwill and Kangxin's
Goodwill are RMB29,101,000 (2019: RMB56,601,000) and RMB15,512,000
(2019: RMB65,412,000) respectively.

The recoverable amount of the Anhui Hualin CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report
prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management
for the next five (2019: five) years. Cash flows beyond the five-year (2019:
five-year) period are extrapolated using growth rate of 3.0% (2019: 3.0%).
A pre-tax discount rate of 17.46% (2019: 14.6%) is used for this CGU and
derived using risk-free rate, the market return and CGU specific factors.

The recoverable amount of the Kangxin Hospital CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation by reference to a valuation report
prepared by an independent professional valuer. The calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the management
for the next seven (2019: seven) years. Cash flows beyond the seven-year
(2019: seven-year) period are extrapolated using growth rate of 3.0% (2019:
3.0%). A pre-tax discount rate of 15.4% (2019: 14.6%) is used for this CGU
and derived using risk-free rate, the market return and CGU specific factors.
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18.

19.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GOODWILL (conta)

The key assumptions are growth rates and pre-tax discount rates which
are estimated based on past practices and expectations of future changes
in the market. After taken into consideration of the historical performance
and most recent actual performance of the Anhui Hualin CGU and
Kangxin Hospital CGU, the directors of the Company consider that the
estimated future growth in revenue from the rehabilitation and other
healthcare services business relating to the operations of Anhui Hualin
and the hospital services business relating to the operations of Kangxin
Hospital will be lower than previously expected for the periods of approved
financial budgets. In view of the aggregate recoverable amounts of these
CGUs are below their aggregate carrying amounts, impairment losses of
RMB27,500,000 (2019: nil) and RMB49,900,000 (2019: RMB60,000,000) are
recognised during the year for Hualin’s Goodwill and Kangxin's Goodwill
respectively.

FIXED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2020, the fixed bank deposits carried fixed interest rates
at 3.10% per annum with original maturity at 3 months and is classified as
current assets since their remaining maturity is less than 3 months from
the end of the reporting period (2019: the fixed bank deposits carried fixed
interest rates rating from 4.13% to 4.26% per annum with original maturity
at 3 years and is classified as non-current assets since their remaining
maturity is over 12 months from the end of the reporting period).

Restricted bank balances represented (i) deposits required by Dongguan
Social Insurance Bureau which are based on annual assessment on the
medical service quality of the hospitals, such deposits will be discharged
upon completion of the annual assessment; and (i) proceeds from the
initial public offering of the Company’s H Shares remitted to PRC banks, the
usage of which is subject o relevant approval. The restricted bank balances
carried fixed interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 0.35% (2019: 0.30% to
0.35%) per annum as at 31 December 2020.

Bank balances carried prevailing market rates ranging from 0.00% to 1.05%
(2019: 0.00% to 1.05%) per annum as at 31 December 2020.

18.

19.

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE
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20.

21.

INVENTORIES 20. 78

2020 2019
—E-FF —EFNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
Pharmaceutical products et 37,788 48,898
Consumables and others FEM R EA 18,968 20,870
56,756 69,768

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FE U AR R 2 LAt FE U SR 1B
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Accounts receivables FE U BR 3R 212,400 273,928
Less: Allowance for credit loss B EEEERE (7,694) (9,769)
204,706 264,159
Prepayments to suppliers TE A FE P R IR 16,442 9,935
Interest receivables FEULHI B 594 995
Others Hib 26,937 25,499
Total accounts and other receivables JE LG BR 3R % H A LU SRR AR R 248,679 300,588

At 1 January 2019, the carrying amount of accounts receivables from
contracts with customer was RMB186,063,000, net of impairment
allowance of RMB9,573,000.

The individual patients of the Group would usually settle payments
by cash, credit cards and mobile payment or government’s social
insurance schemes. For credit card and mobile payments, the banks
and counterparties will normally settle the amounts approximately 30
days after the transaction date. Payments by the PRC government's social
insurance schemes will normally be settled by the local social insurance
bureau or similar government departments which are responsible for the
reimbursement of medical expenses for patients who are covered by the
government's medical insurance schemes ranged from 30 to 180 days from
the transaction date. Corporate customers will normally seftle the amounts
within 90 days after the transaction date by bank transfers.
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivables, net of allowance
for credit loss, presented based on the revenue recognition date at the end
of the reporting period:

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

FEE L B R R LAt FE WK FRIE (42)

ERSREHRKABZEHENHNE
WERR (IR BB ERE) MRS
MaaT

2020 2019

—EC-EE —ET—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBF T

Within 30 days 30 KA 121,199 128,564
3110 90 days RIEXTIPN 36,124 67,041
9110180 days 91E 180K 43,012 41,195
18110 365 days 181E 365K 2,992 25,821
Over 365 days HBiE 365 K 1,379 1,538
204,706 264,159

The management of the Group closely monitors the credit quality of
accounts receivables and considers the debts that are neither past due nor
impaired to be of a good credit quality. Receivables that were neither past
due nor impaired related to the customers for whom there was no history
of default.

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group’s accounts receivables
balance are receivables with aggregate carrying amount of RMB47,383,000
(2019: RMB68,554,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out
of the past due balances, RMB4,371,000 (2019: RMB27,359,000) has been
past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group assessed
accounts receivables collectively based on internal credit rating except for
accounts receivables from the PRC government's social insurance schemes
and certain credit-impaired debtors of which ECL are assessed individually.
These receivables consist of a large number of small patients with common
risk characteristics that are representative of the patients’ abilities to pay all
amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms.

Details of impairment assessment of accounts and other receivables for the
year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in Note 35(bliii).
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

22 BAVEFABGNEREE

2020 2019
—E-FF —EFNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREF T
Portfolio investment fund (note (i) KEHEAES (MEE) 67,663 77,150
Structured bank deposits (note {ii) EEMIRITE R (BIEEG) 400,000 400,000
467,663 477,150

Analysed for reporting purpose as: MEBmEBRTLOT
Current assets MENEE 400,000 477,150
Non-current assefs ERBEE 67,663 -
467,663 477,150

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

As part of the Group’s cash management activities, the Group has a portfolio
investment fund, the underlying portfolio of which includes a mixture of cash
and shares that are primarily listed in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2019,
the portfolio investment fund was maintained by a discretionary fund manager
and measured at fair value. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
such portfolio investment fund was disposed of and part of the proceeds
were rolled over to a new portfolio investment fund. At 31 December 2020,
the Group currently does not expect any immediate use of the new portfolio
investment fund in the short term and thus, the new portfolio investment fund
is classified as non-current assets. The Group may at its discretion redeem the
new fund subject to the relevant procedures, requirements and restrictions.

The Group invested into structured deposits with a bank in the PRC for
guaranteed principal and variable investment returns. Majority of these
structured deposits are with maturities of less than six months and the
principal is generally renewed when matured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISION 23, BERFR EALRE FUR R e
2020 2019
—E-FF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTTT
Accounts payables FETBR K 256,802 262,040
Accrued expenses ERTAX 94,045 83,062
Receipts in advance (note) TEURFRIA (P 5E) 100,659 61,017
Payables for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment WHEYI 2 - B ek 1B FE N 5RIE 41,681 57,397
Other tax payables Hfth fE T 1218 3,070 3,796
Others EA 17,655 20,847
Other payables E fh fES FR08 257,110 226,119
Sub-total accounts and other payables JEAS BR 3R N b B A FRIB N ET 513,912 488,159
Provision for medical dispute claims BEAUNRERE 2,956 375
Total accounts and other payables JRE AT BR 0 B EL At FE A< RRIE
and provision HEE R 516,868 488,534
Note: Included in the balance are advances from the PRC social insurance which M W AGERBIERBEESREB B
represent operating cash of RMB52,533,000 (2019: RMB20,667,000) advanced HERPBBFAREEEERK
from the PRC government for the daily operations of the hospitals operated by M2 ERBELCERSARY
the Group. 52,533,0007L (ZE—NF: AR
20,667,000 7T.)

The credit period of accounts payables ranges from 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date.

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payables based on the date
of receipt of goods:

ERERMEEREEZA BB
F30E90K -

B U B BB A0 1 B 2R B B B8 47
mF :

2020 2019

=E-EHF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETF T

Within 30 days 30 KIAIA 72,662 99,938
3110 90 days 31£90K 108,215 100,364
9110180 days 91 £ 180K 42,749 31,467
18110 365 days 181£ 365K 15,473 10,793
Over 365 days HBiE 365K 17,703 19,478
256,802 262,040
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HE=

23.

24.

E_EF+-_A=1+—HIEFE

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND PROVISION (Contd)

Included in other payables is provision for medical dispute claims which the
Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising from its
ordinary course of business. The following is the movement in provision for
medical dispute claims:

23.

FEAS BRAA R AL RS FRIR K B e

(#&)

BT KM OB OB B AL R
- AAEBIEAREMESRA R
BB ELNETBEMHTE
2 BB o AT ABBUH R
R

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREEF T AREFTT

At the beginning of the year REA) 375 1,280
Provision for the year F NS 4,558 597
Utilisation of the provision B BE (1,977) (1,502)
At the end of the year RER 2,956 375

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

At 31 December 2020, the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries represent amount due to R = EZE B IR & H R 2 &, the
non-controlling shareholder of Kangxin Hospital and amount due to & &/
EHrEEREAEGRLE (BRAE), the non-controlling shareholder
of Anhui Hualin (2019: due to R e 5= 1= 2 & 1% & B [R 2 7, the non-
controlling shareholder of Kangxin Hospital). The amounts are non-trade
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. BANK LOANS

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

/= % )

25. SRITER

2020 2019
g g 222 —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T
Variable rate secured bank loan (note (a)) BHEMPBITER OFEFIZE) (KM 5E () 204,647 155,601
Fixed-rate secured loan (note (b)) FEFEF(EEFE) (K5 D) 53,183 60,652
257,830 216,253
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T AR®TTT
The carrying amounts of the loans are EREmMERATREEERE
repayable*:
Within one year —FR 7,574 7,468
Within a period of more than one year but —EMEREFER
not exceeding two years 21,897 7,574
Within a period of more than two years but MERFHEBER
not exceeding five years 73,549 57,818
Within a period of more than five years B hF RN 154,810 143,393
257,830 216,253
Less: Amounts due within one year shown W mBBEE TR
under current liabilities R—FRNEIEIRFRIE (7,574) (7,468)
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities ~ FERBI & &8 TR KIE 250,256 208,785

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the o

loan agreements.

B B FRIR T LA B R W5 o P AT 31

FHEH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

25. BANK LOANS (Contad)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the bank loan carried interest at the
benchmark interest rate for loan offered by the People’s Bank of China
adjusted annually from the drawn down date. The effective interest rate of
the secured bank loan is 5.84% (2019: 5.90%) per annum. The main purpose
of the loan is to finance the payment of phase 2 medical facility development
of Kangxin Hospital and to settle certain amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the bank loan was secured with the key
terms and securities pledged as follows:

(i) financial guarantees provided by the Company, Mr. Wang Junyang,
chairman of the Group, 2T R Bk A # B R A 7], a company
controlled by Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. (“Xingye Group”), and

ER{EEEIR A AR A A (collectively referred as the “Guarantors’)
with respective maximum amount of RMB500,000,000 (2019:
RMB500,000,000); and

(ii) share pledges over the equity shares in Kangxin Hospital held by the
Company and Re =B EIRERR AR

The fixed rate secured loan represents a financing arrangement with Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co., Ltd., an independent third party.
Pursuant to the arrangement, the Group has transferred legal title of certain
medical equipment to Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Leasing Co.,
Ltd., and shall then be leased back for use by the Group. Upon expiry of the
lease term, the Group has an option to repurchase these medical equipment
at a cash consideration of RMB1. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying
amount of these medical equipment is approximately RMB45,517,000 (2019:
RMB58,816,000), and is guaranteed by the Guarantors.

The transfers of these medical equipment do not satisfy the requirements
of IFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of assets. The Group continued to
recognise the transferred assets and initially recognised a secured loan equal
to the transfer proceeds. As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
borrowings in respect of such arrangements amounted to RMB53,183,000
(2019: RMB60,652,000). The loan carried effective interest rate of 6.74% (2019:
6.74%) per annum and would be settled with quarterly instalments until
September 2027.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

26. LEASE LIABILITIES 26. HEA®E
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Lease liabilities payable: ENHEERRE:
Within one year —FR 30,685 26,294
Within a period of more than one year but —ZMF R EE A
not more than two years 34,930 29,576
Within a period of more than two years but M ZE A e B A
not more than five years 136,193 116,366
Within a period of more than five years BB hF A 6,185 53,942
207,993 226,178
Less: Amount due for setflement with 12 months J& : B & & T AR
shown under current liabilities 1216 A B BIE R 8 SR8 (30,685) (26,294)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months JEMEBBEERETAT
shown under non-current liabilities 1218 A 1% 2 B2 2 89 588 177,308 199,884
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease HERAREEaENNEFEESER
liabilities ranged from 5.1% to 6.2% (2019: 5.1% t0 5.9%) FENT51%E62% (ZF— NF:

51% % 5.9%) o
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE—_T-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE

27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (ASSETS)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and
movements thereon during the year:

27.

ELEHIBEEE (BE)

UTRFABRRNEZELHBAR
(BE)LEZS:

Accelerated  Pre-operating

fax expenses
depreciation written off Total

INEBW  MEEE R
e Fix BET
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTIT ARETT ARETT

At1January 2019 RZZE—-—hF—H—H 26,225 (5,740) 20,485
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (Note 13)  (F+ A) 0Bk B 25 (MH5E13) (193) 1,091 898
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NAF+ZA=+—H 26,032 (4,649) 21,383
(Credit) charge to profit or loss (Note 13)  (F+ A) 0Bk B 25 (M1 5E13) (213) 775 562
At 31 December 2020 R_ZB_TF+-_H=+—H 25,819 (3,874) 21,945

At 31 December 2020, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
RMB254,047,000 (2019: RMB159,595,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of such tax losses.
The unused tax losses can be carried forward up to five years from 2022 to
2025 (2019: 2021 to 2024), to offset future taxable profits.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has deductible temporary difference
for pre-operating expenses written off amounted to approximately
RMB15,496,000 (2019: RMB18,596,000). A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such deductible temporary difference of
RMB15,496,000 (2019: RMB18,596,000) at the end of the reporting period.
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28.

29.

30.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-FT-TE+-A=t-BL5E
SHARE CAPITAL 28. RN
Number of
domestic Number of
shares H shares  Share capital
RNEREE HIREE [N
‘000 ‘000 RMB'000
F % TR AR%®TFTT
At1January 2019, 31 December 2019 MR =Z—AF—H—H
and 31 December 2020 —jli‘i‘ —“A=1+—HRK
T-EF+_RA=+—H 250,000 84,394 334,394
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 29. FEFBRERSH
During the year ended 31 December 2020, acquisition of property, plant HE-_Z_ZTF+_A=T—HItF
and equipment was settled by utilising deposits paid for acquisition of E ﬁ%%% WEREEDRERN
property, plant and equipment of RMB52,244,000 (2019: RMB48,056,000) N EME  BEREHEAZIHR
during the year. & A ANRM522440005C (ZZF— A1
F: AR¥48,056,0007T) 4 H -
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered into new BHE_Z-_ETHFT_A=T—HL
lease agreements for the use of leased properties for period ranging FE -AEETIHEERZ  WUE
from 3 to 7 (2019: 2 to 6) years. On the lease commencement, the Group RHEEME BN ?3§7¢ (=%
approximately recognised RMB8,297,000 (2019: RMB8,427,000) of right-of- —NE:2Z6%F) REERBK -
use assets and lease liabilities. AEBBERTAREERAESRD
AR#8,297,000C (ZE—NF: A
[ 8,427,000 7T) °
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. AREE

The Group is involved as defendants in certain medical disputes arising
from its normal business operations. Except for those disputes with
provision made as disclosed in Note 23, the management of the Group
believes that the final result of other medical disputes with total claims of
RMB6,792,000 (2019: RMB5,789,000) as at 31 December 2020 will not have
a material impact on the financial position or operations of the Group and
the amount of outflow, if any, cannot be determined with sufficient reliability
prior to judicial appraisals. Accordingly, no provision is made in this regard.

AEBEBWEESNE —MEKE
BHREEANE TEBEUD - BRIFTE23
T ERLFAUMERNBEN K
SEERENRER-Z-ZF+=A
—+—H B RAR6792,000T (=
T—NF: AR5,789,0007T) B9 E
HEFUDHERERBETISHAE
EH B aBERERNTE
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e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

31.  OPERATING LEASES
The Group as lessor

Fixed operating lease income earned during the year was as follows:

31.

KEMHE

AEBER/HEA

FRARBMBEELEHERANT

2020 2019

ZEIERF —ET-NF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARBT T AREBT T

Fixed operating lease income B E 2 HERA 5,426 6,235
Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: HEBBARBFAESROT

2020 2019

—ECEF —E-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBT T

Within one year —FR 32 17

In the second o third year inclusive F_FEFE=F(RREEEMFE) 53 -

85 17

The leases of the properties with committed tenants are negotiated for

terms ranging from one year to three years.

HAHEMAFPRINMEBOLHE -

HERIFEIF -

32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32. BEAREIE
2020 2019
—BIERF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBEFTT
Capital expenditure in respect of property, RERE M BmERTEETL
plant and equipment contracted for but BERBHEOYE  BER
not provided in the consolidated BRENERRAE

financial statements 255,496 311,631
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33.

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates the MPF Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees. For certain employees, the maximum monthly contribution is
limited to HK$1,500 per employee.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the PRC government.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll
costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to
make the specified contributions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to the
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, bank loans and
lease liabilities disclosed in Notes 24, 25 and 26 respectively, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendation of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

33.

34.

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

35. €@tT A

(a)  Categories of financial instruments () ST ANER
2020 2019
—E-EH —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets cREE
Financial assets at FVTPL EAFEABGNEREE 467,663 477,150
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEHKN AT ENEREE 406,973 547,734
Financial liabilities SRAE
Amortised cost BER AN 592,819 695,386
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies bl SREREERFREE

The Group’s major financial instruments include financial assets
at FVTPL, accounts and other receivables, fixed bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, bank balances and cash, accounts and
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, bank loans and lease liabilities. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(i

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow inferest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and bank loan due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The Group is
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-
rate fixed bank deposits, restricted bank balances, fixed-
rate bank loan and lease liabilities. The Group currently does
not have a policy on hedging of interest rate risks. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposures and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the need
arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b}  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i

Market risk (Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Contd)

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk on financial liabilities
is detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of benchmark interest rate for loan offered by
the People’s Bank of China arising from the bank loan.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for bank loan and bank
balances. The analyses were prepared assuming these
balances outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year.

50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) increase represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The management does not anticipate a
decrease in interest rate for bank loan and bank balances
in the next financial year having regard to the trends in
benchmark interest rate for the loan offered by the People’s
Bank of China and global economic environment. Accordingly,
sensitivity analysis on a decrease in interest rates is not
presented.

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLEE

3. eI A #®)

b) SRERERBERERE)

(i

miISE L (&)
FEm ez ()

AEBEAZNEREEN
R B B AP FE R B
ETRBEE -—®-A%
BERETREMNERERER
SRR BEIRTERSIED
PEARBITRHENER
BN KHRE o

X2 GREE DM TIIRIE
RITERRRITERON
REMEE &I
SRR BEMRZFR
BEGHRINBFREER
Ik

S50MEEE (ZF—N4F : 50
EEE) MR s ERE S
PH & & 32 1) A BE B B Y
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i)

Market risk (Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Contd)

If interest rates on bank loan and bank balances had been
50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher and all other
variables were held constant, the potential effect on loss/profit
for the year:

3. eI A #E)

b) SrRERERBZERBRE)

(i

miZRE (&)
FI K& (42)

fidl $R 1T & R M R 1T AR Y
MEEFTS0OMER (ZF
—NF : S0BEE) KA
HBHERETE  HF
NER,aFEEYE
AN RAR -

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Decrease in loss (2019: increase in profit)  FEREBER D (ZZT— I :
for the year i FJ 38 Hn) (110) 273
Foreign currency risk S EE J7 B2

The Group’s exposure to currency risk aftributable to monetary
assets and liabilities (bank balances and cash, other
receivables and other payables), which are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to
which they related. The Group considers its foreign currency
exposure is mainly arising from the exposure of RMB against
HKS.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b}  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(i

Market risk (Contd)
Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31
December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

HEZ

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
ZoTE+-A=+—ALEFE

3. eI A #®)

b) SRERERBERERE)

(i

miISE L (&)

ShEE R 2 (4B

RZFEZTEFR=_FT—N
F+-_A=+—H &&
BIANNETENEEKEE

MEBEREENT
Assets Liabilities
&= =K
2020 2019 2020 2019
—EEF —NF ZZEZEF ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFRT AREBFRT AREBTRT ARETT
HK$ BT 76,650 80,034 - 1,469

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if HK$ had strengthened/weakened
against RMB by 5% (2019: 5%) with all other variables
held constant, loss for the year would be lower/higher by
approximately RMB3,197,000 (2019: profit for the year would
have been higher/lower approximately RMB3,268,000) mainly
as a result of increase/decrease in net foreign exchange gains
on franslation of bank balances and cash, other receivables
and other payables denominated in non-functional currencies
of the relevant group entities.
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HERERETE  FRAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-Z-ZF+-_A=1T—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(ii)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through portfolio
investment fund classified as financial assets at FVTPL.

For investment in portfolio investment fund, the composition
of the underlying investment mainly consists of listed equity
securities, the management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.
The Group has designated a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s post-tax loss for the year would
decrease/increase by RMB6,766,000 (2019: profit would
increase/decrease by RMB7,715,000] if the price of the portfolio
investment fund had been 10% higher/lower.

The management considered the remaining balance of
financial assets at FVTPL, representing structured bank
deposits, is not subjected to material price risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b}  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Accounts receivables

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of these assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group.

The Group collectively assessed the lifetime ECL based on
internal credit rating for account receivables other than the PRC
government's social insurance schemes of RMB161,289,000
(2019: RMB200,426,000) with allowance for credit loss of
RMB48,000 (2019: RMB80,000) and certain credit-impaired
debtors of RMB6,778,000 (2019: RMB8,038,000) which are
assessed individually as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. The
Group’s internal credit rating for non credit-impaired accounts
receivables comprises the following categories:

Low: The customers have a low risk of default and do
not have any past-due amounts

Medium: The customers have a normal risk of default
and regularly repay on time

High: The customers frequently repay but usually

settle after due date

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statem
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

ents

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd) 3. eI A #E)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
[iil  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd))
Accounts receivables (Cont'd)
The following table provides information about the exposure to
credit risk for account receivables which are assessed based

on internal credit rating as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
within lifetime ECL (nof credit-impaired).

b) SrRERERBZERBRE)

(iii)

EER R KR ER G (&)
JEY AR5 (48)

TREHEBENR-_FT=F
Fh-_Z-NhE+_-A
=t+t—HEXHEHEE
BB GEEERIE) ARE
MEBEE SRR
R EERRIOER -

2020 2019

e i
Gross Gross
Average carrying Average carrying
Internal credit rating loss rate amount loss rate amount
REEEER FHEBEE REAE FHOEBEX FRERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFTT
Low & 0.03% 18,353 0.04% 12,973
Normal —f& 1.90% 12,287 2.32% 48,502
High = 4.59% 13,693 13.09% 3,989
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R M

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

H=E

3. eI A #®)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
ZECEFFTA=+t—HIEFE

(b)  Financial risk management obijectives and policies (Contad) bl ErRbERERBRREEE)
il Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd) i) EERBREREFTSE)
Accounts receivables (Contd) JEY AR (4B)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TR BARE B EER
has been recognised for account receivables under the JE U AR 3R Eﬁ%ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ,;
simplified approach. EER B -
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired)
2 HITEH 2 HITEH
FEE1E FEFE Total
GEEERE) (SERE) #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFTT ARETFT
As at 1January 2019 i —ni—ﬂ —A - 9,573 9,573
Changes due to financial ARZZE—-—hF—H—H
instruments recognised R T AMEEN
as at 1January 2019: e -
— Loss allowance recognised —EHRRBERE 1,731 (1,135) 596
— Write-off — 58 - (400) (400)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—N%F
+=ZA=+—H 1,731 8,038 9,769
Changes due to financial AR_—_Z_TF—H—H
instruments recognised as BReMTAMEED
at 1January 2020: 23
— Loss allowance recognised —BHEREEREE 595 1,157 1,752
— Loss allowance reversed — BB E e G (1,410) (2,189) (3,599)
— Write-off — 58 - (228) (228)
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZZB_TF
+=-A=+—H 916 6,778 7,694

ERFESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE—

ToTE+-A=t-BULFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)
Accounts receivables (Cont'd)
Movement in the allowance for credit loss (Contd)

As at 31 December 2020, the allowance for credit loss
represents lifetime ECL recognised on non credit-impaired
and credit-impaired accounts receivables with gross
aggregated balance of RMB916,000 (2019: RMB1,731,000)
and RMB6,778,000 (2019: RMB8,038,000) respectively. The
Group does not hold collateral over all accounts receivables.
For credit-impaired accounts receivables, the management
considered these outstanding balances were uncollectible.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised loss allowance for accounts receivables with
aggregated balance of RMB1,750,000 (2019: RMB596,000)
and reversed loss allowance for accounts receivables with
aggregated balance of RMB3,599,000 (2019: HK$Nil).

No loss allowance is recognised for the remaining accounts
receivables since the probability of default is not significantly
increased based on historical credit loss experience. The
management has also assessed all available forward-looking
information, and concluded that there is no significant increase
in credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b}  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)

(iii)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Cont'd)
Accounts receivables (Contd)
Movement in the allowance for credit loss (Contd)

In order to minimise the credit risk, management of the
Company has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures over the customers to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of each year to ensure that adequate loss allowance is
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 78.8% (2019:
78.6%) and 86.7% (2019: 83.7%) of the total accounts
receivables was due from the Group’s largest accounts
receivable and the five largest accounts receivables,
respectively.

Other receivables

No allowance for impairment was made for other receivables,
mainly including refundable rental deposits, security deposits
and payments on behalf of employees, of RMB15,817,000 (2019:
RMB19,355,000) since the directors of the Company consider
the probability of default is minimal after assessing the counter-
parties’ financial background and creditability.

e ISR AR MY RE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_ZT-_ZTF+_A=+—HLEE

3. eI A #®)

b) SRERERBERERE)

(iii)

EE R MR ERHE (&)
JEH IR ()
EEEERENED (&)

REMERESERR
ARREEEERIK—E
EFREBEERHEEFH
FEELER EFEEHIE
B 1R AR o REAR SRR
B RS ER - it
Sh - REERE F R
E BRI (E 5 H AT UL B £ 58
FE AR b 1 AT U [B] & B8 E
RHEEBE - BRI S
ARBEEFARAEEN
EERERD KIERD o

AEENEERBRERE
B788% (ZFE— L F:
78.6% ) + FE UK BR BN AB FE A9
86.7% (—ZE— L4 : 83.7%)
DRI B A E B & AHE
U BR X N LA PR URBR 3K »

Lt e R

MR AR ESTETHR
SEHFNTHESRAIE
ErRBEHNBERBE
A 4 L Ath R U 3R0E (E
TEFEAERMEERS
RESEREEREHED
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (Contd)
[iil  Credit risk and impairment assessment (Contd))

Fixed bank deposits/restricted bank balances/bank balances/

interest receivables

The credit risk on fixed bank deposits, restricted bank balances,
bank balances and interest receivables are limited because
the majority of the counter-parties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The
Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk.

liv)  Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the management, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the
Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate reserves, banking facilities and borrowing facilities,
by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that the undiscounted amount is derived from interest

rate at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

3. eI A #®)

Financial risk management obijectives and policies (Contd) bl ErRbERERBRREEE)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Contd) ivi REBESRER (&)
Liquidity tables B EZH
Weighted On
average  demand or Total
effective  lessthan undiscounted
inferestrate ~ Tmonth -3 3months cashflows — Carrying
WEFY  BERY monhs  folyer  TSyears  SSyears AKEEE  amount
BRRE  SWMEA  1Z23EF EREIE 1258 RBSE  R28E HE
% RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
% ARETR ARETL ARBTT ARETH ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2020 R-BZEE
tZh=+-H
Accounts and other payables BB R 2 {1 EFFUR - 316,133 - - - - 316,133 316,133
Amounts due fo non-confroling 4% B 2 @180
shareholders of subsidiaries ~ FEERIRRFE - 18,856 - - - - 18,856 18,856
Bankloans RITER 6.01 1,098 4,748 18695 155238 196736 376515 257,830
Sub-fotal g 336,087 4,748 18,695 155,238 196,736 7,504 592,819
Lease fiabilfies HERR 574 3,609 7193 2916 194354 6796 240868 207993
339,696 11,941 47,611 349,592 203,532 952,372 800,812
At 31 December 2019 RZE-1%
tZB=1-A
Accounts and oher payables RS MER T - 340079 - - - - Moy 34019
Amount duefo a non-controlling [ ff — B B2 Al —%
shareholder of asubsidiory — FEERRR R - 13885 - - - - 13854 138854
Bank loans RITEH Al 574 3,840 13,173 106,697 174,294 298,578 216,253
Sub-fotal It 9707 3,840 B3 106697 494 T 695386
Lease liabilfies HEER 575 3,249 6498 28864 696 528 T 226178
482,956 10,338 42,037 283,633 230522 1,049,486 921,564
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 35. EMIT A #®)
() Fairvalue d AFE
Other than the financial assets carried at fair value as detailed in BT &RAFIMIR AT ESRO®
the following table, the directors of the Company consider that the MEEN ARFESERR K
carrying amounts of other financial instruments that are recorded at B ARNGEE M BEmRP AR
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate MEMSRTAMNKEERER
their fair values. FERS -
Fair values Fair values
as at asat
31 December 31 December
2020 2019 Valuation techniques
R-ZE-ZF RZIE-NF Fairvalue  and key inputs
+ZA=+-H +t-A=+—-H hierarchy  ERHGR
Financial assefs tREE HOFE 00 FE ATEREE IERAHE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT
Portfolio investment fund KEHEES 67,663 77,150 level2  Quoted price froma
B4 financial insfitution
WMERE SRR
Structured bank deposits EEMIRITER 400,000 400,000 level2  Quoted price from a

There was no transfer between Level 2 and other Levels in both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

36. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING 36. MEEBEENEEHER
ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from TRAMAEEREIHELENER
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities 28 0EReMIIFASEH -HE
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or EHEANABERAEESMELARKR
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of eMEBEALSENGEREERER
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. FHREABREZDRERENAE -
Amounts Paycble of
dueto bank loan
non-controlling arrangement
shareholders Amount fee and
of subsidicries dueto interest
EAHE  ashoreholder Diidend ~ EEfTETER lease
13l Eff-% Bankloans payable RHER liabilfies Total
FERRRE hR#E RITER EfRE RAE HERR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR
Note 24) Note 25] Nofe 14) (Note 26]
(Fisk24) (H3£25) (k) (Fi3k20)
A Jonuary 2019 R-E-15-A-A 191204 682 - - - 239724 360
Financing cash flows (note) BERSRE (M) 7650 (682) 220,690 153,363) (3,874 135,316) 135,05
Non-cash changes HHEE
New leases enfered BEUMEE - - - - - 8427 8427
Inferest expenses HERR - - 843 - 4,544 13,343 18,730
Dividend recognised BRTARE - - - 53,363 - - 53,363
Recogniion on payables of BRARTERZHERNE
bank loon arrangement fee e - - (5,280] - 5,280 - -
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-h&
T-A=+-H 138,854 - 216,253 - 5,950 206,178 587,235
Financing cash flows (note) HEReRE () (19,998) - 4,749 - 20991) (38975) (138,25
Non-cash changes #E2EE
Newleases enfered BiUHEE - - - = = 8,297 8,297
Inferest expenses HERR - - 2508 - 12,804 12,493 27805
Recognifion on payables on ARTERRHERNE
bank loon arrangement fee e - - (2,700] - 2700 5 5
At 31 December 2020 i e 3.3
toRz4-A 16,856 - 5780 - 1 207993 18542

Note: The cash flows from amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries and bank loans make up the net amount of proceeds and

repayments in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

BEE : B A B B8 & B & FE 4 AR AR SR SR IA K
RITEFNREREBNGEARSE
MERNAERBNESFE -
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 37. BB IE
In addition to the amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of BR B 5T 24 FE ST B /B 2 B ) FEIE AR AR R
subsidiaries in Note 24, and transactions, balances and commitments I LA R 47 & B 75 ¥R 3% L fh & & BT B
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the Group BEHR S R RAEAEN REEE
had entered into the following related party balances/transactions: EIMUA TS &8RS

As at/ As at/

For the For the

year ended year ended

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

RZEZEF RIT-NF

+=A +=A

Nature of balances/ =+-8/ =t+—-8/

Name of related companies Relationship transactions HBZEZH HE%ZH

BB ARAE B #eh/ RHME LHEE HEE

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETTT

Kanghua Group Shareholder Addition of right-of-use assefs
FRES [ recognised
NECHREREEE - 154,323
Interest expenses on lease liabilities
HEBEZFBERX 9,621 10,672
Lease liabilities
HERE 155,904 175,739
Lease payment
HE R 35,702 33,306
Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Non-controlling Addition of right-of-use assets
Co., ltd. shareholder of recognised
REMBEANEEBRAR Renkang Hospital RECHEREREEE - 28,246
CREPAIEITRALE  Interest expenses on lease liabilities
HERGBZNBMAX 1,844 2,045
Lease liabilities
HEBE 29,875 33,675
Lease payment
HEMK 5,967 5,578
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Contad)

Save as disclosed in Note 25, in addition to the guarantee and securities
provided by the Group to the relevant bank, the non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary also provided guarantee and had pledged its equity shares
to secure some of the bank loans of the Group. At the end of the reporting
period, the key terms and securities pledged are set out as follows:

() financial guarantee of a maximum amount of RMB500,000,000 (2019:
RMB500,000,000); and

(il  pledged of the equity shares of Kangxin Hospital owned by the
Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel includes directors and supervisors. The
remuneration of the key management personnel during the year is
disclosed in Note 11. The remuneration of directors and supervisors
is determined by the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

37.

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

BARE S B (40

BREIsE2S AT EE N BRAKE A
BIRITIREOERXESHN - —EH
BAGHIEEBRBERTREERLE
WIMERE  UARNEENIORIT
EFREER RB{EHER 2K
REBRWESNAT
il &= AR# 500,000,000 (—F
— N : AR # 500,000,000 7T)
MEBER: &

i) EFARREEANF O BLAE o

TEEEABHM

TEEHERRESREE -RAF
BT EEEE M MEENNE
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

38. AN BB AR SR R

2020 2019
—E-FF —EFNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETTT

Non-current assets IREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries "ERHE A A 770,746 769,246
Fixed bank deposit TE BRIRTT 3N = 33,000
770,746 802,246

Current assets RENEE
Other receivables H b e U Fx T8 1,167 66,185
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEFABENESREE 400,000 400,000
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U — eI B B A B 5k 131,089 55,715
Restricted bank balances ZERHIIRTT S8R 43 1,265
Bank balances and cash WITEHR LIRS 30,257 15,374
562,556 538,539
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables and accruals HEMEAFIERERTEA 3,127 3,016
Amount due fo a subsidiary FEAF — P B A B8 162,212 163,121
165,339 166,137
Net current assets RBEEFE 397,217 372,402
Net assets EEFE 1,167,963 1,174,648

Capital and reserves EXKFEE
Share capital TN 334,394 334,394
Reserves B 833,569 840,254
Total equity R4 1,167,963 1,174,648
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HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (contd)  38. ZS/A B Y B & AR R 3k (&)
Movements in reserves: EHEE
Share Capital Statutory Retfained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
AR ME EXRGE EERE REEA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETRT AR%Tr ARETR
[note (i) (note (ii)
(B =) (B = (i)
At January 2019 R_E—hF—H—
H 698,214 53,394 17,097 64,173 832,878
Profit and total comprehensive 4 13 F1) & 2 T WA
income for the year 1 EE - - - 60,739 60,739
Dividend &% 2 - - - (53,363) (53,363)
Appropriation fo reserve RS - - 6,074 (6,074) -
At 31 December 2019 —NF+-A
=+—AH 698,214 53,394 23171 65,475 840,254
Loss and total comprehensive & &S 18 & 2 X2
expense for the year FEE - - - (6,685) 6,685)
At 31 December 2020 R_ZE_ZF+_A
=+—H 698,214 53,394 23171 58,790 833,569
Notes: Btz -

(i)

(ii)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the different between the net asset
value of the subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
which were issued as consideration for the subsidiaries at the time of the
group reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares.

According to the relevant laws in the PRC, the Company which was
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a
non-distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to owners. Such reserve fund can be used to offset
the previous years’ losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon
liquidation.

(i)

(ii)

Zﬁ‘ilﬂﬁﬁﬁifﬁﬁ?aﬁﬁ%@jﬁ’]ﬁ
EFERERASEEARBRN L

i 17 5 @iﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘ém’ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%
AREBHARARRRMDEEZ HOEE -

REBEHEBEEER RHPBEKID
KRB AR EEHERERR
1% AR 2= 4210% DI AN B] 99 IR 7
BE BEEREEREIEMAELRD
50% ° IR FEA A9 K% S Al 78 4 A
BEEES B ANEHES
EFEEEMA)  BRIFER T8
A DK
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 39. BARER
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 ARARZZEZTEFR_FT—NHF
are as follows: TZA=ZT—BANMEBRARERNT
(a)  General information of subsidiaries @ MBATN—KRER
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
esfablishment/ paid share capital/
operations registered/paid up capital Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary AL/ HL/ BRARAR inferest fo the Group Principal aciifies
KEARLH SEHERAH R /it EfER AREERE IERHK
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZEZER “E-0E  ZEIRE ZE-pf
Directly held
EERE
Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co, Lid. ~ The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Operafing of hospital
15 Septernber 2005 paid up capital paid up capital
RIMB350,000,000 RMB350,000,000
REREERARLA hE AMRES AMRES Beghk
“ZRREAATERA FUIN EXARE
350,000,0007¢ 350,0000007
Renkang Hospitcl The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Operaing of hospital
23 August 2005 paid up capital paid up captal
RMBS0,000,000 RMBA0,000,000
CE2ER hE AfRES it R ES BEgR
“ZEREN\AZT=R ERARY ERARS
60,000,000 70 60,000,000
Kangxin Hospital The PRC Registered and Registered and 60% 60%  Operafing of hospital
10 June 2014 paid up capital paid up capital
RMB270,000,000 RIMB270,000,000
ROBR i AMRES AfMRES megh
ZT-MERATH ERARR ERARE
270,000,000 70 270,000,007
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Provision of hospital
Management Ca,, Lid. 1February 2016 paid up capital paid up captal management services
RMBI1,000,000 RMBI1,000,000
REREBRERARLA hE ARRES AMRES REERERRH
“2-75ZA-B ERARY ERARY
11,000,000 70 11,000,000 7
Kanghua Heafthcare Management Hong Kong Ordinary shares Ordinary shares 100% 100%  Provision of management
[HK) Company Limited 17 May 2016 HKS10,000 HKS10,000 services
RESRER(FR)RRAT B LER ik RUEERH
ZB-RERATHH 10000787 10000757
Dongguan Kanghua Pharmaceuficl  The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Sale of pharmaceufical products
Co, ltd. 14 April 2017 paid up capital paid up captal
RIMBS,000,000 RIMBS,000,000
RRTRERERRAT T AMRES AMRES HEREER
“T-tEMATEA EXARY LN
5,000,007 50000007t



(a)  General information of subsidiaries (Contd)
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)
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2 N =|

PR R AR AL

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

39. MBRAIER (&)

(@ FMEBRARN—RER &)

Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
esfablishment/ paid share capital/
operaions registered/paid up capital Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary AL/ ML/ REGIE inferest fo the Group Principal actifies
KEARLH EEWARAH B/t EHER AREEERE IB%%
2020 2019 2020 2019
i i L o i i
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC Registered capital ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Inacfive
Industry Investment Fund Co, Lid. 15 June 2017 RMBI00,000,000/  RMBI00,000,000/
paid up capital paid up captal
RMB200,000 RMB200,000
REREBRERREES il aAftEsARSE  HfERARY LEEY
BRAE ZE-tERATHA 100,000,007,/ 100,000,007/
BAERARE  THEALARK
200,0007¢ 200,007
Dongguan Kanghua Elderly Care The PRC Registered capital ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
Senvices Management Co,, Lid. 9 August 2017 RMB10,000,000/ RMB10,000,000/
paid up capital paid up captal
RIMBS,500,000 RMBS,000,000
REFEELRBERARDE  4E aAftEsARSE  HfEFARY REBR
“E-LE\AAA 1000000075/ 10,000,007/
BAERARE  EHEALARK
5,500,000 70 50000007
Dongguan Kanghua Medical The PRC Registered and Registered and 100% 100%  Investment holding
Rehabilitation Investment Co,, Ltd. 16 January 2018 paid up capital paid up capital
RMB80,000,000 RMB80,000,000
RERERGERREARDA  1H AMRES ifRES REBR
ZE-\E-Rt5H BRARY ERARE
80,000,007 80,000,000
Dongguan Kangrui Medical The PRC Registered capital ~ Registered capital 90% 90%  Inactive
Investment Co,, Lid. 20 June 2019 RIMB10,000,000/ RMB10,000,000/
paid up capital paid up capital
RMB500,000 RMB500,000
RETRRERREBRAT hEl AMEAARSE  EHERARN HEE 3
“E-NERRCTE 100000007/ 100000007/
BASAARE  ZHERARE
500,0007 5000007
Kanghua Infernational Hospital Co, ~ The PRC Registered capital ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Inaciive
lfd. 2 August 2019 RMB100,000,000/ RMB100,000,000/
paid up capital paid up capital
RMBnil RMBil
REARERARAT hEl AMEAARSE  EHERARN EEXH
“E-NENAZH 1000000007,/ 100,000,007/
B4ErE EYERE
Dongguan Kanghua Healthcare The PRC Registered N/A 100% N/A Investment/Property holding
Investment Co,, Ltd. 7 August 2020 and paid up capital
RIMB1,000,000
RERERERERRAT al5s AMREHER R TER  RE/NEER
“E_EEN\ALA ARH1,0000007
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

39. MBRAIER (&)

General information of subsidiaries (Contd) (@ BRI —RER (&)
Place and date of
incorporation/ Issued and fully
esfablishment/ paid share capital/
operations registered/paid up capital Attributable equity
Name of subsidiary HMRL/ AL/ REGIE inferest fo the Group Principal actifies
KEARLH SEBIREH R/ EfER AREEERE IB%%
2020 2019 2020 2019
e i L i
Indlrecty held
FERE
Hefei Xingu Medical Rehabilfation The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Provision of rehabilitafion and
Investment Co,, Lid. 22 October 2014 paid up capital paid up captal other healthcare services
RIMB1,000,000 RIMB1,000,000
AEEAREERREARNR  1H AMRES it RES REFEREHEERE
“2-mETAZTZA ERARR ERARY
1,000,007 1,000,007
AnhuiHualin The PRC Registered and Registered and 57% 57%  Invesiment holding/provision
19 December 2016 paid up capital paid up captal of rehabilfation and other
RMB23,390,000 RMB23,390,000 healthcare services
REER b ARRES HMRES RERR/RERER
Z2-RETZATAR ERARY LN EBRRHE
23,390,00070 233900007
Dongguan Renkang Nursing Services  The PRC Registeredond ~ Registered capital 57% 100%  Provision of elderly heatheare
Co, fd. (Renkang Nursing 27 September 2017 paid up capital RMBS,000,000/ senices
Senvices') formerly known s RMBS,000,000 paid up captal
Dongguan Renkang Elcerly Care RVB2,000,000
Services Co, Lid *
FLREERARLA(CRE WE AMRES  GRELARY RUBZRERH
Bh)) (MaRRECRRER —T-LEAACTLA BRARR 50000007/
BERAR) 50000000 EMERARE
20000007t
Dongguan Kanghua Jiankanggu The PRC Registered capital ~ Registered capital 100% 100%  Inactive
Investment Development Co. Lid. 7Noverber 2017 RMBS,000,000/ RMBS,000,000/
(formerly known as Dongguan paid up capital paid up captal
Kanghua Elderly Care Senvices Co, RMB200,000 RMB200,000
Lid)
RERERFARALR hEl affEAARE  EMETARY 82
BRDA(HARRERE “EtEt-AtB 500000/ 50000007/
EZRBARAR) BRERARE  ZHELARK
200,0007 200,007
* During the year ended 31 December 2020, Renkang Hospital acquired * HE-T-_TF+-_A=+—

100% equity inferest in Renkang Nursing Services, as a result, there is
deemed disposal of equity interest to the non-controlling shareholder

of Renkang Hospital.

266 Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. Annual Report 2020

BUEEE CEBREBCE
IR 100% A4 - ER A
ERHE TR BT AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(a)

(b)

e B R R MY EE
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

39. B ABER (&)

General information of subsidiaries (Contd) (@ MEBAFKN—RER#E)
Except for Kanghua Healthcare Management (HK) Company Limited, KRREEBRER(HE)BRAT
all other subsidiaries are wholly-domestic owned enterprise with Sh - FREEMME QB ARA
limited liability established in the PRC. BRI ERETHRRNLEDLE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of MEMR B AR RN ERSEITEM
the year. BEES -
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material b) HEBARFERERAED
non-controlling interests BWEBARINFE
The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of TRERAEENRERRESR
the Group that have material non-controlling interests at the end of BARFEBRERANEZENBA
the reporting period: AIMEFIS ¢
Place of
incorporation Proportion of ownership
and principal and voting rights held by Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary place of business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
FMRL FERER PREFERER
MEAREHE REIZLEHY BEERRERELA wissl (E8) ZHEERER
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“E-RF -4 ZEZRF —Z-n4 ZEIRE Eq%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR ARET:
Renkang Hospital and its subsidiary,
Renkang Nursing Services
[2019: Renkang Hospital) The PRC 43% 43% 4,532 5876 33,408 30,353
CRERRENERR
CRERR
(Z2-0F CRER) HEl
Anhui Hualin Group The PRC 43% 43% 4,635 1,885 20,316 15,681
ZPEREE i
Kangxin Hospital The PRC 40% 40% (33,851) (29,567) 21,198 55,049
B ER e
Other non-wholly owned subsidiary with
immaterial non-controlling inferests - - - - 50 50
BETERFERERNAMES
ERBARF
(24,684) (25,576) 74,972 101,133
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 39. B ABER (&)
(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material b) HEBBRFZERERNIEE

non-controlling interests (Contd)

Summarised financial information in respect of Renkang Hospital and
its subsidiary, Renkang Nursing Services (2019: Renkang Hospital)
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

BB R H 15 (E)

BRBAEAFERESNTR
Bl M H B AR REER (=
E-NF CRER)NUBEE
KB EHIT - ATHMBER
MBREEEARRHEYHEANES
LR

2020 2019
—E-BE  —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT

Current assets mENE E 73,214 65,040
Non-current assets FERBEE 149,016 151,979
Current liabilities mENaE (115,662) (116,194)
Non-current liabilities Emenai (25,443) (30,236)
Equity aftributable to owners of

the Company NAFIHE NELER 46,240 40,236
Non-controlling inferests of CERERIEERER

Renkang Hospital 34,885 30,353
Adjustment arising from change in EAREEHEEESH AR

Group's ownership accounted for FIRBEREMES

as deemed disposal SRk (1,477) -
Adjusted non-controlling interests of

Renkang Hospital KRR R A IEE R S 33,408 30,353
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39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests (Contd)

(b)

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

39. MELARER (&)

BREB R EENIES
BB~ R RS IE ()

2020 2019
SE B
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBETT ARETT

Revenue W g 226,192 238,407
Other income Hap g A 1,801 857
Total expenses B (217,457) (225,600
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMEE2EBPALLRE

for the year 10,536 13,664
Profit and total comprehensive income AT B IBEEF s &

for the year attributable to: ZHEHAELE -

- owners of the Company o /NEIE/ FS PN 6,004 7,788

— non-controlling interests — eV AR 4,532 5,876

10,536 13,664

Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEBMEFRETA 48,130 25,895
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEEEFRERE (18,100) (6,795)
Net cash outflow from financing activities BMEFEBAEFRESRD (7,272) (24,488)
Net cash inflow (outflow) FRRAORL) 22,758 (5,388)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 39. MIBARER (#)

(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests (Contd)

Summarised financial information in respect of Anhui Hualin Group
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

(b)

HABARFEREDZNIFE
BB R H 15 (E)

BRABEAEAGFERESMN TR
BEREEOMEERBZET 0
T RATHMBEMBEREER
AR HRI A S HE o

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF T ARETT

Current assets MEEE 50,771 40,246
Non-current assets FERBEE 41,879 39,779
Current liabilities mEi AR (26,315) (29,513)
Non-current liabilities EMEBAE (19,088) (14,044)
Equity attributable to owners NATHEB ANEEER

of the Company 26,931 20,787
Non-controlling interests of Anhui TR R IR E S

Hualin Group 20,316 15,681
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

e R RAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

39. MELARER (&)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material

non-controlling interests (Contd)

BREB R EENIES
BB~ R RS IE ()

2020 2019
—E-EF —ET-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARBTT
Revenue W g 100,411 87,115
Other income Hup g A 2,117 833
Total expenses B (91,749) (92,333)
Profit (loss) and fotal comprehensive income 48 A% | (E518) & 2 E WA
(expense) for the year (FRx)#mss 10,779 (4,385)
Profit (loss) and total comprehensive income LA T~ %18 i 1 4 (R 1) (J&18)
(expense) for the year attributable to: RemBA (RAX) 8% :
- owners of the Company o /NEIE/ FS PN 6,144 (2,500)
— non-controlling interests — AR s 4,635 (1,885)
10,779 (4,385)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating LETEBRER S
activities mA G d) 19,584 (1,587)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEESAEFREME (on) (2,796)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing BEESEFRS
activities Om D) A (14,427) 7,725
Net cash inflow FIR M 4,246 3,342
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE-—T-_ZF+_F=1+—HILEE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)  Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests (Contd)

Summarised financial information in respect of Kangxin Hospital
that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before
intragroup eliminations.

39. MEARER (&)

(b)

HABARFEREDZNIFE
BB R H 15 (E)

BRAEA EAFFEBRAE S AL
B BERBEZEHIOT -
UTHBERNRZREEEARF

P RIS EE -
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AREF T ARETT

Current assets mENEE 17,840 30,798
Non-current assefs JERBEE 600,132 556,728
Current liabilities mENBE (289,604) (215,387)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (275,372) (234,516)
Equity attributable to owners of NATHEB ANEEER

the Company 31,798 82,574
Non-controlling interests of BR U8 B FE P IR i 2

Kangxin Hospital 21,198 55,049
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_ZFF+-_A=T—HLFE

39. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Contd)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests (Contd)

39. MELARER (&)

bl HEEBAGFERERNIEE
BB~ R RS IE ()

2020 2019
ZEIERF —T-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREET T ARBT T
Revenue W 38,588 54,830
Other income Hup g A 2,131 235
Total expenses B (125,346) (128,981)
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBEEREERASZ A
for the year (84,627) (73,916)
Loss and total comprehensive expense NTEEEGEFAEBER
for the year attributable to: SEMZEE :
- owners of the Company o /NEIE/ FS PN (50,776) (44,349)
— non-controlling interests — AR s (33,851) (29,567)
(84,627) (73,916)
Net cash outflow from operating activities & & EEFTSF R 2 (33,961) (49,206)
Net cash outflow from investing activities REEHMEFRER D (81,352) (102,917)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEFBAEFRERA 107,687 153,370
Net cash (outflow] inflow FIRE ORE) mA (7,626) 1,247
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Financial Summary

B E
For the year ended 31 December
BE+ZA=1+—HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EBIERF —E-hF E-NF T—+F ZT-RF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT ARETT AE®TRT ARETT ARETR
RESULTS o
Revenue Wz 1,745,023 1,955,525 1,639,287 1,389,169 1,240,390
(Loss) profit before taxation BT AT (B51R) & 7 (26,089) 117,485 221,754 218,076 198,473
Income tax expenses g Rif X (23,967) (68,797) (60,482) (56,937) (52,786)
(Loss] profit and total EN(ER) RNRE2E
comprehensive expense) (AX) A EHE
income for the year (50,056) 48,688 161,272 161,139 145,687
Aftributable to: AR A AR
Equity owners of the Company RN A AIEZEA A (25,372) 74,264 167,943 156,592 141,260
Non-controlling interests RS (24,684) (25,576) (6,671) 4,547 4,427
(50,056) 48,688 161,272 161,139 145,687
As at 31 December
Rt=-A=t+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—EBIEF —ZE-NF E-N\F T—+F ZT-RF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT AR®TT ARETT ARETR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEE 2,453,901 2,583,161 2,203,052 1,732,393 1,595,978
Total liabilities BAEE (1,046,399) (1,125,603) (693,578 (442,994) (420,935)
1,407,502 1,457,558 1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043
Equity atfributable fo: WAL REIE#
Equity owners of the Company RN AIEZEA A 1,332,530 1,356,425 1,378,937 1,265,224 155,415
Non-confrolling interests iR 74,972 101,133 130,537 24,175 19,628
1,407,502 1,457,558 1,509,474 1,289,399 1,175,043
Notes: B aE -
) The financial information set out above is prepared in accordance with International (i) B A RHR BB R I S R SRR A -

Financial Reporting Standards.

(i) The financial summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements. (il  MBEALTEKGEE A BREOH M0 -
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Adjusted EBITDA

[ 4% S22 EBITDA

AGM
(A RBF A& ]

Anhui Hualin

[ R BHERR

Anhui Hualin Group

EL G

k)

Articles

[E12]

Audit Committee
[BEZEEE]

Board of Directors or Board

£

CG Code
[{EEEVRFAI]

Company

EAVNCIE

Definitions

B

the earnings before accounting for bank and other interest income, interest expenses,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation, fair value gain/loss and investment income from
financial assets at FVTPL and exchange gain/loss and impairment of goodwiill
BREIRITREMFSHA - FISFHT  BIE - rEREHE  ATERE BREREA
TEFFABRNeREERERARE R KE EEREERERNNZT

the annual general meeting of the Company for the year 2020 to be convened and held on
23 June 2021

ARABER - E-—F A+ =ZAERAABIN S _EFERRBEFAY

Anhui Hualin Medical Investment Co., Ltd. (%2 #{# 78 & B 1% & A IR 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 19 December 2016 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by Dongguan Kanghua Medical Rehabilitation Investment Company Limited (5 52 &
HEEEEEREER AR, awholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and 43% held by
Hefei Haihua Enterprises Management Consulting Partnership (Limited Partnership) (& E
HHEMZEERERE B E(ERE ), anindependent Third Party
ZHERBEREERAT RZE-—ARET AT BEHRBEKIHERDE
HRES A —BEARG2EMBAR (REREREERKRERRAR) KRBT
E=H(EREECEEEANGELE(BRER))FAE57% & 43%

Anhui Hualin together with the entities the results of which are consolidated into its financial
statements
THEREREEAIEMBRERTNER

the articles of association of the Company, as amended, modified or supplemented from
fime fo time

RRABEARFER]  BRRBRHAAER

the audit committee of the Board
EETEEREES

the board of Directors of the Company

ARREEG

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BB LR RIS+ AT E KR EEATRD

Guangdong Kanghua Healthcare Co., Ltd. (& 5 & 2 B & f& 15 B R 2 1), a joint stock
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC, the H Shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock code: 3689)
BEREEBERBRNARAR  —RBBETEDEERINROHEBERAF - HHRNE
BB A AT EAR BT (RR D A5E - 3689)
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Definitions

Controlling Shareholders

[ B R

Director(s)

[E%]

Domestic Sharel(s)
[RE R
Group or we or our

NS AEAE:AEE

H Sharel(s)

[HAR ]

HK$ or Hong Kong dollars
[l

Hong Kong
(&

Hong Kong Listing Rules
(&% FmREl]

Hong Kong Stock Exchange
[ & BB 3P

Huaxin Building

[ZE 02

has the meaning ascribed under the Hong Kong Listing Rules and unless the context
otherwise requires, refers to Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group, Xingye
Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property as a group of Controlling
Shareholders of the Company, and each of them, a “Controlling Shareholder”
EEAELTRAME TRRE  BRIEXEZAME BXBHELE EEERLL
RESE FEESE REKESE TEHRTREEMEER BRI TZRAR -
MRS B R — A FERRR]

the director(s) of the Company

ARABEEHEMN—LES

ordinary sharels) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00
each, which are subscribed for and paid up in RMB and are unlisted Shares which are
currently not listed or fraded on any stock exchange
RARIFETERAEBEAARE1.00 LI IAA RERE AR AHUE R TR -
WA RBEAAREFRMESZ S LETHRZHIE LTS

the Company and its subsidiaries
ZAYNSIDNENiG) = NC]

overseas listed foreign invested ordinary share(s) in the ordinary share capital of the
Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, listed on the Main Board of the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange
AArEBREAPEREEARELO IR/ ETHINE Tk - RN E BB
FHRET

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BEAEENR

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
B EF B R RITTHR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

(BABMARSMBRABFES LMARA)  BARER  BRIAREM T BN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
ERBMARZMBRAT

refers to the complex (2 2,#) at Kanghua Hospital which was commissioned to provide
VIP healthcare services
RERBRELE  BoRKRE‘REFEBERY
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Independent Third Party(ies)

(B E=77]

Kangdi Enterprise

Kanghua Group

[FEEEE]

Kanghua Hospital

[FEEEEL ]

Kanghua Hospital Lease Agreement

[REERBE RS

Kangxin Hospital

[ B0 B8P |

Model Code

igsesray)

Definitions

B

Any entity or person who is not a connected person of our Company within the meaning
ascribed thereto under the Hong Kong Listing Rules

BREFELTRAY BEXEELTRAETFORE  LIEARBMEALHEMR
B AL

Dongguan Kangdi Enterprise Co., Ltd. ((RZE T EE 7 & 2 B R A ), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 25 July 2014 with 50% of its equity interest held by
Mr. Wang Zhengren (£ B 1=) and 50% by Ms. Wang Keying (E 7 &), all of whom are
members of the Wang Family, being cousins of Mr. Wang Junyang. Kangdi Enterprise holds
a 15% equity interest in Renkang Hospital

RETRGEXBERAR — xR ZE-—HF+tA-+THEREFBEKINBEREE
NA EREBRERCEEREAERTRFRS0% REHARTRRENKE K
TELRENERLBER - RHEENC KRB FFE15% 8

Dongguan Kanghua Investment Group Co., Lid. (REEM R ERESBE FR 2 7)),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 29 March 2002 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 59.06% interest in the Company. It is
owned as to 97.46% by Mr. Wang Junyang and as to 2.54% by Ms. Wang Aici. Kanghua
Group, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Xingye Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang
Aigin and Xingda Property are acting together as a group of Controlling Shareholders

EMEREREEBBRAR  — KR EZ_F=-A-+NAEFEKIHER
BEARIKEMER —BERKRER  HEERRARILS9.06% s - ENRBAEESLE
ENFEHL LA 97.46% [ 2.54% - RESE -TEHLLE TERLL HEEE -
RESSESE - TEH R REEYEER —EERKRRE —BITH

Dongguan Kanghua Hospital Co., Ltd. (5 5 5 2 2 Bz B R 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 15 September 2005 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company

REREBRARAF  —ZR_ZEZAFAATHEREFEXNIHNEREEAR -
BAARRARNEZENB AR

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Kanghua Hospital and
Kanghua Group with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of
Kanghua Hospital

HEERBRERERERREBRCERBN LM RREYICHRBRA-E—X
FHA+HENEERR

Chongging Kanghua Zhonglian Cardiovascular Hospital Co., Ltd. (2 B B % 2 B 0 1 &
7R & BT A IR 2 7)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 June 2014 and a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

ERREFBONERBRARAR  R_Z—NFAATHEFRBEKIHNERA
A R—HAARRFINEREMBAT

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules
EELTRAMEETE(ETETAZEFETERXHRESTR]D
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Definitions

Nomination Committee

[REZEE]
Non-Competition Undertaking
(g F A

08&G
(B ERH

PRC or China
[ |

PRC Company Law

[ B REDE]

Prospectus

[ =R

Remuneration Committee

[FZE 2

Renkang Hospital

[ Rz Ebx

Renkang Hospital Lease Agreement
[MCERBEEE =

Reporting Period
[ ¥R HAE

RMB
AR

The nomination committee of the Board

EFEgRE%EYe

the non-competition undertaking dated 11 October 2016 provided by the Controlling
Shareholders in favour of the Company
ERBRRARR AR BZARKNBAR T —RF+ A+ B THEF AR

obstetrics and gynaecology

aEH

the People’s Republic of China
hEE AR HM

the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (#F # A B £ M E 2 717%), as
amended and adopted by the Standing Committee of the Twelfth National People’s
Congress on 28 December 2013 and effective on 1 March 2014, as amended,
supplemented and otherwise modified from time to time

(REARAFMBEARE)  AFT_EB2BRARRKRREEKEZEGN _E—=F
TZAZTNBEFTLBRE BT —MF=A—ARBER  ETRKE] -#rk
WA E At 75 A AE 2R

the prospectus of the Company dated 27 October 2016
ARRBHPA-ZT—REF+A-TLHENERER

the remuneration committee of the Board

EFeVMEES

Dongguan Renkang Hospital Co., Ltd. (R 52{= FE & fx B R 2 &), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 August 2005 with 57% of its equity interest being
held by the Company, 15% by Kangdi Enterprise, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan and 13% by
Ms. Wang Aier, respectively

RECEBERBERAR  — KR _EZRFN\AT=ZREFREKXINEREER
HE#EDABARR BHEX  RARAXEIREERLERHE57% 15% 15%&
13%

the lease agreement dated 10 April 2016 entered into between Renkang Hospital and Tongli
Enterprise with respect to the land and buildings underlying the operations of Renkang
Hospital

HECRBRERNEERCRER S EREN T REEYTINERR
FHA+HENEERZ

the year ended 31 December 2020
HE_Z-_TF+_H=1T—HLEFE

the lawful currency of the PRC

hEEEER
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SFO
(&% M & &P ]
Sharels)

[R5 ]

Shareholder(s)
[ A% 2R

subsidiary or subsidiaries
=Nl

substantial shareholder(s)
EXTTE

Supervisor(s)

(B2 %]

Supervisory Committee

[BEFg]

Tongli Enterprise

[RHEX]

Definitions

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BEEDIE SNEC(E S LB FRP) B TRER] « MR A R T A ER)

sharels) in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,
including the Domestic Share(s) and the H Sharel(s)
ARAARAFERAEARBELOOITH RS  BERNERKHE

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EHEE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong)
BEEBEBEOE 622 (A RGO R TZ AN SR

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Hong Kong Listing Rules
BEBHELTHRBE TZANEE

the members of the Supervisory Committee

the Company’s supervisory committee established pursuant to the PRC Company Law
RARIRBRERRDERINESES

Dongguan Tongli Enterprise Co., Ltd. (5= A 71 & % B R 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 23 June 2003 with 43% of its equity interest being held
by Ms. Wang Aigin, 29% by Ms. Wang Aici, 15% by Ms. Zhang Dandan (5& 7+7%) and 13%
by Ms. Wang Aier (T & 52), respectively, all of whom are members of the Wang Family,
being aunts of Mr. Wang Junyang. Pursuant to a nominee arrangement among the Wang
Family, (i) Ms. Wang Aici (an aunt of Mr. Wang Junyang) agreed to hold 16% of her equity
interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang; (il Ms. Wang Aigin (an aunt of
Mr. Wang Junyang and the spouse of Mr. Chen Wangzhi) agreed to hold 15% and 6.5%
of her equity interest in Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Junyang and Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, respectively; and (i) Ms. Wang Aigin agreed to hold 15% of her equity interest in
Tongli Enterprise on behalf of Mr. Wang Wencheng (£ 32X )

REMRANEEERAA —ZXR_ZEZ=F"A-_T=ZBEHREKINERE
ERF ERESHBHEEH L EFELL FRAAXKEINEERLLIHA
43% - 29% ~ 15% % 13% - WFEHY/EIRRENRERIEGRENGHRET - R
BERREPHORBALH (1 EERZL (EBLAENER) ARERKRIESL T
ARAERRNERI6%ER : (| EE B2+ (EBRH K ENGE RRER A ECE)
RERREBGEERREREEDFIFHEERBE N EHE15% K% 6.5% K
IEHLTRABRREINKEEHBERRANEE15%E R
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Definitions

Wang Family
[ERK&]

Xingda Property

Xingye Group

(B E ]

%
%

The family members of the founder of the Group, the late Mr. Wang Jincheng (£ & ),
including (i) his children; (i) his siblings; (i) the spouses of his siblings; and (iv) the children of
his siblings

REBAPAERESHMAENREXE - B EF 2 i) KRB (i) KT
BRI IRAACE - K (iv) E L B IREY F K

Dongguan Xingda Property Investment Co., Lid. (Re i EEWEREER 2 7, a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 14 December 2001 and one of the
Controlling Shareholders holding approximately 8.22% interest in the Company. It is owned
as to 50% each by Mr. Chen Wangzhi and Ms. Wang Aigin. Xingda Property, Mr. Chen
Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin, Mr. Wang Junyang, Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group and Xingye
Group are acting fogether as a group of Controlling Shareholders
REMBEEVEREERAT — KR —F+_ATHBAEFBEKINER
NEFHARNREIL8.22% R  HARENR A EREE S L RIS 50% - BEDE -
BRI GEE FEHA T  TEBEE TERERLT RESEREESEER—
BRI —31TH

Dongguan Xingye Group Co., Ltd. (552 8 2 &= B A IR 2 &), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 15 April 1997 and one of the Controlling Shareholders holding
approximately 7.48% interest in the Company. It is owned as to 50% by Mr. Wang Junyang
as to 37.5% by Dongguan Kangwei Industrial Investment Co., ltd. (R mEEREE %8 E
ABRA)) and as to 12.5% by Ms. Wang Aici, respectively. Xingye Group, Mr. Wang Junyang,
Ms. Wang Aici, Kanghua Group, Mr. Chen Wangzhi, Ms. Wang Aigin and Xingda Property
are acting together as a group of Controlling Shareholders

REMEEEEBRLAA — KR —AWNWEFHEATEBEFEKRINERAF K
BPEP—RERRE  BEAARLN748% R HBTEHLE REMERE
EXREBRABAREZERLZ LT DORIEAS50% ~ 37.5% 1125% - BEKH - TEH
SHECFTEREZLT RESE BREKREE  TEHLTREEVEEL —HIER
PRER—B1TE

percentage ratio
B &
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